
Minturn Planning Commission 

June 14, 2023 
Page 1 of 2

Planning Commission Agenda 

Wednesday June 14, 2023 – 6:30 PM 

Minturn Town Hall / Council Chambers 

302 Pine St Minturn, CO 

The agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items 24 hours in advance or the 

deletion of items at any time. The order and times of agenda items listed are approximate. This 

agenda and meetings can be viewed at www.minturn.org.  

MEETING ACCESS INFORMATION AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

This will be an in-person meeting with access for the public to attend in person or via the 

Zoom link included. Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83349706090 

Zoom Call-In Information: 1 651 372 8299 or 1 301 715 8592 Webinar ID: 833 4970 6090 

Please note: all virtual participants are muted. In order to be called upon and be unmuted, you 

will need to use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom platform. When it’s your turn to speak, 

the moderator will unmute your line and you will have five (5) minutes for public comment. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: If you are unable to attend, public comments regarding any items on 

the agenda can be submitted to Madison Harris, Planner I, prior to the meeting and will be 

included as part of the record.  

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:30 PM

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.1 May 24, 2023

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Opportunity for amendment or deletions to the agenda.

5. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. PUBLIC COMMENT Citizens are invited to comment on any item not on the regular

Agenda subject to a public hearing. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes per

person unless arrangements have been made for a presentation with the Town Planner.

Those who are speaking are requested to state their name and address for the record.

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

1

http://www.minturn.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83349706090


 
Minturn Planning Commission 

June 14, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

8. DESIGN REVIEW AND LAND USE PUBLIC HEARINGS  

8.1 Ordinance TBD – Series 2023 Amending Article 4, Chapter 17 Administrative Replat 

Regulations of the Minturn Municipal Code 

8.2 335 Pine Street – New Addition to Existing Single Family Residence 

 

9. DISCUSSION / DIRECTION 

9.1 2023 Community Plan Review – Chapter 7 

 

10. STAFF REPORTS 

 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

12. FUTURE MEETINGS  

12.1 June 28, 2023 

12.2 July 12, 2023 

 

13. ADJOURN  

 

 

2



 
Minturn Planning Commission 

May 24, 2023 
Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Official Minutes 

Wednesday May 24, 2023 – 6:30 PM 

Minturn Town Hall / Council Chambers 

302 Pine St Minturn, CO 

The agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items 24 hours in advance or the 

deletion of items at any time. The order and times of agenda items listed are approximate. This 

agenda and meetings can be viewed at www.minturn.org.  

 

MEETING ACCESS INFORMATION AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

This will be an in-person meeting with access for the public to attend in person or via the 

Zoom link included. Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86200192151 

 

Zoom Call-In Information: 1 651 372 8299 or 1 301 715 8592 Webinar ID: 862 0019 2151 

 

Please note: all virtual participants are muted. In order to be called upon and be unmuted, you 

will need to use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom platform. When it’s your turn to speak, 

the moderator will unmute your line and you will have five (5) minutes for public comment. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: If you are unable to attend, public comments regarding any items on 

the agenda can be submitted to Madison Harris, Planner I, prior to the meeting and will be 

included as part of the record.  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:30 PM 

Lynn Teach called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Those present at roll call: Planning Commission Chair Lynn Teach and Planning 

Commission Members Amanda Mire, Tom Priest, and Michael Boyd. 

Staff Members Present: Planning Director Scot Hunn and Planner I Madison Harris. 

Note: Jeff Armistead and Sage Pierson are excused absent. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

3.1 May 10, 2023 

Michael B. asked that in Action 5.3.1 “and” be changed to “or”. 

Lynn T. asked that in Action 5.1.1 to add “it” in reference to the money. 

Amanda M. asked that in Action 5.3.1 it be changed to “would like to see those maps 

together and also enquired” to clarify that she was the one enquiring.  

Motion by Tom P., second by Amanda M., to approve the minutes of May 10, 2023 as 

amended. Motion passed 4-0. 

Note: Jeff A. and Sage P. are excused absent. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Opportunity for amendment or deletions to the agenda. 

 
 

3

http://www.minturn.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86200192151


 
Minturn Planning Commission 

May 24, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 

Motion by Michael B., second by Tom P., to approve the agenda as presented. Motion passed 

4-0. 

Note: Jeff A. and Sage P. are excused absent. 

 

5. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

No conflicts of interest. 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT Citizens are invited to comment on any item not on the regular 

Agenda subject to a public hearing. Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes per 

person unless arrangements have been made for a presentation with the Town Planner. 

Those who are speaking are requested to state their name and address for the record. 

No public comment. 
 

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

8. DESIGN REVIEW AND LAND USE PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

9. DISCUSSION / DIRECTION 

9.1 Minturn Forward Code Update: Steering Committee 

Scot H. introduced the agenda item. We are in the process of updating Chapter 16 and 

starting that off is getting people involved in technical groups. People who have used the 

code in recent years and ask them about their use. Also creating a steering committee. 

Council has volunteered Earle Bidez and Tom Sullivan. Within the next week we will be 

contacting stakeholders to do interviews. Before we start the work as staff, we will want 

to have a steering committee meeting. During the summer staff will start ripping the code 

apart, and then in September, will come back to the steering committee and stakeholder 

groups to show our findings. Anticipate a kick-off meeting in June or early July. 

Anticipate keeping staff on the goals as well as being an advocate and educator in the 

community.  

 

Lynn T. volunteered for the steering committee.  

Michael B. volunteered for the steering committee. 

 

Lynn T., Michael B., and Amanda M. asked for copies of Chapters 16 and 17. 

 

Lynn T. asked if the Steering Committee meetings are open to the public. 

• Scot H. said he didn’t know.  

 

9.2 2023 Community Plan Review – Chapter 6 

• Action 6.1.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.1.2: Michael B. thinks it is a good idea. Scot H. said that the current 

code starts getting us to this with the changes to the use table, but with the next 

round of code updates – we can look at that again. 

• Action 6.1.3: Lynn T. had Madison H. clarify the temporary nature of the 

proposed build outs.  

• Action 6.1.4: Lynn T. said that we should have carts like Vail does to cart 

4



 
Minturn Planning Commission 

May 24, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 

deliveries around. Tom P. asked if we have any designated loading places now. 

Scot H. said that we have one area outside of the Country Club, but Lynn T. 

clarified that it is not always used for loading. Tom P. said that the next action 

items to 6.1.10 go down to formalizing, and it comes down to transaction and 

enforcement.  

• Action 6.1.5: Lynn T. asked what the shared parking shed meant. Scot H. said that 

if one use operates at one time, and another use operates at a different time, you 

can sometimes count the parking space towards both spaces.  

• Action 6.1.6: Michael B. does not support this and wonders where the cash would 

go. Amanda M. asked what uses this would apply to. Scot H. said that it would 

most likely be for mixed use and commercial zone districts. Eliminating 

commercial parking requirements in the 100 Block is a step towards 

accomplishing this action item.  

• Action 6.1.7: Lynn T. said that this only works if we have enforcement.  

• Action 6.1.8: Michael B. said that it will come to paid parking eventually. Lynn 

T. said that we need to give great thought to where any meters end up.  

• Action 6.1.9: No comment. 

• Action 6.1.10: Tom P. said that this is already informally in process. 

• Action 6.1.11: Michael B. and Lynn T. would like to emphasize this action item.  

• Action 6.1.12: Michael B. said that this is a great idea, but where would the 

money come from? 

• Action 6.2.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.2.2: Tom P. asked if there has been any plans to connect from the 

Minturn Angler’s building up to the Meadow Mountain Business Park. Scot H. 

said that we haven’t had many conversations about that.  

• Action 6.3.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.3.2: Lynn T. said this is already in the works. 

• Action 6.3.3: Tom P. said that this should be a component of SIAs moving 

forward. 

• Action 6.3.4: No comment. 

• Action 6.3.5: No comment. 

• Action 6.3.6: No comment. 

• Action 6.3.7: No comment. 

• Action 6.4.1: Tom P. said this is part of the RTA. Lynn T. asked how this would 

work if the Town is trying to buy the land. Scot H. said that if we acquire the 

land, then we would likely sell it to a developer on the basis of a sub area master 

plan that has all of the Town’s priorities for that site. We can’t implement this 

action item until we acquire it though. 

• Action 6.4.2: No comment. 

• Action 6.5.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.5.2: No comment. 

• Action 6.5.3: No comment. 

• Action 6.5.4: No comment. 

• Action 6.6.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.6.2: No comment. 

5



 
Minturn Planning Commission 

May 24, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 

• Action 6.6.3: No comment. 

• Action 6.7.1: No comment. 

• Action 6.7.2: This is already required. 

• Action 6.7.3: No comment. 

 

10. STAFF REPORTS 

541 Main was approved for a new roof through the Minor DRB process. It is proposed to be 

a non-reflective metal roof replacing asphalt shingles.  

 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Lynn T. requested that we look into the sign directing bikes to park in front of Frank’s house. 

It is an ADA hazard.  

 

Tom P. said that based on the conversation from two weeks ago, he has met with the Town 

Manager Michelle Metteer and she is now creating a series of water newsletters with the first 

one explaining people’s water bills. 

 

Lynn T. asked for an explanation on the Cash-in-Lieu fee discussion at Council last week. 

• Madison H. explained what has happened. 

 

Michael B. asked for why ADUs used to be charged for a whole tap and now are charged for 

a half tap. 

 

12. FUTURE MEETINGS  

12.1 June 14, 2023 

12.1.1 Tom P. and Amanda M. might zoom in 

12.2 June 28, 2023 

 

13. ADJOURN  

Motion by Tom P., second by Michael B., to adjourn the regular meeting of May 24, 2023 at 

8:02 p.m. Motion passed 4-0. 

Note: Jeff A. and Sage P. are excused absent. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Lynn Teach, Commission Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Scot Hunn, Planning Director 

 

 

6



 
www.mountainlawfirm.com 
 

Glenwood Springs – Main Office       
201 14th Street, Suite 200 
P. O. Drawer 2030 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81602 

Aspen 
323 W. Main Street 
Suite 301 
Aspen, CO 81611 

Montrose 
1544 Oxbow Drive 
Suite 224 
Montrose, CO 81402 

Office: 970.945.2261 
Fax:     970.945.7336 
*Direct Mail to Glenwood Springs 

 

 

 DATE: June 9, 2023 

 TO: Minturn Planning Commission 

 FROM: Karp Neu Hanlon, P.C. 

 RE: Administrative Replat Procedures 

 
 
 Staff is proposing a text amendment to Chapter 17, Article 4, Administrative Replat 
Procedures.  This section of code allows the Planning Director to administratively approve minor 
replats such as lot line adjustments and vacations for up to 4 lots when the total number of lots does 
not increase.  However, the existing language at Sec. 17-4-10 requiring the replat to be “within the 
boundaries of one (1) subdivision” has proven problematic and serves no real policy purpose in the 
dense layout of Minturn where subdivisions are indistinguishable and most public infrastructure has 
already been built out.  Instead, many owners wishing to make simple lot line adjustments and 
vacations have been required to bring Amended Final Plats through Planning Commission and Town 
Council.  We are proposing to remove the requirement that the land all be within a single subdivision 
and allow for a streamlined process, as most municipalities do, for these types of minor adjustments.  
The Planning Department will ensure that adequate public infrastructure is in place or required as part 
of a development, and ensure compliance with existing zoning and engineering standards, as it 
currently does for administrative replats within a single subdivision.  Existing call-up and referral 
procedures will also continue to allow Planning Commission and Town Council the opportunity to 
review these if desired.  
 
 Staff also reviewed the rest of Article 4 and made some tweaks throughout the match the 
code’s other standards, procedures, and general practices that have not been updated since this was 
adopted.  The existence of plat standards within this article is somewhat odd, and we will be working 
soon on a consolidated plat standards article in chapter 17 where this will live with revised standards.  

7

http://www.mountainlawfirm.com/


1 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. __ – SERIES 2023 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MINTURN, 

COLORADO AMENDING ARTICLE 4, CHAPTER 17 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPLAT REGULATIONS OF THE 

MINTURN MUNICIPAL CODE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Minturn (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 

organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and with the authority of the Town 

of Minturn Home Rule Charter for which the Minturn Town Council (“Town Council”) is 

authorized to act; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Director has initiated and proposed the text amendment to 

Minturn Municipal Code Chapter 17, the Town Subdivision Regulations, Article 4, Administrative 

Replat Procedure as provided herein; and 

WHEREAS, on June __, 2022 the Minturn Planning Commission recommended 

approval of this ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Minturn Planning Commission and Town Council have determined that 

the text amendments to the Subdivision Regulations Chapter 16 as provided herein are necessary 

and proper.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF MINTURN, COLORADO: 

SECTION 1.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

SECTION 2.  Article 4, Chapter 17 of the Minturn Municipal Code is hereby amended read 

as set forth in Exhibit A to this Ordinance, with additions shown in double underlined text and 

strikethrough language is deleted.  Sections of Chapter 17 which are not expressly described in 

this Ordinance are deemed to continue to be in full effect without change. 

INTRODUCED, READ BY TITLE, APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY AND POSTED IN FULL ON THE OFFICIAL TOWN 

WEBSITE THE __ DAY OF ____ 2023.  A PUBLIC HEARING ON THIS ORDINANCE 

SHALL BE HELD AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF MINTURN, COLORADO ON THE ___ DAY OF ________ 2023 AT 5:30 p.m. AT THE 

MINTURN TOWN HALL 302 PINE STREET, MINTURN COLORADO 81645. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



2 

 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

 

 

  

Earle Bidez, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:    

 Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

 

THE TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO, ORDAINS THIS ORDINANCE ENACTED ON 

SECOND READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY AND POSTED IN 

FULL ON THE OFFICIAL TOWN WEB SITE THIS ___ DAY OF ___________ 2023. 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

 

 

  

Earle Bidez, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:   

Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

9



Ex. A 

Page 1 of 8 

ARTICLE 4 Administrative Replat Procedure 

Sec. 17-4-10. Intent. 

These procedures are to provide an abbreviated process for replat applications that 

demonstrate compliance with the criteria contained herein. The administrative replat process is 

intended to be accomplished within a period of thirty (30) business days. This time frame may 

vary depending upon the circumstances of each individual case. A final development plan, 

subdivision development plan and/or administrative site plan shall be completed for each site 

prior to building permits being issued when applicable. The administrative replat shall include 

one (1) contiguous parcel of land within the boundaries of one (1) subdivision. Right-of-way 

cannot be included within the boundaries of an administrative replat. Parcels separated by right-

of-way cannot be replatted administratively.  

Sec. 17-4-20. Prerequisite. 

The criteria for the Planning Director in making the administrative determination 

designation shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

(1) An overall final drainage report, and street construction plans, and other site 

infrastructure plans have been approved for the final plat governing the administrative 

replat proposal and a subdivision improvement agreement is in place to guarantee all 

required public improvements. For subdivisions or lots created prior to Town 

regulations requiring drainage reports, street construction plans, and/or subdivision 

improvement agreements, the Applicant will provide to the Town evidence that: (a) all 

public streets and sidewalks required to serve the lots have been constructed in 

accordance with Town standards, the administrative replat will not impact existing 

drainage conditions, and (b) the lots that are subject to the administrative replat are 

served with utilities that would be otherwise be covered by a subdivision improvement 

agreement (such as water, wastewater, electric, gas, telephone, etc). 

(2) No additional right-of-way dedications, public improvements, traffic studies, drainage 

studies or subdivision improvement agreements are required.  

(3) The perimeter boundaries of the administrative replat coincide with existing lot lines. 

The perimeter boundary of the existing subdivision is not affected. No more than four 

(4) platted lots are included in the application. 

(4) If the property that is subject to the administrative replat is located within a Planned 

Unit Development, the application does not include any property located outside of the 

Planned Unit Development boundaries. 

(5) Town Right-of-way cannot be included within the boundaries of an administrative 

replat or modified by an administrative replat. Parcels separated by right-of-way 

cannot be replatted administratively. 

 

10



 

Page 2 of 8 

Sec. 17-4-30. Administrative process determination. 

(a) The applicant shall submit all required presubmittal materials, in accordance with Planning 

Department requirements, along with a justification letter that details how the proposed 

administrative replat meets the applicable criteria contained herein.  

(b) Upon the Planning Department's acceptance of the presubmittal materials, the applicant will 

be scheduled for and must attend a presubmittal conference with the Town Planner and 

Town Engineer to discuss the merits of the proposed administrative replat. During the 

presubmittal meeting, the Town Planner and Town Engineer will make an initial 

determination as to the proposal's eligibility to be processed administratively.  

(a) Prior to submitting an application pursuant to this Article 17.4, the Applicant shall comply 

with the preapplication requirement in Section 16-21-140.   

(bc) At the next regularly scheduled staff meeting following the presubmittal preapplication 

meeting, the proposal will be presented to the Planning Director for final determination as to 

whether the proposal can be processed administratively. The applicant will be notified by 

the case planner of the determination to approve or deny the request for administrative 

processing as soon as practical.  

(cd) The Planning DirectorDivision Manager in consultation with the Town Attorney reserves 

the right to refer any request for an administrative replat to the Town Council for 

consideration at a regular meeting of the Town Council. The Planning Division will notify 

the applicant if the Planning Division Manager determines that Town Council review is 

desired.  

(de) If the Planning DirectorDivision Manager denies a request for administrative replat process, 

the applicant can appeal the decision to the Town Council, within ten (10) working days of 

the Planning Director’sDivision Manager’s decision, by filing a letter of appeal with the 

Planning Department. The Planning Director will notify the Town Council upon receipt of 

the letter of appeal, and the matter will be scheduled within (30) thirty days for final Town 

Council determination. The applicant will be notified by the Planning Department of the 

date the Town Council will consider the appeal and the requirement to provide justification 

on his or her behalf.  

(ef) Upon a determination that the application can be processed administratively, the applicant 

must submit the formal application within ninety (90) workingsixty (60) days of the 

Planning Director's determination that an administrative replat is allowed. Failure to submit 

the application within the ninety (90)sixty (60) working days of the Planning Division 

Manager's determination, in writing, will render the decision voidable.  

(fg) The Planning Director, at the Planning Director’sDivision Manager’s discretion, may waive 

the preapplication presubmittal conference. If a waiver is granted, the Planning Director will 

provide written notice of the waiverissue a letter of confirmation.  

Sec. 17-4-40. Approval criteria for administrative replat. 

The Town Council shall consider the following criteria for shall govern approval of an 

administrative replat:  

11



 

 

 
Page 3 of 8 

(1) Whether the administrative replat is consistent with the efficient development and 

preservation of the entire final plat.  

(2) Whether the administrative replat will adversely affect reasonable development 

expectations or the use and enjoyment of adjacent land or the public interest.  

(3) A lot line vacation when there is no increase in the number of lots in the original plat; 

i.e., the combination of two (2) or more lots into one (1) lot up to a maximum of four 

(4) lots.  

(4) An adjustment of lot lines for impacting a maximum of four (4) existing lots (e.g., four 

[4] lots into two [2] lots), in which the original subdivision or Town layout is not 

substantially modified and additional lots are not created.  

(5) Use of the administrative replat procedures is compatible with the site's existing 

planned unit development, when applicable, as well as the Town's community plan.  

(6) Approval is in keeping with the spirit and intent of the subdivision regulations and will 

not weaken the purposes of those regulations.  

(7) Approval will not adversely affect public health, safety and welfare.  

(8) The subdivision of lots within an approved final plat for property located within an 

approved master development plan or PUD.  

(8) Whether the administrative replat will cause a greater non-conformity with zoning, 

engineering, or other applicable Town standards than may presently exist. 

(9) The administrative replat will not reduce the overall amount of open space within a 

neighborhood or a planned unit development. 

 

Sec. 17-4-50. Formal submittal process. 

(a) Upon receipt of all required information, the Planning Department shall review the formal 

submittal within five (5) business days to determine if it is consistent with the standards set 

forth in these regulations.  

(b) Staff will refer the application to the Town Engineer, Town Surveyor, and Town Attorney. 

If the application has not adequately addressed all outside referral agencies through 

submittal letters of approval at Paragraph 17-4-60(10) below, staff will notify those 

agencies with a fourteen-day referral period. This referral process may extend the thirty 

business-day review period.  

(c) The applicant will be notified of any outstanding issues upon completion of this internal 

review.  

(d) The applicant shall submit a final Mylar for signature by the Town Council following 

completion of all outstanding issues raised by the referral process and staff's determination 

that the administrative replat complies with all specified plat content requirements per 

Section 17-4-70 herein.  

12



 

Page 4 of 8 

(e) The final Mylar shall be an original drawing in black ink on twenty-four-by-thirty-six-inch 

single/double matte Mylar or photographic blackline positive Mylar of the same, or 

equivalent.  

(f) Prior to recordation of the replat, the applicant must submit all required documentation, 

recordation fees and a certificate of taxes paid, along with the approved administrative 

replat in accordance with the Town Council approval.  

(g) The applicant shall provide evidence through a current title insurance policy or 

commitment, no more than thirty (30) days old from the date the Mylar is submitted, that 

the signature of the owner on the Mylar is the owner of the property.  

(h) No plat shall be recorded on the replatting of real property unless all delinquent taxes and 

special assessments thereon have been paid and unless such property is classified in the 

appropriate zoning district as defined in Chapter 16 of this Code.  

(i) Upon acceptance of the final Mylar by the Planning Director, the administrative replat will 

be signed by the Mayor and attested by the Town Clerk.  

(j) Within thirty (30) calendar days receipt of the Mylar, the applicant shall record the 

administrative replat with the office of the County Clerk and Recorder.  

 

Sec. 17-4-60. Formal submittal requirements. 

The following are requirements for formal submittal:  

(1) Land use application (the application is available in the Planning DivisionDepartment 

office).  

(2) Application fee (fee schedule is available in the Planning Division office).  

(3) A letter of intent that explains, justifies and validates the request, stating all facts relied 

upon and providing documentation where possible addressing each of the criteria 

contained in Sections 17-4-20 and 17-4-50.  

(4) Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 

commitment no more than ninety (90) days old.  

(5) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 

process the application with a disclaimer that no other party's consent is required.  

(6) An administrative replat exhibit, per Section 17-4-70 below. The format for all plats 

shall be in upper-case sans serif. Font size shall be readable when reduced to an 

eleven-by-seventeen-inch size. No plats shall include copyright restrictions.  

(7) Certificate of taxes paid.  

(8) One (1) set of traverse closure computations corresponding to the administrative plat.  

(9) One (1) set of monument records if applicable.  

(10) Letters from any referral agencies stating their recommendation regarding the replat 

and any existing facility they have over or across the land, including:  

13



 

Page 5 of 8 

a. All special districts providing maintenance of infrastructure within or adjacent to 

the property.  

b. All known easement beneficiaries and/or utility providers.  

c. All landowners abutting the property.  

(11) Any easements or roadway vacations associated with an administrative replat must be 

processed separately.  

(12) A submittal requirements matrix is available in the Planning office Department listing 

the complete list of submittal items and the proper number of copies. There may be 

other submittal requirements based on an engineering review.  

Sec. 17-4-70. Plat exhibit. 

The administrative replat exhibit shall be an original drawing in black ink on twenty-four-

by-thirty-six-inch single/double matte Mylar or photographic blackline positive Mylar of the 

same, or equivalent, and shall contain the following information:  

(1) The title of the subdivision, as dedicated, shall be located at the top of each sheet. On 

each sheet, in smaller lettering, the second line of the title block shall read "A REPLAT 

OF ___________," followed by the legal description of the lots and blocks included 

within the administrative replat. On each sheet, the next line of the title block shall 

indicate the quarter section, section, township, range and 6th Principal Meridian in 

which the administrative replat is located. The name of the County and the State shall 

be included on the last line of the subtitle.  

(2) Each sheet of the administrative replat shall show the date of the survey, north arrow, 

sheet number and the written and graphic scale. The drawing date and any revision 

dates shall be shown on the cover sheet. On the bottom left-hand corner of each page, 

the Case No. XX-XXX shall be added. The minimum scale of the drawing shall be one 

(1) inch to one hundred (100) feet. Acceptable larger scales are one (1) inch to twenty 

(20) feet, thirty (30) feet, forty (40) feet, fifty (50) feet and sixty (60) feet.  

(3) Vicinity map (scale of 1" = 2000' preferred) showing the administrative replat in 

relation to section lines and existing or proposed streets within one (1) mile.  

(4) An accurate and complete monumented land survey pursuant to Section 38-51-

102(13), C.R.S., shall be made of the land to be included in the administrative replat. A 

traverse of the boundary when computed from field measurements on the ground must 

have a minimum unadjusted ratio of closure of one (1) part in fifteen thousand 

(15,000).  

(5) The monumented land survey shall be an accurate reflection of the legal description. 

The legal description shall be in the following format:  

"A parcel of land in the ¼ Section __, Township ___ South, Range ___ West of the 

Sixth Principal Meridian, County of Eagle, State of Colorado, more particularly described 

as follows:  

14



 

 

Page 6 of 8 

"(Include the Lots, Block, if any, and name of the subdivision as dedicated. The area of 

the subdivision to the nearest one-hundredth (.01) of an acre, more or less, shall be 

included.)"  

(6) If the subdivision of which the replat is a part was recorded prior to July 1, 1975, tThe 

legal description must include a metes-and-bounds legal description.  

(7) One (1) corner of the replat shall be tied (distance and bearing) to two (2) adjacent 

section or quarter section corners of the Public Land Survey System. The monuments 

found/set at the section or quarter-section corners must be described on the plat.  

(8) The surveyor shall rehabilitate or upgrade any section or quarter-section corners used 

to control the survey of the subdivision as required by the Rules of Procedure 

promulgated by the State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and 

Professional Land Surveyors.  

(9) This Section is not applicable if the subdivision of which the replat is a part was tied 

(distance and bearing) to two (2) adjacent section or quarter-section corners of the 

Public Land Survey System.  

(10) A note indicating the line being referenced and the existing monuments that define the 

referenced line shall be included on the replat. If the subdivision of which the replat is 

a part uses bearings, the surveyor may use the same basis of bearings for the replat.  

(11) If the original basis of bearings is not used or the original subdivision did not use 

bearings, the surveyor must establish a basis of bearing in accordance with Article 6 of 

this Chapter.  

(12) The administrative replat shall be monumented pursuant to Subsections (1), (2), (3), 

(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9) and (10) of Section 38-51-105, C.R.S.  

(13) Where applicable, the monuments set by the surveyor on the boundary of the 

subdivision shall be thirty (30) inches long, solid steel pins, one-half (½) inch to three-

fourths (¾) inch in diameter, set in a concrete collar at least six (6) inches in diameter 

and twelve (12) inches in depth.  

(14) Offsets, which are to be set on the extension of any lot line, shall be noted on the plat at 

the time of recording and shall comply with Section 38-51-105, C.R.S. This note shall 

specify the standard offset distance and any nonstandard distances. An example of a 

note is as follows:  

a. All offset notes are one-inch metal disks embedded in concrete sidewalks set on 

the lot line extended, five (5) feet from the platted lot corner along all streets 

except as follows: Nonstandard offsets for lot lines between:  

1. Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, is 5.87 feet.  

2. Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, is 6.03 feet.  

b. If no offset monuments are to be set in conjunction with the administrative replat, the 

following note shall be included on the plat:  

Note: No offset monuments are to be set in conjunction with this administrative 

replat.  

15



 

 

Page 7 of 8 

(15) A Colorado land survey monument record for each section or quarter-section corner 

that the subdivision is tied to or controlled from must be prepared and sealed at the 

time the plat is submitted to the Planning Department.  

(16) Each monument record shall describe both the supporting and contradicting evidenced, 

as well as the monument found and accepted, established, restored or rehabilitated, and 

at least three (3) accessory or reference points. If the latest monument records on file 

meet the above-described criteria and the reference points are still existing, the 

surveyor only needs to submit copies of the latest monument records with the plat.  

(17) The following note shall be placed on the administrative replat exhibit:  

Any person who knowingly removes, alters or defaces any public land survey 

monument or land boundary monument or accessory commits a Class 2 misdemeanor 

pursuant to Section 18-4-508, C.R.S.  

(18) The plat shall show complete survey and mathematical information, including curve 

data, and other data necessary to locate all monuments and to locate and retrace any 

and all interior and exterior boundary lines. Distances and bearings shall be used.  

(19) The boundary of the administrative replat shall be delineated with a heavy solid line.  

(20) The lines of all proposed lots shall be fully dimensioned with distances and bearings. 

Where a lot line intersects a street line at right angles, the bearing may be omitted. If a 

lot line intersects a curved street, the bearing on the line shall be shown. If the lot line 

is not radial to a curved street line or a curved property line, the lot line shall be labeled 

N.R. and the radial bearing at the point of intersection shall be shown.  

(21) The location of lots, blocks, tracts and parcels adjoining the administrative replat shall 

be shown. Adjoining lots and blocks shall be labeled and the name of adjoining 

subdivisions, as dedicated, shall be shown.  

(22) The blocks in the administrative replat shall be numbered consecutively throughout the 

administrative replat, commencing with Block 1. The lots in each block shall be 

numbered consecutively, commencing with Lot 1.  

(23) The names and widths of all public streets shall be shown on the administrative replat. 

Existing rights-of-way shall bear notations of dedication by book and page number. 

Private drives and streets shall be labeled as such.  

(24) All easements shall be clearly labeled, identified and dimensions shown and tied to 

reference points within the subdivision, and be shown by dashed lines. Existing 

easements shall bear a notation of dedication of conveyance by book and page number. 

If any easement of record can not be definitely located, a statement of the existence, 

the nature thereof and its recorded reference shall be placed in the note section. 

Easements shall be designated and the disposition thereof indicated in the note section. 

Easements that abut the exterior boundary of the subdivision shall be shown and 

clearly labeled.  

(25) All plats having lots bordering a collector or larger street/road shall contain a note 

limiting or prohibiting ingress and egress to that street/road.  

16



 

 

Page 8 of 8 

(26) The identification and designation of the boundary lines of any one-hundred-year 

developed floodplain, ordinary high water mark, and the source of the designation shall 

be shown on the plat.  

(27) The appropriate traffic sight triangles shall be designated and dimensions shown on the 

plat. Sight triangles shall be shown at the intersection of all roadways and at the 

intersection of all private drives/access points with public roadways.  

(28) All standard notes and certificates required by the Planning Department shall be 

included on the plat. All notes not meeting these specifications shall be removed. The 

surveyor shall seal the plat so that the seal does not obscure any information shown on 

the plat.  

Sec. 17-4-80. Expiration of approval. 

(a) Unless extended as provided herein, failure by the applicant to submit all required 

documentation within sixty (60) ninety calendar (90) days of approval shall render approval 

of the administrative replat voidable and may result in the necessity for a new submittal of 

the administrative replat. Resubmittals are subject to all processing fees, submittal 

requirements and review standards in effect at the time the resubmittal is accepted by the 

Planning Department.  

(b) The Planning Director may grant extensions of time up to twelve (12) months upon a 

written request by the applicant or staff for showing good cause. Good cause may include, 

but not be limited to, that signatories are out of state or country or a major change was 

requested by the Town Council.  

(c) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the 

applicant's inability to comply with the specified deadlines. The request shall list any 

changes in the character of the neighborhood and any changes in the County Master 

Comprehensive Community Plan, zoning resolution or subdivision regulations that have 

occurred since approval of the administrative replat. These changes may affect the 

administrative replat and the anticipated time schedule for completing the platting process. 

A fee schedule is available from the Planning Division Department office. Additional 

review of the administrative replat may occur, resulting in additional conditions as 

applicable.  

(d) The denial of an extension by the Planning Director may be appealed to the Town Council 

in writing within ten (10) working days of the decision by the Planning Director.  

Sec. 17-4-90. Recordation procedure. 

The administrative replat shall be recorded in accordance with the final plat regulations.  

 

17



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Design Review Board Hearing 

__________________________________________________________ 

 
Final Plan Review for New Addition to a Single-Family Home  

 

335 Pine Street 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hearing Date:  June 14, 2023 

File Name and Process: Addition to Single-Family Residence Final Plan Review 

Owner/Applicant:  Nicole Magistro and Zach Locke 

Representative:  Michael Pukas, MPP Design Shop 

Legal Description:  Subdivision: Booco 2nd Block: 1 Lot: 4 

Address:   335 Pine Street 

Zoning:   Old Town Character Area – Residential Zone District 

Staff Member:  Madison Harris, Planner I 

Recommendation:  Approval 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff Report 
 

I. Summary of Request: 

  

The Applicants request Final Plan review of a new, one-bedroom, 1,404 square foot addition to an 

existing 3-bedroom single-family residence located at 335 Pine Street in the Old Town Residential 

Zone District. Although the DRB has not reviewed any conceptual plans, the Applicant’s 

representative, Michael Pukas, has been proactive in meeting with Town staff prior to submitting 

plans for a new addition and has provided a relatively complete and thorough set of site, 

landscaping, and architectural plans allowing staff to conduct a final plan level review of the 

project. 

 

Proposed Plans 

The plans show a two-level structure with a new master bedroom above a new two car garage 

accessed off of Meadow Lane. The building height - measured to the midpoint of the roof from 

finished grade – is shown at 25 feet and .5 inches, well within the maximum 28-foot allowable 

height limit within the Old Town Residential Zone District. 

 

Minturn Planning Department 

Minturn Town Center 

302 Pine Street 

Minturn, Colorado 81645 

Minturn Planning Commission 

Chair – Lynn Teach 

Jeff Armistead 

Michael Boyd 

Amanda Mire 

Sage Pierson 

Tom Priest 

 

18



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 2 

 

Additionally, the massing, forms, and scale of the proposed structure, as well as proposed    exterior 

materials, textures and detailing also appear to achieve the design objectives of Appendix B – 

Design Guidelines and Standards.  

 

Parking is adequate, with three off-street spaces provided (two in the garage and one surface space 

at the front of the lot). The single family residence requires two spaces, and the addition requires 

one.  

 

According to staff’s analysis of development standards and dimensional limitations in Section III 

below, the project appears to meet the Town’s standards. 

 

Staff believes that the Applicant and their representative have provided a complete, detailed 

set of plans necessary to complete a thorough final plan review. 

 

As a reminder, the Planning Commission has the option to review the proposal as a “conceptual” 

plan review if the Commission feels that the plans are not sufficient or are in need of revisions 

and additional review prior to final plan approval; or, the Commission may take action to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Final Plans. 

 

Staff is recommending approval. 

 

II. Summary of Process and Code Requirements: 

  

This is a final plan-level of review for a new addition on a legally created lot within the Town of 

Minturn. This is a formal hearing providing the Applicant and staff the opportunity to discuss the 

proposal with the Planning Commission, acting as the Design Review Board, and to address the 

DRB’s concerns or feedback regarding suggested revisions to the project. 

 

If the DRB feels that the plans are complete, appropriate, and meet the intent and purposes of the 

Minturn Municipal Code, Chapter 16, the DRB has the option to take final action to approve or 

approve with specific conditions and giving the Applicant and staff clear direction on any 

recommended revisions to the plans. 

 

No variances are required or requested at this time. 

 

Design Review Process 

Appendix ‘B’ of the Minturn Municipal Code, Section 16-21-615 - Design Review Applications, 

subsection “d” below outlines the criteria and findings necessary for DRB review and approval of 

all new, major development proposals: 

 

(d) Administrative procedure. 

 

(1) Upon receipt of a completed and proper application, the application for 

Design Review will be scheduled for a public hearing. The hearing will be 

conducted in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Chapter. 

 

19



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 3 

 

(2) Criteria and findings. Before acting on a Design Review application, the 

Planning Commission, acting as the Design Review Board (DRB), shall 

consider the following factors with respect to the proposal: 

 

a. The proposal's adherence to the Town's zoning regulations. 

b. The proposal's adherence to the applicable goals and objectives of the 

Community Plan. 

c. The proposal's adherence to the Design Standards. 

 

(3) Necessary findings. The Design Review Board shall make the following 

findings before approving a Design Review application: 

a. That the proposal is in conformance with the Town zoning regulations. 

b. That the proposal helps achieve the goals and objectives of the Community 

Plan. 

c. That the proposal complies with the Design Standards. 

 

Staff suggests that the final plans for 335 Pine Street meet or can be revised to meet the required 

findings ‘a,’ ‘b,’ and ‘c’ or subparagraph 3 – Necessary findings. 

 

III.  Zoning Analysis: 

 

Zoning 

The subject property is located within the “Old Town Character Area” Residential Zone 

District, described as follows: 

 

(a) The neighborhood is bisected by Highway 24 and is characterized by single-

family residences with a mix of business and institutional uses. The residences 

are typically one (1) and two (2) stories, with outbuildings and minimal 

setback between structures.  

(b) The purpose of this zone is to provide for continued residential use and 

redevelopment that preserves the unique character and scale of the 

neighborhood. An objective is to retain the historically residential areas as 

quiet and safe neighborhoods while allowing for limited home-based 

occupations and home-based businesses to encourage permanent residency. 

This area can accommodate reasonable growth where land and services are 

available.  
- Town of Minturn Town Code Section 16-6-20 

20



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 4 

 

 
Figure 1: Game Creek Character Area Zoning Map 

 

Dimensional Limitations and Development Standards 

The following table summarizes the lot, development and dimensional standards and 

limitations applicable to the subject property pursuant to Sections 16-2-40. - General lot 

requirements and dimensional standards and 16-16-20 – Parking Required for Residential and 

Lodging Uses. 

 

 

335 Pine Street 

21



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 5 

 

Regulation Allowed/Required Proposed/Existing 

Minimum Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft. 5,008 sq. ft. (.115 ac.) 

Maximum Building Height: 28 feet 25 feet .5 inches 

Minimum Front Setback: 10 feet Existing not changing  

Minimum Side Setback: 5 feet 5 feet 

Minimum Rear Setback: 10 feet 10 feet 

     

Maximum Lot Coverage: 45% (2,253.6 sq. ft.) 1,959 sq. ft. (39.12%) Proposed 

Maximum Impervious 

Coverage: 

55% (2,754.4 sq. ft.) 2,716 sq. ft. (54.23%) Proposed 

Minimum Snow Storage 

Area: 

5% of Driveway  

(785 sq. ft. x .05 = 39.25sq. ft.) 

217 sq. ft. 

   

Parking: 3 spaces 3 spaces 

        

 

Note: the above calculations are based on the following: 

 

Lot 4 = .115 acres x 43,560 sq. ft./acre = 5008 sq. ft.  

785 sq. ft. parking area x .05% = 39.25 sq. ft. (Required Snow 

Storage) 

 

IV. Applicable Standards and Design Guideline Criteria: 

 

Design 

In addition to the development standards listed above, the following general design principles are 

provided for reference. 

 

Appendix B(III)(2) – Old Town Character Area. 

   

“Old Town has long been considered the downtown area of Minturn and the visual 

gateway of Town. This is due to the location of existing retail and restaurant business 

in this area. A unique character has evolved with many differing architectural styles for 

the commercial storefronts and the converted residential buildings currently used for 

retail activity. The use of local materials and style is common in towns that have evolved 

over many years and could be defined as an organic growth process where additions 

and remodels occur as a town grows. Though the structures in Old Town may not look 

identical, there are common features that are consistent. It is the consistency of these 

elements that shall be the basis of additional requirements for Old Town.” 

 

Staff Response: 

Staff recommends that the muntins from the front windows of the original house be carried through 

the addition to further help join the original with the addition if the stated intent changes and the 

original windows are not replaced. Within the letter of intent, it is stated that all of the windows 

will be replaced, and if there is uniformity throughout the original and addition, staff believes this 

design guideline will be satisfied.  

 

 

22



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 6 

 

Final Site, Grading and Drainage Design 

The design guidelines encourage designs that integrate or account for snow storage and snow shed 

from roof structures, along with ensuring that the orientation of buildings – to street frontages and 

neighboring properties – is considered.  

 

Staff Response: 

This application was submitted before the updated snow storage guidelines went into effect, and 

so this is being reviewed underneath the previous regulations which state that 5% of the driveway 

area shall be devoted to snow storage. As presented, the plans comply with the Code in effect at 

the time of application. 

 

The proposed design maintains the structures within required setbacks, thus allowing for full use 

of side yard areas for snow shed and drainage. Likewise, the site plan and final grading details 

generally demonstrate that proper (positive) grading will be directed in swales away from the 

structure; that drainage is handled on the subject property. The Town Engineer has reviewed the 

grading plan and deemed it sufficient.  

 

Mass and Form 

The following excerpts from the Design Guidelines should be considered by the Design Review 

Board when reviewing the proposed project: 

 

Appendix B(II)(C)(1)(c). Massing and Scale 

 

“A simple central form with additive features shall be designed. This style creates visual 

interest and is appropriate for the community due to its compatibility with existing 

structures. Buildings and improvements should complement, rather than overpower, the 

adjacent natural and built environment. Homes are encouraged to be sheltering in 

nature, with consistent setbacks from the street with prominent porches or overhanging 

eaves. 

 

Building mass, form, length and height shall be designed to provide variety and visual 

interest while maintaining a scale that is similar or compatible to adjacent 

structures.” 

   

Staff Response: 

Staff believes that the design and scale of the proposed structures incorporate a simple central 

form with additive features and is complimentary to adjacent single-family residential structures 

and character on nearby parcels. Staff further suggests that the scale of the project is appropriate 

and will not overpower surrounding natural and built environments. Proposed roof forms and 

pitches, materials and textures are compatible and complimentary to the surrounding built and 

natural environments. While the roof eave does encroach into the side setback at certain points, 

Sec. 16-2-50(k) allows the roof eave up to eighteen (18) inches into these setbacks. Also, to note, 

the awning on the rear of the structure does encroach into the rear setback, however, Sec. 16-2-

50 (g)(3) permits awnings to encroach if they are maintained a minimum of five feet from the 

rear lot line. 

 

23



TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 7 

 

V. Issues and Areas of Non-Conformance: 

 

Issues or Required Plan Revisions 

There are no issues that staff has identified at this time. 

 

VI. Staff Recommendation and Suggested Conditions: 

 

Staff suggests that the Final Plans for 335 Pine Street comply with applicable provisions of 

Chapter 16 and the Town of Minturn Design Standards (Appendix ‘B’) of the Minturn Town Code.  

 

Staff is, therefore, recommending approval of the Final Plans, with no conditions. 

 

  

24



5/2/23, 4:54 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1 1/5

Design Review Application

Submission Info

User 71.211.8.2

Submission Id 1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2

Start Date 5/2/2023 4:34:58 PM

Receipt Id 207052796

IP Address 71.211.8.2

Receipt Date 5/2/2023 4:52:35 PM

Status Submitted

Workflow Completed Date

Submitted Date 5/2/2023 4:52:35 PM

Response Data

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Project Information

Section Title: Project Information

Is this a Minor or Major DRB Project?:
Major

Project Name:
Magistro-Locke Addition

Street Address:
335 Pine Street

City:
Minturn

State:
Colorado

Zip:
81645

Zoning:
Old Town Residential

Application Request:
a garage and bedroom suite addition to an existing single family dwelling

25



5/2/23, 4:54 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1 2/5

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Applicant Information

Section Title: Applicant Information

Name:
Michael Pukas

Mailing Address:
PO Box 288

City:
Gypsum

State:
CO

Zip:
81637

Phone:
19703904931

Email:
michael@mppdesignshop.com

Is the Property Owner different than the Applicant?:
Yes

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Property Owner Information

Section Title: Property Owner Information

Name:
Nicole Magistro & Zach Locke

Mailing Address:
225 Main Street, Unit C

City:
Edwards

State:
CO

Zip:
81632

Phone:
(970) 390-5159

Email:
nicolemagistro@gmail.com

26



5/2/23, 4:54 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1 3/5

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Additional Information

Section Title: Additional Information

Lot Size:
0.115 acres, 5,008 square feet

# of Stories:
2

Type of Residence:
SingleFamily

Snow Storage (sq ft):
127

# of Bedrooms:
4

Building Footprint (sq ft):
1974

# of On-site Parking Spaces:
3

Total Impervious Surfaces (sq ft):
2707

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Uploads

Section Title: Submittal Checklist Requirements (as applicable)

Letter of Intent:
2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-01-2023.pdf

Vicinity Map:
2207_Magistro_Vicinity-Map.jpg

Improvement Location Certificate of Survey (ILC or ILS):
335 Pine Street ISP-TOPO 24X36 09-27-2022.pdf

Preliminary Building Plans and Elevations:
2207_Magistro_DRB_05-01-2023.pdf

Town of Minturn - Design Review Application - Applicant Review & Signature

Minor DRB Fee:
$75.00

27

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/25be3494-cedb-4673-825b-aca1b3c568d0
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/a58f1f98-28a7-4694-9f08-f1585f742e32
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/247bbfe0-6c86-4957-bfbb-51f0c662b453
https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/e1ebc651-b16a-47c5-9b48-1217efc16087/document/9f42ac43-1a47-4c7d-a8f8-314bde260841


5/2/23, 4:54 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1 4/5

Major DRB Fee:
$200.00

Section Title: Applicant Signature

I declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that the statements made in the above application are true
and complete to the best of my knowledge.:
true

Signature:
Michael Pukas

Date:
05/02/2023

Data Fields

Name Michael Pukas

Address1

Address2

City

State

Zip

Phone

Email michael@mppdesignshop.com

CompanyName

Payment Info
:
207052796

:
5/2/2023 10:52:35 PM

:
CC

:
Payment

:
Complete

:


28



5/2/23, 4:54 PM https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1

https://appengine.egov.com/submissions/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/details?ipr=1 5/5

:
5/2/2023 10:52:33 PM

:
5/2/2023 10:52:33 PM

Workflow Info
Review Step

:
5/2/2023 10:52:35 PM

:
Application Submitted

:
71.211.8.2

:

:
Submitted

:
5/2/2023 10:52:35 PM

:
Email Sent

:
System

:
Email message sent to michael@mppdesignshop.com.

:
Submitted

:
5/2/2023 10:52:36 PM

:
Email Sent

:
System

:
Email message sent to planner1@minturn.org.

:
Submitted

29

https://appengine.egov.com/apps/co/1982cef0-da77-4d44-a2d2-e32847eed9d2/add7dfee-0c2c-4e46-9940-ef8210fcabb1


LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.docx  Page 1 of 5 

May 01, 2023 

Revised May 25, 2023  

 

Tel:  (970) 827-5645 

Fax:  (970) 827-5545 

e-mail: planner@minturn.org 

 

Regarding: Magistro-Locke Residence Addition 

 

Location:  335 Pine Street 

 Minturn, CO 81645  

 Parcel Number: 2103-263-18-023  

 Booco’s 2nd Addition to Minturn, Block 1, Lot 4 

 

This application is for Design Review approval of an addition to an existing single family dwelling. The 

addition will consist of a new 2-car garage at grade, accessed from Meadow Street, and a bedroom 

and bathroom suite on the upper level above the garage. The front door of the existing house faces 

Pine Street. There will be no changes to existing building footprint or structure. There is an existing shed 

on the northwest corner of the property that encroaches into the side yard setback that will be 

removed, as it is in the location of the proposed addition.  

 

Currently, vehicle access to the property is from Pine Street, where there is one existing surface parking 

space on brick pavers. This access will be maintained. The brick pavers are to be removed and 

replaced with a permeable paving material.  

 

A second access to the lot is proposed from Meadow Street, which is a gravel alley at the back of the 

lot. The second access is required to access the 2-car garage. It is not possible to access the garage 

from Pine Street.  

 

The following existing hardscape areas will be removed and replaced with permeable pavers set in a 

sand bed, which will have grass growing in between:  

• The brick parking area adjacent to Pine Street on northeast corner of the lot 

• The concrete walkway on the south side of the house from the side entrance to the back yard  

• The patio pavers and masonry retaining walls in the backyard  

 

There is canopy roof supported on timber brackets above the overhead garage door on the west 

elevation. It is proposed this be considered a canopy or shading device to allow it’s encroachment into 

the rear yard setback up to 4’-6”.  

 

All existing windows and doors in the existing house are to be replaced with new windows and doors to 

match the proposed new construction.  

 

The existing windows at the front of the house facing Pine Street on the lower and upper levels, and on 

part of the south side lower level are divided lite windows & doors. All other windows & doors in the 

Town of Minturn 

Attention:  Planning Department 

302 Pine Street 

P.O. Box 309 

Minturn, CO 81645 

30

mailto:michael@mppdesignshop.com


LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.docx  Page 2 of 5 

house are single lite windows & doors with no muntins. The proposed replacement windows & doors at 

the front of the existing house facing Pine Street only are to be divided lite. All other replacement 

windows & doors in the existing house, and new windows & doors at the proposed addition are to be 

single lite with no muntins. The intention is the addition is to have a modern aesthetic while 

complimenting the traditional aesthetic of the existing structure. Having divided lite windows & doors 

facing Pine Street will keep the traditional aesthetic as viewed from the street. All other windows & doors 

being single lite with no muntins will bring a continuity to the entire structure with the addition appearing 

as an integral and cohesive part of the structure.  

 

The proposed addition exterior building materials are to be vertical wood siding with a nickel-gap, 

painted white; new windows & doors to be black with factory paint finish; asphalt shingle roofing at 

upper roofs in charcoal gray; standing seam metal roofing at the canopy in charcoal gray; heavy 

timber brackets supporting the canopy to be painted white.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed permeable grass pavers to replace existing impermeable grade surfaces:  

 
 

  

31

mailto:michael@mppdesignshop.com


LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.docx  Page 3 of 5 

Front of existing house from Pine Street:  

 
 

 
  

32

mailto:michael@mppdesignshop.com


LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.docx  Page 4 of 5 

Back yard from Meadow Street:  

 
 

 
 

33

mailto:michael@mppdesignshop.com


31” Brian, shown with “Down Light” option and Matte Black finish

BRIAN

APPLICATIONS Indirect wall grazing luminaire for exterior/interior use: flanking doors, on columns, 
on building facades, between windows. Suitable for marine environments

SIZES • 15.5”H x 7”W x 4”D
• 31”H x 7”W x 4”D
• 46.5”H x 7”W x 4”D

WEIGHT • 15.5”H - 6 lb
• 31”H - 8 lb
• 46.5”H - 10 lb

MOUNTING • Steel mounting system with mounting plate and cover with rubber gaskets 
between the junction box and mounting plate

• Mounts to center of J-box at 5.5” from top of rectangular shade

SPECIFICATIONS • Dark Sky Compliant, Full cut-off (applies to “Down Light” version)
• High efficiency, fully integrated proprietary LED module
• IP66 Rated
• BUG Rating  B1-U0-G0
• 120-277V input
• 100,000+ hours rated life time
• 10 Year Limited Warranty (excludes shade)
• Title 24 Compliant
• ADA Compliant

LAMPING • 3000K and 3500K
• 35W

CONSTRUCTION Manufactured from aluminum with industrial powder coat finish

10YR

ARCHITECTURAL SCALE, WET-LISTED EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

ALVALIGHT.COM P: 510 993 0898  Headquarters: 2301 4th Street Berkeley, CA, 94710

SPECIFICATIONS SUBJECT TO CHANGE, REVISED 04/05/2021

34



ESN - Enviro Satin Nickel

EOB - Enviro Oil-Rubbed Bronze

Metal Powder Coat Finish Options

MODEL LENGTH CCT SHADE LIGHT METAL TRIM
POWDER COAT FINISH OPTIONS

ORDER CODE: 

15     15.5”
31     31”
46    46.5”

MT1
MT2

Down Light Only
Down and Up Light ESN

EOB
GR
DBT
WHT
BLK

Enviro Satin Nickel
Enviro Oil-Rubbed Bronze
Graphite
Dark Bronze Textured
White
Black

BRIAN

Design Options

SHORT PANEL (15.5”H PANEL, 31”H FIXTURE)

LONG PANEL (31”H PANEL, 46.5”H FIXTURE)

WHT - Matte White

BLK - Matte Black

GR - Graphite

DBT - Dark Bronze Textured

BRIAN
ARCHITECTURAL SCALE, WET-LISTED EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

3000      3000K
3500      3500K

NO PANEL (15.5”H FIXTURE)

Down Light (MT1) Matte Black

Down Light (MT1), Graphite

Down Light (MT1), Enviro Oil-Rubbed Bronze

Down/Up Light (MT2), Matte White

Down/Up Light (MT2), Graphite

Down/Up Light  (MT2), Enviro Oil-Rubbed Bronze

SPECIFICATIONS SUBJECT TO CHANGE, REVISED 04/05/2021

35



LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 (970) 390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.docx  Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Thank you for your consideration.  

 

SIGNED: Michael Pukas 

 

 
 

36

mailto:michael@mppdesignshop.com


Project AddressProject Address
335 Pine Street
Minturn, CO 81645
Parcel Number: 2103-263-18-023 
Booco's Second Addition to Minturn
Block 1, Lot 4

Owner
Nicole Magistro & Zach LockeNicole Magistro & Zach Locke
225 Main Street
UInit C104
Edwards, CO 81632-8145
(970) 390-5159
nicolemagistro@gmail.com
zach_locke@yahoo.com

Architect
mpp design shop, inc. mpp design shop, inc. 
Michael Pukas, AIA
PO Box 288
Gypsum, CO 81637
(970) 390-4931
michael@mppdesignshop.com

General Contractor
tbdtbd

Structural Engineer
tbdtbd

Land Surveyor
Meridian Land Surveying, LLCMeridian Land Surveying, LLC
Eron Watts, PLS
PO Box 2225
Gypsum, CO  81637 
(970) 524-0963 
ewatts.mls@gmail.com

PROJECT DIRECTORYPROJECT DIRECTORY

1.

2.

3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

IRC 402.4.1.1: ALL AIR BARRIER AND THERMAL BARRIERS TO BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S 
INSTRUCITONS.
IRC 402.4.5: ALL IC-RATED RECESSED LIGHTING FIXTURES TO BE SEALED AT HOUSING/INTERIOR FINISH 
AND LABELED TO INDICATE <=2.0 CFM LEAKAGE AT 75 Pa. 
IRC 403.6: AUTOMATIC OR GRAVITY DAMPERS ARE INSTALLED ON ALL OUTDOORS AIR INTAKES AND 
EXHAUSTS
IRC 402.4.1.2: BLOWER DOOR TEST @ 50 Pa. <=5 ACH IN CLIMATE ZONE 7
IRC 402.4.1.2: BLOWER DOOR TEST @ 50 Pa. <=3 ACH IN CLIMATE ZONE 7
IRC 303.2: CONDITIONED BASEMENT WALL INSULATION INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS. 
IRC 303.2: UNVENTED CRAWL SPACE WALL INSULATION INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCITONS
IRC 303.2: WALL INSULATION TO BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS 
IRC 303.1.1.1, 303.2: CEILING INSULATION INSTALLED PER MANUFACURER'S INSTRUCTIONS. BLOWN 
INSULATION MARKED EVERY 300 FT2

ENERGY CODE COMPLIANCE NOTESENERGY CODE COMPLIANCE NOTES

PROJECT LOCATION: 
335 PINE STREET 

MINTURN, CO 81645
Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

.

COVER

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

ABBREVIATIONS

& AND
@ AT
AB ANCHOR BOLT
AC AIR CONDITIONING
ACC ACCESSIBLE
ACOUST ACOUSTICAL
ACT ACOUSTIC CEILING TILE
AD AREA DRAIN
ADJ ADJACENT
AFF ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR
AFG ABOVE FINISHED GRADE
AGGR AGGREGATE
ALT ALTERNATE
ALUM ALUMINUM
ANOD ANODIZED
APC ACOUSTICAL PANEL CEILING
APPROX APPROXIMATE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL
ASPH ASPHALT
ATTN ATTENTION
AUTO AUTOMATIC
AV AUDIOVISUAL

BD BOARD
BIT BITUMINOUS
BLDG BUILDING
BLK BLOCK
BLKG BLOCKING
BM BEAM
BO BOTTOM OF
BOT BOTTOM
BRG BEARING
BRK BRICK
BRKT BRACKET
BSMNT BASEMENT

C CHANNEL
CAB CABINET
CAT CATEGORY
CB CATCH BASIN
CB CEMENT BOARD
CBU CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNIT
CC CENTER TO CENTER
CCTV CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION
CEM CEMENT
CER CERAMIC
CG CORNER GUARD
CH CHILLER
CI CAST IRON
CIP CAST-lN-PLACE
CJ CONTROL JOINT
CL CENTERLINE
CLG CEILING
CLR CLEAR
CNTR COUNTER
CO CLEANOUT
COL COLUMN
CONC CONCRETE
COND CONDITION
CONN CONNECTION
CONST CONSTRUCTION
CONT CONTINUOUS
CONTR CONTRACTOR
COORD COORDINATE
CORR CORRIDOR
CPT CARPET
CT CERAMIC TILE
CTR CENTER
CTSK COUNTERSUNK
CW COLD WATER

(D) DEMOLISH OR DEMOLITION
D DEEP, DEPTH
DBL DOUBLE
DEG DEGREE
DEMO DEMOLISH OR DEMOLITION
DEPT DEPARTMENT
DF DRINKING FOUNTAIN
DIA DIAMETER
DIFF DIFFUSER
DIM DIMENSION
DIMS DIMENSIONS
DISP DISPENSER
DIV DIVISION
DMPF DAMP PROOFING
DN DOWN
DO DOOR OPENING
DR DOOR
DRN DRAIN
DS DOWNSPOUT
DS DOWN SPOUT
DTL DETAIL
DW DISHWASHER
DWG DRAWING
DWR DRAWER

(E) EXISTING
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
E EAST
EA EACH
EB EXPANSION BOLT
EJ EXPANSION JOINT
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRICAL
ELEV ELEVATOR
EMER EMERGENCY
ENCL ENCLOSURE
ENG ENGINEER
EP ELECTRICAL PANEL
EPDM ETHYLENE PROPYLENE

DIENE M-CLASS
EQ EQUAL
EQUIP EQUIPMENT
EXH EXHAUST
EXIST EXISTING
EXP EXPANSION
EXT EXTERIOR

FA FIRE ALARM
FB FACE BRICK
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FD FLOOR DRAIN OR FIRE

DEPARTMENT
FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT

CONNECTION
FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FEC FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET
FF&E FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND

EQUIPMENT
FFB FLUSH FLOOR BOX
FFEL FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION
FH FLAT HEAD
FHC FIRE HOSE CABINET
FIN FINISH
FIXT FIXTURE
FLASH FLASHING
FLR FLOOR

GENERAL NOTES
1 ALL WORK SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL NATIONAL, STATE AND LOCAL

CODES, LAWS, PERMITS AND ORDINANCES, AND SHALL BE PERFORMED TO THE HIGHEST
STANDARDS OF CRAFTSMANSHIP BY JOURNEYMEN OF THE APPROPRIATE TRADES.

2 THESE DOCUMENTS ARE NOT INTENDED TO INCLUDE ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND
SERVICES REQUIRED TO COMPLETE ALL WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR
(G.C.) SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE CONDITIONS BEFORE STARTING WORK.

3 IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE G.C. TO BRING TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT ANY
CONDITIONS WHICH WILL NOT PERMIT CONSTRUCTION ACCORDING TO THE INTENTIONS OF THESE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (CD'S), AND TO NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE IF ANY DISCREPANCIES
APPEAR IN THE CD'S, OR BETWEEN THE CD'S AND EXISTING CONDITIONS.  IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE ARCHITECT TO PROVIDE DETAILS AND/OR DIRECTIONS REGARDING
DESIGN INTENT WHERE IT IS ALTERED BY EXISTING CONDITIONS OR WHERE NEGLECTED IN THE
DOCUMENTS.

4 SHOULD A CONFLICT OCCUR IN OR BETWEEN DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  THE
SPECIFICATIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE, UNLESS A WRITTEN DECISION FROM THE ARCHITECT
HAS BEEN OBTAINED WHICH DESCRIBES A CLARIFICATION OR ALTERNATE METHOD AND/OR
MATERIALS.

5 DIMENSIONS: A) ALL DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.; B) ALL PLAN
DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CONCRETE, FACE OF STUD, AND CENTER LINE OF COLUMN/BEAM,
U.O.N.; C) FLOOR TO FLOOR DIMENSIONS ARE FROM TOP OF PLYWOOD SUBSURFACE TO TOP OF
PLYWOOD SUBSURFACE, U.O.N.; D) VERIFY IN FIELD (V.I.F.) ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS DIMENSIONS,
LOCATIONS AND SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO NEW CONSTRUCTION.

6 THE G.C. SHALL SUBMIT SAMPLES OF ANY MATERIALS PROPOSED FOR SUBSTITUTION TO THE
ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BEFORE THE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED. WORK
SHALL CONFORM TO THE APPROVED SAMPLES.

7 THE G.C. SHALL SUBMIT REQUIRED SHOP DRAWINGS TO THE ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW AND
APPROVAL BEFORE THE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED. WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE
APPROVED SHOP DRAWINGS.

8 THE G.C. SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAFETY AND CARE OF ADJACENT PROPERTIES
DURING CONSTRUCTION, FOR COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE O.S.H.A. REGULATIONS, AND
FOR THE PROTECTION OF ALL WORK UNTIL IT IS DELIVERED COMPLETED TO THE OWNER.

9 THE G.C. SHALL VERIFY AND COORDINATE ALL OPENINGS THROUGH FLOORS, CEILINGS, AND
WALLS WITH ALL ARCHITECTURAL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS.

10 THE JOB SITE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A CLEAN, ORDERLY CONDITION, FREE OF DEBRIS AND
LITTER, AND SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY ENCUMBERED.  EACH SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL
REMOVE ALL TRASH AND DEBRIS AS OF RESULT OF HIS/HER OPERATION UPON COMPLETION OF
HIS/HER WORK.

11 THE G.C. SHALL PERFORM ALL PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION SUCH THAT ALL NEW CONSTRUCTION
FITS FLUSH AND SEAMLESSLY WITH ADJACENT EXISTING CONDITIONS, AND SHALL NOT ENDANGER
ANY EXISTING CONDITIONS OR OTHER WORK.

12 THE G.C. SHALL PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY BLOCKING, BACKING, AND FRAMING FOR LIGHT
FIXTURES, ELECTRICAL UNITS, A.C. EQUIPMENT, RECESSED ITEMS, AND ALL OTHER ITEMS AS
REQUIRED.

13 ALL CONSTRUCTION, STAGING, CONTRACTOR PARKING AND MATERIALS STORAGE SHALL BE
CONFINED TO THE LIMITS OF THE EXISTING DRIVEWAY AND THE IMMEDIATE PERIMETER OF THE
EXISTING BUILDING. ALL ACTIVITY PERFORMED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT SHALL BE CONTAINED
ON THE PROJECT PROPERTY.

14 CHANGES TO THESE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE NOTED IN THE FIELD AND MAINTAINED
ON-SITE FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT FOR CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION.

15 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE TOWN/COUNTY, IF REQUIRED.
16 UTILITY METER LOCATIONS TO BE APPROVED BY UTILITY COMPANIES.
17 ALL INTERIOR NON-BEARING WALLS TO BE 2x4, U.O.N.
18 ALL INTERIOR BEARING WALLS TO BE 2x6, U.O.N. SEE STRUCTURAL DWG'S FOR SPEC'S
19 ALL EXTERIOR WALLS TO BE 2x6, U.O.N. SEE STRUCTURAL DWG'S FOR SPEC'S
20 ALL HORIZONTAL FRAMING DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF WOOD FRAMING, U.O.N.
21 ALL VERTICAL FRAMING DIMENSIONS ARE FROM THE T.O. PLYWOOD, U.O.N.
22 ALL HORIZONTAL DIMENSIONS FOR OPENINGS ARE TO THE CENTER LINE OF R.O.
23 ALL VERTICAL DIMENSIONS FOR OPENINGS ARE TO THE TOP OF R.O.

SITE NOTES
1 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL IN CONFORMANCE WITH

TOWN/COUNTY GUIDELINES.
2 THE CONSTRUCTION LIMIT LINE IS THE CONTRACT LINE. DO NOT DISTURB ANY EXISTING TREES OR

VEGETATION DESIGNATED TO REMAIN OR LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE CONSTRUCTION LIMIT LINE
WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE OWNER AND THE TOWN/COUNTY.

3 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING SITE INFORMATION, INCLUDING STRUCTURES,
UTILITIES, PROPERTY LINES, LIMITS OF ROADWAYS, AND CURBS AND GUTTERS THAT MAY AFFECT
THE SCOPE OF WORK PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE CONSTRUCTION.

4 EXISTING UTILITIES ARE INDICATED FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT INTENDED TO SHOW EXACT
LOCATION. THE ARCHITECT IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
OR STRUCTURES, OR ANYTHING NOT SHOWN OR DETAILED AND INSTALLED BY ANY OTHER
CONTRACT. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UTILITIES AND MAINTAIN THE
LOCATION DURING ALL PHASES OF THE WORK. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES TO UTILITIES OR STRUCTURES AND ANY INJURIES THEREFROM.
RESTORATION OF ANY UTILITIES DAMAGED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE AT THE
GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER.

5 CONFORM TO EAGLE RIVER WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
CONSTRUCTION. PROVIDE SEWER CLEANOUT WITH LOCATION TO BE REVIEWED BY TOWN
ENGINEER.

6 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE DRAWINGS SHOWING PROPOSED UTILITY SERVICE
CONNECTIONS FOR THE ENGINEER'S REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

7 ROAD CUTS AND ANY OTHER CONSTRUCTION IN ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN
GUIDELINES.

8 ALL COMPACTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SOILS REPORT PREPARED BY THE
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.

9 PROVIDE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF ALL DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE
IMPROVEMENTS.

10 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS AS REQUIRED TO PROPERLY PROTECT
AND MAINTAIN HIS WORK FOR THE DURATION OF THIS CONTRACT.

11 THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT SPECIFY SAFETY MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, METHODS OR SEQUENCING,
TO PROTECT PERSONS AND PROPERTY. IT SHALL BE THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO DIRECT AND IMPLEMENT SAFETY OPERATIONS AND PROCEDURES TO
PROTECT THE OWNER, OTHER CONTRACTORS, THE PUBLIC AND OTHERS.

12 ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND ORDINANCES.
13 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL EMPLOY A LICENSED SURVEYOR TO ESTABLISH ALL WORK LINES.
14 CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL STAKE OUT ALL AREAS, INCLUDING WALKS, PAVEMENTS, WALLS, POOLS

AND FENCES AND SHALL OBTAIN THE APPROVAL OF THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEEDING
WITH THE WORK.

15 CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES WITH GRADES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE
ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

16 ALL FINISHED GRADES SHALL PROVIDE FOR NATURAL RUNOFF OF WATER WITHOUT LOW SPOTS
OR POCKETS. SET FLOW LINES ACCURATELY AND PROVIDE A MINIMUM 2.5% GRADIENT UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTES.

17 GRADUALLY ROUND OFF TOPS AND TOES OF ALL PLANTED SLOPES, UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE
IN GRADING DETAILS.

18 GRADE AWAY FROM ALL BUILDINGS AT A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 10% IN UNPAVED AREAS AND
MINIMUM SLOPE OF 2% IN PAVED AREAS.

19 CLEANOUTS SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL CHANGES IN LINES AND/OR GRADE OR THE SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE.

20 CONFORM TO TOWN/COUNTY STANDARDS FOR WATER CONSTRUCTION. MAINTAIN 10 FEET
MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN WATER AND SEWER UNDERGROUND SERVICE PIPES. MAINTAIN
SEVEN FEET MINIMUM COVER AT UNDERGROUND WATER SERVICE AND ASSOCIATED LINES. NEW
CURB STOPS AND SERVICE LINES SHALL BE INSTALLED FOR EACH UNIT. CURB STOPS SHALL
LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY LINE IN A SPOT APPROVED BY THE TOWN PUBLIC WORKS
DIRECTOR.

21 IF UTILITY CONNECTION POINTS ARE NOT KNOWN AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT SUBMISSION,
LOCATIONS TO BE COORDINATED AND APPROVED BY TOWN/COUNTY AND SERVICE PROVIDERS
IN ADVANCE.

SHEET INDEX

. COVER
01 AERIAL VIEWS
02 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS
ILC IMPROVEMENT LOCATION CERTIFICATE
AS101 SITE DEMO, SITE & LANDSCAPE PLANS
A001 SITE & BUILDING ANALYSIS
A002 WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULES
A101 FOUNDATION, MECHANICAL & ROOF

PLANS
A102 LOWER & UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLANS
A201 EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS
A202 WEST & NORTH ELEVATIONS

GC TO COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, AND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION
CODE, AS WELL AS ANY AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE TOWN'S AND/OR COUNTY'S MUNICIAPL
CODE REQUIREMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO;

ENERGY CODE NOTES

CLIMATE ZONE 6B
FENESTRATION U-FACTOR 0.30
SKYLIGHT U-FACTOR 0.55
CEILING R-VALUE 49
WOOD FRAME WALL R-VALUE 20+5 OR 13+10 - CAVITY + CONTINUOUS EXTERIOR
MASS WALL R-VALUE 15/20
FLOOR R-VALUE 30
BASEMENT WALL R-VALUE 15/19 - CONTINUOUS + CAVITY
SLAB R-VALUE & DEPTH 10, 4'
CRAWL SPACE WALL R-VALUE 15/19 - CONTINUOUS + CAVITY
HEATED SLAB ON GRADE R-VALUE 5, 4'

ABBREVIATIONS

FLUOR FLUORESCENT
FND FOUNDATION
FO FACE OF
FP FIRE PROTECTION
FPG FIREPROOFING
FR FIRE RESISTANT
FRC FIBER REINFORCED

CONCRETE
FRT FIRE RETARDANT TREATED
FT FEET/FOOT
FTG FOOTING
FURN FURNITURE
FURR FURRING
FWC FABRIC WALL COVERING
FWP FABRIC WRAPPED PANEL

GA GAUGE
GALV GALVANIZED
GB GRAB BAR
GC GENERAL CONTRACT(OR)
GEN GENERAL
GFRC GLASS FIBER REINFORCED

CONCRETE
GL GLASS
GLAZ GLAZING
GRAN GRANULAR
GRD GROUND
GRFG GLASS FIBER REINFORCED

GYPSUM
GSM GALVANIZED SHEET METAL
GV GAS VALVE
GWB GYPSUM WALL BOARD
GYP GYPSUM

H HIGH/HEIGHT
HB HOSE BIBB
HC HANDICAPPED
HDWD HARDWOOD
HDWR HARDWARE
HGT HEIGHT
HM HOLLOW METAL
HNDRL HANDRAIL
HO HOLD OPEN
HORIZ HORIZONTAL
HR HOUR
HRC HOSE REEL CABINET
HTG HEATING
HVAC HEATING VENTILATION AND

AIR CONDITIONING
HW HOT WATER

ID INSIDE DIAMETER
IN INCH/INCHES
INCAND INCANDESCENT
INCL INCLUDED/INCLUDING
INFO INFORMATION
INSUL INSULATION
INSUL INSULATED OR INSULATION
INT INTERIOR
INTERM INTERMEDIATE
INV INVERT

JAN JANITOR
JC JANITOR'S CLOSET
JST JOIST
JT JOINT

KIT KITCHEN
KO KNOCK OUT

LAM LAMINATE
LAV LAVATORY
LB POUNDS
LLH LONG LEG HORIZONTAL
LLV LONG LEG VERTICAL
LT LIGHT

MAS MASONRY
MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MED MEDIUM
MEMBR MEMBRANE
MFR MANUFACTURER
MH MAN HOLE
MIN MINIMUM
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MO MASONRY OPENING
MR MOISTURE RESISTANT
MTD MOUNTED
MTG MOUNTING
MTL METAL
MULL MULLION

(N) NEW
N NORTH
NA NOT APPLICABLE
NC NOISE CRITERIA
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NO NUMBER
NOM NOMINAL
NON
COMB

NON COMBUSTIBLE

NTS NOT TO SCALE

OA OUTSIDE AIR
OC ON CENTER
OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OD OVERFLOW DRAIN
OFCI OWNER FURNISHED,

CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
OFF OFFICE
OFOI OWNER FURNISHED, OWNER

INSTALLED
OH OVERHEAD
OPNG OPENING
OPP OPPOSITE
ORD OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN

P PAINT
PAV PAVING
PBD PARTICLE BOARD
PC PRECAST
PDF POWER DRIVEN FASTENER
PERF PERFORATED
PERIM PERIMETER
PERP PERPENDICULAR
PI. PLATE
PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLAS PLASTER
PLBG PLUMBING
PLF POUNDS PER LINEAR FOOT
PLYWD PLYWOOD

ABBREVIATIONS

PNL PANEL
PNT PAINT OR PAINTED
POL POLISHED
PR PAIR
PREFAB PREFABRICATED
PROJ PROJECT
PSF POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT
PT POINT
PT PRESSURE TREATED
PTD PAINTED
PTN PARTITION
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

QT QUARRY TILE
QTY QUANTITY

R RADIUS/RISER
RA RETURN AIR
RAD RADIUS
RB RESILIENT BASE
RBR RUBBER
RCP REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
RD ROOF DRAIN
REC RECESSED
RECPT RECEPTACLE
REF REFERENCE
REFR REFRIGERATOR
REG REGISTER
REINF REINFORCED REINFORCING
REL RELOCATE
REM REMOVABLE
REOOM RECOMMENDED
REQ REQUIRE/REQUIRED
REQD REQUIRED
RESIL RESILIENT
REV REVISION/REVISED
RM ROOM
RO ROUGH OPENING
RTD RATED
RTG RATING
RWL RAIN WATER LEADER

S SOUTH
SA SUPPLY AIR
SAF SELF ADHERED FLASHING
SC SOLID CORE
SCHED SCHEDULE
SD STORM DRAIN
SECT SECTION
SF SQUARE FEET/FOOT
SH SPRINKLER HEAD
SHR SHOWER
SHT SHEET
SIM SIMILAR
SM SHEET METAL
SM SURFACE MOUNTED
SP STANDPIPE
SPEC SPECIFIED OR

SPECIFICATION
SPK SPRINKLER OR SPEAKER
SPKR SPEAKER
SQ SQUARE
SS STAINLESS STEEL
SSK SERVICE SINK
STA STATION
STC SOUND TRANSMISSION

COEFFICIENT
STL STEEL
STOR STORAGE
STRG STRINGER
STRUCT STRUCTURE OR STRUCTURAL
SUBCAT SUBCATEGORY
SUSP SUSPENDED
SYM SYMMETRICAL
SYS SYSTEM

T TREAD
T&B TOP AND BOTTOM
T&G TONGUE AND GROOVE
TB TOWEL BAR
TEL TELEPHONE/TELECOM
TELE TELEPHONE
TEMP TEMPERATURE
TEMP TEMPORARY
THK THICKNESS
THRU THROUGH
TKBD TACK BOARD
TLT TOILET
TMPD TEMPERED
TO TOP OF
TOB TOP OF BEAM
TOC TOP OF CONCRETE
TOS TOP OF STEEL
TS TUBE STEEL
TV TELEVISION
TYP TYPICAL

UNFIN UNFINISHED
UNO UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
UON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
URNL URINAL

VAC VENTILATION AND AIR
CONDITIONING

VAR VARIES
VCT VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VERT VERTICAL
VEST VESTIBULE
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD
VP VISION PANEL
VR VAPOR RETARDER
VT VINYL TILE
VWC VINYL WALL COVERING

W WIDE/WEST
W/ WITH
W/O WITHOUT
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WIN WINDOW
WM WIRE MESH
WP WATERPROOF/WATERPROO

FING
WPM WATERPROOF MEMBRANE
WS WEATHER-STRIPPING
WSCT WAINSCOT
WT WEIGHT
WV WATER VALVE
WWF WELDED WIRE FABRIC
WWM WELDED WIRE MESH

VICINITY MAP

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

37



Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

01

AERIAL VIEWS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

1 AERIAL VIEW SOUTHEAST

2 AERIAL VIEW NORTHEAST

3 AERIAL VIEW SOUTHWEST

4 AERIAL VIEW NORTHWEST

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

38



Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

02

PERSPECTIVE VIEWS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

1 PERSPECTIVE SOUTHEAST

2 PERSPECTIVE NORTHEAST

3 PERSPECTIVE SOUTHWEST

4 PERSPECTIVE NORTHWEST

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

39



5-24-23

40



57.0'
58.0'

57.6'
58.0'

60.0'

59.5'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.2'

60.1'

60.4'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

56.4'

57.0'

57.3'

0.2'±

12.6'
9.2'

9.4'

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE

OE

M
EAD

O
W
 STR

EET G
R
AVEL R

O
AD
W
AY

(20' R
.O
.W
.) LOT 4

P.N. 210326318023

335 PINE STREET

5,008 SQ.FT.
0.115 ACRES

LOT 3

PIN
E STR

EET
PAVED

 R
O
AD
W
AY

(50' R
.O
.W
.)

LOT 5

F.F. AT DOORWAY

THRESHOLD
ELEV: 7858.80

2-STORY

WOOD FRAME HOUSE

ADJACENT BUILDING

ADJACENT BUILDING

C
O
VER

ED
 D
EC
K

C
O
N
C
. SID

EW
ALK

C
O
N
C
. C
U
R
B & G

U
TTER

18.0'

18.0'

S.W. COR.
BLOCK 1

MONUMENT IS 0.5'± BELOW GRADE

SET 3.0' WITNESS CORNER

(CORNER LANDS IN CONC.)

(ELEV: 7856.74

N62°45'52"E  99.91'
(N62°40'00"E  100.00')

(N62°40'00"E  100.00')
N62°42'24"E  99.93'

(S27°20'00"E  50.00')
S27°13'48"E  50.17'

(BASIS O
F BEAR

IN
G
S)

S27°20'00"E  149.69'

WV

WV

G

DN

9'
 x

 1
8
'

P
A
R

K
IN

G
S
P
A
C
E

9'
 x

 1
8
'

P
A
R

K
IN

G
S
P
A
C
E

9'
 x

 1
8
'

P
A
R

K
IN

G
S
P
A
C
E

57.0'
58.0'

57.6'
58.0'

60.0'

59.5'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.2'

60.1'

60.4'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

56.4'

57.0'

57.3'

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE

OE

N62°45'52"E  99.91'
(N62°40'00"E  100.00')

(N62°40'00"E  100.00')
N62°42'24"E  99.93'

(S27°20'00"E  50.00')
S27°13'48"E  50.17'

(BASIS O
F BEAR

IN
G
S)

S27°20'00"E  149.69'

WV

WV

G

DN

57.0'
58.0'

57.6'
58.0'

60.0'

59.5'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.2'

60.1'

60.4'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

56.4'

57.0'

57.3'

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE

OE

N62°45'52"E  99.91'
(N62°40'00"E  100.00')

S27°15'20"E  50.07'    (S27°20'00"E  50.00')

(N62°40'00"E  100.00')
N62°42'24"E  99.93'

(S27°20'00"E  50.00')
S27°13'48"E  50.17'

(BASIS O
F BEAR

IN
G
S)

S27°20'00"E  149.69'

WV

WV

G

E

57.0'
58.0'

57.6'
58.0'

60.0'

59.5'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.2'

60.1'

60.4'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

60.3'

56.4'

57.0'

57.3'

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE

OE

N62°45'52"E  99.91'
(N62°40'00"E  100.00')

(N62°40'00"E  100.00')
N62°42'24"E  99.93'

(S27°20'00"E  50.00')
S27°13'48"E  50.17'

(BASIS O
F BEAR

IN
G
S)

S27°20'00"E  149.69'

WV

WV

G

DN

FLOW FLOWFLOW

F
L
O

W

F
L
O

W

FLOW FLOWFLOW

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

NEW CONCRETE DRIVEWAY; 
SLOPE CONTINUOUS FROM 

EDGE OF GARAGE SLAB TO 
EDGE OF ROADWAY

B
O

UN
D

A
R

Y
 T

O
 F

O
UN

D
A
T
IO

N

5
' -

 6
"

BOUNDARY TO FOUNDATION

10' - 6 1/2"
NEW PERMEABLE PAVERS ON
SAND BED

SNOW STORAGE

SNOW STORAGE

6' TALL WOOD FENCE W/ 6x6
POSTS

6' TALL WOOD FENCE W/ 6x6
POSTS

EG: 7859.9'

EG: 7860.0'

FG: 7860.4'

FG: 7860.4'

EG: 7858.4'

NEW STACKED ROCK
RETAINING WALL

NEW PERMEABLE PAVERS ON
SAND BED

NEW STACKED ROCK
RETAINING WALL

SNOW STORAGE
FG: 7858.3'

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

ROOF: 7884.4'

ROOF: 7884.4'

E
Q

E
Q

ROOF: 7883.5'

PROVIDE SNOW RETENTION CLIPS 
AT NORTH SIDE OF ROOF

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

NEW PERMEABLE PAVERS ON
SAND BED

ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO 
BE REVEGETATED WITH 

GRASS SEED MIX. 
A

A

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

EXISTING FENCE 
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FENCE TO BE 
REMOVED

EXISTING CONCRETE 
WALKWAY TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING CONCRETE 
WALKWAY TO REMAIN INTACT

EXISTING WOOD WALKWAY 
TO REMAIN INTACT

EXISTING TREES TO BE 
REMOVED

EXISTING SHED TO BE 
REMOVED

EXISTING TREE TO 
REMAIN INTACT

EXISTING RETAINING WALL & 
FENCE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS BRICK 
PAVERS TO BE RMEOVED

EXISTING TREE TO 
REMAIN INTACT

EXISTING TREE TO 
REMAIN INTACT

EXISTING 
IMPERVIOUS BRICK 
PATIO, RETAINING 
WALLS & STEPS TO 

BE REMOVED

EXISTING BUILDING
NO CHANGES TO 

FOOTPRINT

EXISTING CONCRETE PATIO 
& MASONRY WALLS TO 
REMAIN INTACT

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

SE
TB
AC
K

5'
 - 
0"

SETBACK

10' - 0"

1%

7858.7'

7858.7'

7858.4'7858.5' 7858.3'

7858.3'

7858.3'

7857.0'

7857.2'

3%

5%

1%

1%

2%

7858.6'

7860.22'

7860.3' 7860.5'

7860.5'

TOW: 7860.0'

TOW: 7859.8' TOW: 7859.1'

3%

TO STREET TO BE MAINTAINED

EXISTING GRADE AND SURFACE FLOW

TO STREET TO BE MAINTAINED

EXISTING GRADE AND SURFACE FLOW

3%

PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL SILT 
FENCE AT PROPERTY LINE

PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL SILT 
FENCE AT PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

1.

2.

ALL DISTURBED GROUND AREAS TO BE RESEEDED WITH DROUGHT 
TOLLERANT GRASS SEED MIX. 
ALL NEW TREE, SHRUB, FLOWER BED, GRASS AREAS, ETC. PLANTINGS 
TO HAVE TEMP IRRIGATION FOR 2 YEARS MINIMUM, OR UNTIL 
ESTABLISHED. 

LANDSCAPE NOTESLANDSCAPE NOTES

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

AS101

SITE DEMO, SITE &
LANDSCAPE PLANS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

 1" = 10'-0"
2 SITE PLAN

0 20' 30' 40'10'

Graphic Scale: 1 inch = 10 feet

 1" = 10'-0"
4 LANDSCAPE PLAN

 1" = 10'-0"
1 SITE DEMO PLAN

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

 1" = 10'-0"
3 SITE GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

SILT FENCE

PLANTING SCHEDULE

Type
Mark Count Type Description

A 2 Crab Apple NON-FRUIT BEARING

41



5,008 SF

LOT AREA

1,435 SF

EXISTING LOWER
LEVEL

538 SF

NEW GARAGE

1,437 SF

EXISTING BUILDING
LOT COVERAGE

522 SF

NEW BUILDING LOT
COVERAGE

132 SF

EXISTING FRONT
PORCH COVERAGE

89 SF

EXISTING SIDE
PORCH COVERAGE

68 SF

SNOW STORAGE

59 SF

SNOW STORAGE

90 SF

SNOW STORAGE

1,437 SF

EXISTING BUILDING
LOT COVERAGE

536 SF

NEW BUILDING LOT
COVERAGE

162 SF

SURFACE PARKING
COVERAGE

132 SF

EXISTING FRONT
PORCH COVERAGE

89 SF

EXISTING SIDE
PORCH COVERAGE

32 SF

EXISTING SHED
COVERAGE
VACATED

212 SF

NEW DRIVEWAY
COVERAGE

50 SF

EXISTING WOOD
WALKWAY

COVERAGE

80 SF

EXISTING
CONCRETE
WALKWAY

COVERAGE

315 SF

PERMEABLE
PAVING PATIO
COVERAGE

411 SF

PERMEABLE
PAVING PARKING

COVERAGE

2
0

'-
0

"

9'
-0

"

12 SF

PERMEABLE
LANDING

COVERAGE

18 SF

STEPS AND
LANDING

COVERAGE

18'-0"

LOT SIZE: 0.115 ACRES / 5,008 SF 

DRIVEWAY AREA: 212 SF
SNOW STORAGE REQUIRED
@ 5%: 11 SF
SNOW STORAGE PROPOSED:

BEDROOMS EXISTING: 3
BEDROOMS NEW: 1
TOTAL BEDROOMS PROPOSED: 4
PARKING SPACES REQUIRED: 3
PARKING SPACES PROPOSED: 3 TOTAL - 1 SURFACE, 2 COVERED

SITE AND BUILDING ANALYSISSITE AND BUILDING ANALYSIS

650 SF

NEW UPPER LEVEL
AREA

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A001

SITE & BUILDING
ANALYSIS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE

EXISTING BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 1,437 SF
NEW BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 522 SF

1,959 SF

 1" = 10'-0"
3 LOT AREA

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1 LOWER LEVEL AREA PLAN

 1" = 10'-0"
4 BUILDING LOT COVERAGE

 1" = 10'-0"
5 IMPERVIOUS SURFACE COVERAGE

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE PROPOSED

EXISTING BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 1,437 SF
EXISTING CONCRETE WALKWAY
COVERAGE

80 SF

EXISTING FRONT PORCH COVERAGE 132 SF
EXISTING SIDE PORCH COVERAGE 89 SF
EXISTING WOOD WALKWAY COVERAGE 50 SF
NEW BUILDING LOT COVERAGE 536 SF
NEW DRIVEWAY COVERAGE 212 SF
STEPS AND LANDING COVERAGE 18 SF
SURFACE PARKING COVERAGE 162 SF

2,716 SF

LOT AREA & ALLOWABLE COVERAGE

LOT AREA BUILDING LOT COVERAGE
@ 45%

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE @ 55%

5,008 SF 2,254 SF 2,754 SF

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2 UPPER LEVEL AREA PLAN

NEW BUILDING FLOOR AREA

NEW GARAGE 538 SF
NEW UPPER LEVEL AREA 650 SF
SNOW STORAGE 68 SF
SNOW STORAGE 59 SF
SNOW STORAGE 90 SF
TOTAL BUILDING AREA 1,404 SF

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE
COVERAGE VACATED

EXISTING SHED COVERAGE VACATED 32 SF
32 SF

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

SNOW STORAGE AREA

SNOW STORAGE 68 SF
SNOW STORAGE 59 SF
SNOW STORAGE 90 SF

217 SF

42



Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A002

WINDOW & DOOR
SCHEDULES

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

WINDOW SCHEDULE

Mark Type Description Width Height Head Height U-FACTOR Comments

205 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
207 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
209 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
211 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
215 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS

206 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
208 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
210 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3

212 3 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
216 3 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3

213 4 FIXED 4' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3

214 5 FIXED 4' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3

101 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 11' - 6" <=0.3
201 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
202 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
203 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
204 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
217 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3

102 7 AWNING 4' - 11 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
103 7 AWNING 4' - 11 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3

E101 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E102 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E103 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E104 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E201 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E202 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E105 9 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 4' - 11 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E106 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E107 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E111 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E112 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E113 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E114 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E115 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E108 11 CASEMENT 2' - 2 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E203 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E204 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E205 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E206 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 3" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E110 21 FIXED TRAP 3' - 0" 2' - 0" 9' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E109 22 FIXED TRAP 4' - 6" 3' - 8" 10' - 8" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

TOTAL WINDOW COUNT: 41

WINDOW SCHEDULE SEQUENTIAL

Mark Type Description Width Height Head Height U-FACTOR Comments

211 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
215 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
205 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
207 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
209 1 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3 EGRESS
208 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
210 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
206 2 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 1' - 11 1/2" 9' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
212 3 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
216 3 FIXED 2' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
213 4 FIXED 4' - 11 1/2" 5' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
214 5 FIXED 4' - 11 1/2" 3' - 11 1/2" 11' - 11 1/2" <=0.3
204 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
217 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
203 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
201 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
101 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 11' - 6" <=0.3
202 6 CASEMENT 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 11 1/4" <=0.3
102 7 AWNING 4' - 11 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
103 7 AWNING 4' - 11 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 0" <=0.3
E104 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E103 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E202 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E201 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E102 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E101 8 CASEMENT 1' - 11 1/2" 4' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E105 9 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 4' - 11 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E115 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E114 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E113 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 4' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E111 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E112 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E106 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E107 10 CASEMENT 2' - 5 1/2" 3' - 5 1/2" 6' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E108 11 CASEMENT 2' - 2 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E204 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E205 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 8' - 6" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E206 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 4' - 3" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E203 12 3648 CSMT 2' - 5 1/2" 2' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E110 21 FIXED TRAP 3' - 0" 2' - 0" 9' - 0" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
E109 22 FIXED TRAP 4' - 6" 3' - 8" 10' - 8" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE
TOTAL WINDOW COUNT: 41

EXTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE
Mark Type Description Width Height U-FACTOR Comments

E1A 1 INSWING ENTRY FRENCH
DOOR

3' - 1 7/16" 6' - 10" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E1B 2 SLIDING PATIO DOOR 5' - 11 1/2" 6' - 7 1/2" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

E1C 3 SLIDING PATIO DOOR 7' - 11 1/2" 6' - 7 1/2" <=0.3 FIELD VERIFY EXISTING WINDOW & R.O. SIZE

1A 4 INSWING FLUSH PANEL
DOOR

3' - 0" 7' - 0" <=0.3

1B 4 INSWING FLUSH PANEL
DOOR

3' - 0" 7' - 0" <=0.3

1C 5 OVERHEAD GARAGE
DOOR

18' - 0" 8' - 0" <=0.3

TOTAL EXTERIOR DOOR COUNT: 6

43



DN

DryerWasher

2

A301

1

A303

1

A303

1

A302

1

A301

E1

2

A303

2

A303

N1

1

A304

1

A304

N3

ECED

E3

NB NA

N2

31'-5"

21'-0" 10'-5"

2
2
'-
0

"

21'-0"

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

N1

N3

ED

E3

NA

MECHANICALMECHANICAL

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

N2

2

A301

1

A303

1

A302

1

A301

E1

2

A303

N1

1

A304

N3

ECED

E3

NB NA

E
Q

E
Q

N2

1'
-6

"
1'
-6

"

10
" 
/ 

12
"

10
" 
/ 

12
"

4
" 
/ 

12
"

2" / 12"

31'-5"

2
2
'-
0

"

1'
-6

"

1'-6" 3'-0"

DORMER

14'-0" 4'-0" 1'-6" 1'-6"

6'-0"

1'-6" 4'-6"

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

PROVIDE SNOW RETENTION CLIPS 
AT NORTH SIDE OF ROOF

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A101

FOUNDATION,
MECHANICAL &
ROOF PLANS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2 FOUNDATION PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"
3 MECHANICAL FLOOR PLAN

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 ROOF PLAN

44



UP

UP

DN

Washer

DN

DN

2

A301

1

A303

1

A302

1

A301

E1 E1

2

A303

N1 N1

1

A304

N3 N3

EBEC

EXISTING

22'-2"

EXISTING

28'-4"EXISTING

50'-6"

EXISTING

5'-3"

2
2
'-
0

"

2
8
'-
5
"

ED

E3 E3

EA

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

NB

7'
-3

"
14

'-
9"

EQ EQ

21'-0" 10'-5"

5 1/2" 20'-6 1/2" 9'-11 1/2" 5 1/2"

NA

10'-0" 11'-0"

9'-5"

9'-5"

11
'-
5
 1

/2
"

3
'-
9"

7'
-1

0
 1

/8
"

3
 1

/2
"

3
'-
1"

3
 1

/2
" 3

'-
9 

1/
2
"

1/8" / 12"

T.O. SLAB 7860' - 8 1/2"

T.O. SLAB 7860' - 8 1/2"T.O. SLAB 7860' - 5 1/2"

T.O. SLAB 7860' - 5 1/2"
MECHANICALMECHANICAL

EXISTING BUILDING 
NO CHANGES

3'-6"

4'-1"

MUDROOMMUDROOM

N2 N2

EXISTING EXTERIOR 
WALL

NEW INTERIOR/ 
EXTERIOR WALL

6
'-
0

"

31'-5"

21'-0"

1B 103

1C

102

1A

101

E108 E106E107 E105

E104

E103

E1A

E102

E101

E115E114E113E1CE112E111

E1B

E110

E109

2'-3"10'-0" 5'-4 1/2" 5'-7 1/2"

2

A301

1

A303

1

A302

1

A301

E1 E1

2

A303

N1 N1

1

A304

N3 N3

EBECED

E3 E3

EANB

2
2
'-
0

"

2
2
'-
0

"

R
ID

G
E

E
Q

R
ID

G
E

E
Q

5
 1

/2
"

9'
-2

"
3
 1

/2
"

11
'-
7 

1/
2
"

5
 1

/2
"

NA

21'-0" 10'-5"

2'-5 1/2" 2'-5 1/2"

10'-5"

5 1/2" 12'-8 1/2" 5 1/2" 6'-11" 5 1/2" 9'-11 1/2" 5 1/2"

7'
-6

"
3
'-
6
"

6
'-
0

"
5
'-
0

"
EXISTING BUILDING 

NO CHANGES

MASTER BATHMASTER BATH

MASTERMASTER
CLOSETCLOSET

MASTERMASTER
BEDROOMBEDROOM

N2 N2

18
'-
0

"
4
'-
0

"

3'-6"

3 1/2"

3'-1 1/2"

5 1/2"

3'-6"

5
 1

/2
"

S
T
A
IR

3
'-
6
"

3
 1

/2
"

6
'-
1"

3
 1

/2
"

6
'-
11

"
5
 1

/2
"

4'-0" 6'-5"

3'-0"

3
'-
10

"
5
'-
4
"

LANDING

3'-6"

3
'-
7"3'-3"

3'-0"

DORMER

14'-0" 4'-0"

31'-5"

E
Q

  
- 

R
ID

G
E

E
Q

  
- 

R
ID

G
E

31'-5"

2'-3"

2
'-
3
"

15'-4 1/2" 5'-7 1/2"

209210

207208

205206

211

212 214

213 215

216

7" 7"

217

201

202

203204

E204

E205

E203

E206

E201

E202

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A102

LOWER & UPPER
LEVEL FLOOR

PLANS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

45



2

A301

1

A302

1

A301E1 N1

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

N3

PLATE 1
7879' - 5 1/2"

GARAGE
7860.47'

PLATE 2
7883.98'

E3

LEVEL 3
7871' - 5 1/2"

LANDING
7863' - 2"

8
'-
0

"
11

'-
0

"
1'
-8

"

N2

E
Q

E
Q

R
O

O
F
 H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 M

ID
-P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

2
5
'-
0

 1
/2

"

3

5

6

5

4

E101 E102

E1A

E103 E104

E201 E202

201 202

7

7

10

LEVEL 2
7866' - 9 1/2"

1

A303
2

A303

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

1

A304 EBEC

PLATE 1
7879' - 5 1/2"

GARAGE
7860.47'

PLATE 2
7883.98'

ED EANB

LEVEL 3
7871' - 5 1/2"

LANDING
7863' - 2"

NA

8
'-
0

"
11

'-
0

"
1'
-8

"

EXISTING DWELLINGPROPOSED ADDITION

1

3

5

4

2

8

6

5

1B

103

211 213 215

216214212

217

E111 E112

E1C

E206

E113 E114 E115

7

7

7

10

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A201

EAST & SOUTH
ELEVATIONS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 EAST ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2 SOUTH ELEVATION

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

EXTERIOR METERIAL LEGEND

Key Material Manufacturer Model Color Finish Notes
1 ASPHALT SHINGLES 1 GRAY LIFE TIME WARARNTY
2 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY FACTORY PAINT
3 WOOD FASCIA WHITE PAINT
4 VERTICAL WOOD SIDING W/ NICKEL GAP WHITE PAINT
5 WOOD TRIM WHITE PAINT
6 WINDOWS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
7 NEW WINDOWS & DOORS AT EXISTING

BUILDING
BLACK FACTORY PAINT

8 HEAVY TIMBER BEAMS WHITE PAINT
9 OVERHEAD GARAGE DOOR BLACK FACTORY PAINT
10 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE Alva Brian, 15.5" HIGH,

NO PANEL
MATTE BLACK POWDER COAT DARK SKY COMPLIANT

46



2

A301

1

A302

1

A301 E1N1

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

N3

PLATE 1
7879' - 5 1/2"

GARAGE
7860.47'

PLATE 2
7883.98'

E3

LEVEL 3
7871' - 5 1/2"

LANDING
7863' - 2"

8
'-
0

"
11

'-
0

"
1'
-8

"

N2

E
Q

E
Q

R
O

O
F
 H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 M

ID
-P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

2
4
'-
4
 1

/2
"

3

5

4

6

5

2

8

9

206

205 207

208 210

209

1C

E109

E110

E1B

E205
7

10

LEVEL 2
7866' - 9 1/2"

1

A303
2

A303

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

LEVEL 1
7858.80'

1

A304EB EC

PLATE 1
7879' - 5 1/2"

GARAGE
7860.47'

PLATE 2
7883.98'

EDEA NB

LEVEL 3
7871' - 5 1/2"

LANDING
7863' - 2"

NA

1'
-8

"
11

'-
0

"
8
'-
0

"

1

3

5

4

8

6

5

PROPOSED ADDITIONEXISTING DWELLING

E203

E105

E106 E107 E108

101

203 204

1A

102

7

7

10

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

m
pp
 d
es
ig
n 
sh
op
, i
nc
. 

PO
 B
ox
 2
88

G
yp
su
m
, C
O
 8
16
37

(9
70
) 3
90
-4
93
1

m
ic
ha
el
@
m
pp
d
es
ig
ns
ho
p.
co
m

Designed by:

© 2023 mpp design shop, inc. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. IS THE SOLE OWNER AND 
AUTHOR OF THE INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSICAL 
PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN OF THE PROJECT AND 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, CONSISTING OF THE 
DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN. 
MPP DESIGN SHOP, INC. GRANTS THE CLIENT OF 
THE PROJECT PERMISSION TO USE THE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE SOLELY FOR CONSTRUCTING AND 
MAINTAINING THE PROJECT AT THE LOCATION 
INDICATED HEREIN. REUSE, REPRODUCTION OR 
PUBLICATION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OF THE 
INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, BY ANY OTHER ENTITY 
AND/OR AT ANY OTHER LOCATION IS PROHIBITED, 
AND IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE 
COPYRIGHT LAWS. 

A202

WEST & NORTH
ELEVATIONS

2207

mpp

mpp

M
ag
ist
ro
-L
oc
ke
 R
es
id
en
ce

A
d
d
iti
on

33
5 
Pi
ne
 S
tre
et

M
in
tu
rn
, C
O
 8
16
45

Pa
rc
el
 N
um
be
r: 
21
03
-2
63
-1
8-
02
3

Bo
oc
o’
s 2
nd
 A
d
d
iti
on
 to
 M
in
tu
rn
, B
lo
ck
 1
, L
ot
 4

mpp

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 WEST ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2 NORTH ELEVATION

## DescriptionDescription DateDate
1 DRB 05/01/23
2 DRB Re-sub 05/18/23
3 DRB Re-sub 05/28/23

EXTERIOR METERIAL LEGEND

Key Material Manufacturer Model Color Finish Notes
1 ASPHALT SHINGLES 1 GRAY LIFE TIME WARARNTY
2 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY FACTORY PAINT
3 WOOD FASCIA WHITE PAINT
4 VERTICAL WOOD SIDING W/ NICKEL GAP WHITE PAINT
5 WOOD TRIM WHITE PAINT
6 WINDOWS BLACK FACTORY PAINT
7 NEW WINDOWS & DOORS AT EXISTING

BUILDING
BLACK FACTORY PAINT

8 HEAVY TIMBER BEAMS WHITE PAINT
9 OVERHEAD GARAGE DOOR BLACK FACTORY PAINT
10 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE Alva Brian, 15.5" HIGH,

NO PANEL
MATTE BLACK POWDER COAT DARK SKY COMPLIANT

47



To: Planning Commission

From: Scot Hunn, Planning Director

Date: February 15, 2023

Re: Minturn Community Plan

This memo is being provided to the Planning Commission as a reference and guide during future
discussions with staff aimed at educating the Planning Commission and the community on the
goals, policies, and recommended action items of the newly adopted 2023 Minturn Community
Plan, the Town’s guiding policy document that will provide direction to Town staff, as well as
elected and appointed officials when faced with land use, economic development, transportation,
or other decisions in the future.

Staff realizes that the Planning Commission is familiar with the new community plan after
participating in its creation and reviewing it during final adoption hearings. However, staff and
the Planning Commission are now charged with using and interpreting this plan when reviewing
specific land use or development proposals, or when providing direction to staff regarding
projects or initiatives involving Town resources.

In short, we have a new plan and we need to start understanding how best to use it in our roles as
staff and Planning Commissioners to produce the results desired by the Town’s residents,
stakeholders, and decision makers alike.

This memo/guide is organized by the chapters from the Community Plan and includes each
“Objective” statement (from each chapter) along with the recommended action steps that follow
each objective. For ease of reference, staff has highlighted each Objective while also highlighting
those action steps that have the most relevance or impact on the Planning Commission’s role and
duties.

Spoiler Alert: There are many objectives and action steps that will have bearing on the Planning
Commission and how it works with staff and stakeholders and, importantly, how it considers
each new development proposal in the future when it comes to findings such as “conformance
with the Community Plan” as a deciding factor to approve or deny new proposals.

Reminder: Although there may be a recommended action step for the Town to consider, this
does not mean that those actions will be carried out, or that they will be achieved in the exact
manner in which they were recommended. Recommendations are the result of public input, as
well as input from the staff and the Planning Commission during the year-long process used to
create the Community Plan. They may not reflect the values or desires of individual Planning
Commissioners, staff members, or residents.

1

48



Nevertheless, they are important and based on months of analysis, gathering of input, and
professional advice from qualified consultants hired by the Town to guide decision making and
complete the 2023 Community Plan. Therefore, it is important to consider each in context to the
overall goals and policy objectives captured in the 2023 Community Plan, and to remember that
each may not be weighted the same or carry the same priority as other objectives and action
steps.

______________________________________________________________________________

Chapter 1: Smart Land Use & Practical Zoning

Objective 1.1: Provide and follow a cohesive, forward-thinking land use plan for the Town.

The recommended zoning maps on pages 23 and 24, consolidate districts, support new attainable
housing and economic development, and preserve community character. While increases in unit
count may be allowed in some areas, it is anticipated that any such changes would be relatively
limited and occur slowly as the town is nearing full build-out, particularly along Highway 24
from the 100 Block south. Should significant redevelopment occur, and as the Town is
approaching its water tap/SFE limit, the Town should update the allowable uses by right. It is
recommended that the Town of Minturn expediently begin the rezoning and code update process.

● Action 1.1.1 Adopt future zoning map (page 23/24) and associated recommended zoning
districts and requirements, as stated in this section.

● Action 1.1.2 Implement the adopted 100 Block Design Standards and Guidelines
Appendix B insert.

● Action 1.1.3 Consider establishing minimum and maximum setbacks in mixed-use and
residential districts. This requirement is intended to encourage a visually pleasing
development pattern with slightly varied setbacks and to address a current misalignment
between lot coverage and setback requirements on several lots in town.

Objective 1.2: Promote a fairer, simplified development process in Minturn.

In the development process, it is important to limit unnecessary barriers while still undergoing a
rigorous review. Barriers can be related to the process that the developer or landowner must
undergo or site requirements.

● Action 1.2.1 Across all zone districts where multifamily is allowed as a use by right, at or
above 15 total units, the project would need to go through the PUD process. However, if
the project is a redevelopment of a lot already at or above 15 total units, it should not
need to go through the PUD process. This allows smaller projects in which local impacts
would be minor to proceed efficiently and at a lower cost to the developer, which allows
these projects to provide the housing at more attainable prices. With a higher threshold
for the number of units, the PUD process would allow for greater design flexibility,
assurance of property planning, and further scrutiny of potential impacts, such as access
and impacts to neighboring properties.

2

49



● Action 1.2.2 Explore reducing parking requirements for both commercial and residential
uses. Focus efforts on areas with good connectivity to transit or with ample on-street
parking.

● Action 1.2.3 Resume efforts to revisit the Article 22 nonconformities section to
encourage flexibility and appropriate expansions. The goals of this update should be to
maintain historic resources, incentivize reinvestment in older properties, increase
accessibility of the property, and promote community character. Specific updates to
nonconformity standards should be reviewed by the Town Council and Planning
Commission.

● Action 1.2.4 Consider implementing a lot coverage bonus of 15% for the development of
deed restricted ADUs in residential and/or mixed-use districts.

Objective 1.3: Increase resident accessibility to zoning and land use information.

It is important that the future code and zoning map be accessible to residents so that they
understand what they are allowed to do with their properties.

● Action 1.3.1 Provide clear and user-friendly resources for the public that explain
Minturn’s zoning, such as a citizen’s guide or interactive zoning map.

● Action 1.3.2 Clarify that residents are allowed to make upgrades to non-conforming
structures, with limitations.

● Action 1.3.3 Increase access to and awareness of educational and financial resources
(e.g., grants, tax credits) available to support historic preservation (federal and state).

● Action 1.3.4 Continue to work with local fire mitigation entities and property owners to
address any areas with increased fire risk; direct density to appropriate areas away from
hazards such wildfires and flooding.

● Action 1.3.5 Establish a walkable, cohesive development pattern that enables residents
and visitors to access parks and the riverfront from Minturn’s Old Town and surrounding
neighborhoods.

Chapter 2: A Thriving 100 Block

Objective 2.1: Implement a framework for redevelopment and growth in the 100 Block that
contributes to Minturn’s character and economic development.

The Design Standards and Guidelines within Appendix B of the Town Code outline a framework
for the 100 Block that is both practical and inspiring. To achieve the vision for the 100 Block
described in this chapter, the Town of Minturn should use the Design Standards and Guidelines
to guide future development/redevelopment efforts.

● Action 2.1.1 Ensure that future ordinances and land use practices for the 100 Block align
with the framework established by the 100 Block Design Standards and Guidelines.

● Action 2.1.2 Distribute the Design Standards and Guidelines to all developers and
property owners pursuing projects within the 100 Block and/or in the recommended
Mixed Use 1 zoning district (See Chapter 1: Smart Land Use & Practical Zoning).

● Action 2.1.3 Provide technical assistance in interpreting the 100 Block Design Standards
and Guidelines to property owners as needed and appropriate.

3

50



● Action 2.1.4 Continue efforts to organize business and property owners around the
formation of a Downtown Development Authority (DDA); see Chapter 3: An
Economically Vibrant Community for additional details.

● Action 2.1.5 Ensure that ground floor uses are dedicated to commercial services that
generate retail sales and/or lodging tax.

Objective 2.2: Identify and preserve key historic resources and landmarks in the 100 Block
area.

Future efforts to preserve and promote historic resources in Minturn will no doubt include
properties within the 100 Block area. To ensure protection of key historic resources, the Town
should establish and codify standards related to historic resources. For further information
related to historic character in Minturn, see Chapter 4: Attainable Housing & Historic
Character.

● Action 2.2.1 Use the 100 Block Design Standards and Guidelines as a basis for
identifying key historic features and qualities in the 100 Block area.

● Action 2.2.2 Develop an official list of historic properties and landmarks, including those
in the 100 Block; collaborate with property owners to highlight these special locations
with maps and signage as appropriate.

● Action 2.2.3 Continue to explore a Historic Preservation Policy for Minturn; ensure that
future historic preservation policies remain compatible with the 100 Block Design
Standards and Guidelines.

● Action 2.2.4 Allow modifications to historic and traditional structures that do not
conform to code standards; support the preservation of historic facades and modern
improvements to properties.

Objective 2.3: Communicate a vision for the 100 Block area that is informed by community
input and resonates with residents and visitors alike.

The Town of Minturn has invested in extensive community engagement related to the 100 Block
and its design. Following these engagement efforts, the Town has identified a clear vision for the
100 Block area as a well-connected, charming and walkable centerpiece of the community. The
Design Standards and Guidelines will enable the implementation of this vision. At this stage, the
Town should enhance the branding and wayfinding of the 100 Block area as part of the
implementation of the 100 Block vision. See Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation, and
Connectivity for a discussion of signage related to parking and vehicle circulation in the 100 to
400 Blocks.

● Action 2.3.1 Initiate a wayfinding plan for the 100 Block area; ensure that signage and
wayfinding elements follow a consistent style that is compatible with the broader area
and Minturn’s heritage (e.g. mining and railroad) and highlight key locations and
amenities, such as access points to the Eagle River and nearby trailheads.

● Action 2.3.2 Codify standards for signage in the Old Town to accompany the 100 Block
Design Standards and Guidelines document.

● Action 2.3.3 Create visitor-oriented maps and materials that illustrate the 100 Block area
and the businesses and experiences it offers.

4

51



Objective 2.4: Address parking and circulation issues and promote pedestrian and bike
access to and within the 100 Block.

With many businesses, residences, and amenities in the area, the 100 Block is a popular
destination within Minturn. Future planning efforts for the 100 Block should account for
projected parking and transit needs. Walking and biking should be prioritized as transportation
modes within the 100 Block. See Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation, and Connectivity for
further detail on these topics.

● Action 2.4.1 Establish one-way shared streets on Williams St. and Eagle River St.;
initiate a redesign of these streets to meet the vision including special paving, additional
lighting, and signage that conveys changes and reduces the vehicle speed limit to promote
traffic safety.

● Action 2.4.2 Provide infrastructure and amenities that support walking and biking, such
as sidewalks, bollards or curb extensions, paths, benches, bike racks, and a bike
wash/repair station, within the 100 Block area.

● Action 2.4.3 Collaborate with ECO Transit on future enhancements to transit access from
the 100 Block area; facilitate transit trips by publicizing bus schedules in prominent
areas.

● Action 2.4.4 Provide “loading only” areas along Main Street so deliveries to businesses
can use Main Street instead of putting large truck travel onto narrow streets.

● Action 2.4.5 Implement a “Pedestrian Priority Zone” using signage in the 100-Block area
to indicate that vehicles should travel cautiously and that pedestrians have the
right-of-way.

Objective 2.5: Support the vitality and affordability of the 100 Block by incentivizing
second-story residential development, ADUs and infill.

The 100 Block is currently mostly built out and its 25’ lot pattern does limit the footprint of
individual property development. There may be future opportunities to encourage second-story
residential, Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and infill development in the area. See Chapter 4:
Attainable Housing & Historic Character for a detailed discussion of Minturn’s projected future
housing needs.

● Action 2.5.1 Allow ADUs as a use-by-right within the 100 Block; discourage garages
facing the street.

● Action 2.5.2 Provide incentives to encourage affordable residential development for
long-term residents in the 100 Block area.

Objective 2.6: Invest in continuous placemaking improvements to support the 100 Block as
a vibrant, central community gathering place; improve connectivity to the riverfront area
and nearby amenities.

Placemaking efforts can help residents and visitors feel connected to a place and to their
broader community. Future enhancements to the 100 Block should include placemaking elements
that support social and cultural life in Minturn and craft a distinct, special identity for the 100
Block area.

5

52



● Action 2.6.1 Support resident-led efforts to create inviting spaces, such as courtyards,
pedestrian passageways, and gardens on residential and/or commercial properties. Refer
project proponents to the design examples provided in the 100 Block Design Standards
and Guidelines Appendix B insert (pages 17 and 18).

● Action 2.6.2 Encourage the development of gathering spaces and community activities as
identified in the Framework diagram.

● Action 2.6.3 Ensure that wayfinding signage highlights the Grouse Creek and Game
Creek trailheads to the north of the 100 Block; prioritize pedestrian and bicycle
connectivity to these areas from the 100 Block.

Chapter 3: An Economically Vibrant Community: Commercial Development
& Industry

Objective 3.1: Leverage the Town’s natural and recreational amenities, history, and arts
and cultural assets for economic development.

The Town has several local and immediately adjacent recreational opportunities including the
Eagle River, hiking and mountain biking trails on surrounding public lands, the Minturn Mile
backcountry ski run, Maloit Park, and new addition of the Minturn Bike Park as well as
anticipated extension of the paved regional ECO trail. The Town hosts regular endurance sports
events and has a popular river frontage for fishing and other water recreation (kayaking,
tubing). All of these amenities position Minturn as a recreation hub – potentially for a unique
recreational community that is not interested in the busier, more developed resort options. These
assets can attract people who will spend money at local businesses, and create the quality of life
that attracts businesses and entrepreneurs.

● Action 3.1.1 Promote Minturn as a recreation destination by continuing to develop
recreational assets and promoting events. Continue to improve pedestrian and bicycle
connectivity between recreational assets (trailheads, facilities) and the town’s business
districts.

● Action 3.1.2 Sponsor “arts crawls” or other community events in the Old Town area that
encourage residents and visitors to support local craftspeople and Main Street businesses;
coordinate with Vail Valley Art Guild as a regional resource for collaboration and
support.

● Action 3.1.3 Continue to support the development of lodging concentrated in the 100
Block and Old Town areas as well as for future development in the Dowd Junction area.

● Action 3.1.4 Continue to assess Minturn’s industries and demographics relative to
regional economic trends; conduct an annual strategic call with the Vail Valley
Partnership.

● See Chapter 7: Quality of Life, Recreation & An Inviting Public Realm for additional
strategies that can support and broaden Minturn’s recreational opportunities. The
marketing strategies outlined below under Objective 3.2 are also relevant to this
objective. Also see additional strategies in Chapter 1: Smart Zoning and Practical Land
Use regarding the continued provision of light industrial opportunities in Minturn.

Objective 3.2: Improve the visibility of Minturn to visitors through marketing and
expanded transit service.

6

53



Minturn offers a unique visitor experience in the Eagle River Valley that differs from the
resort-centric settings of Vail and Beaver Creek. Strategic and targeted marketing on social
media and in major lodging businesses and concierge services could generate more exposure
and visitation for Minturn, capitalizing on Minturn’s unique assets. In addition, direct frequent
transit service would enable more guests to visit Minturn for restaurants and shopping. Transit
service would also benefit locals by offering other options for accessing the ski areas and
surrounding communities.

● Action 3.2.1 Actively participate in future planning within the Regional Transit Authority
to advocate for increased and flexible service options to current and future retail centers
within Minturn, including the 100 Block, Old Town and Dowd Junction.

● Action 3.2.2 Prioritize future expansions and improvements for bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure and amenities to connect current and future retail centers of the community,
including the 100 Block, Old Town, and Dowd Junction; encourage multimodal
connectivity between destinations in Minturn.

● Action 3.2.3 As recommended in the Town’s Economic Development Strategic Plan,
develop a half-day itinerary for visitors to Minturn. Highlight multimodal transit options
on this itinerary.

● Action 3.2.4 Support the development and implementation of a clear and cohesive
marketing strategy that capitalizes on Minturn as a unique and authentic community that
serves as a gateway to a variety of recreational opportunities throughout the region. This
effort can be an initiative of a new DDA.

● See Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation, & Connectivity for additional information
regarding transportation improvements.

Objective 3.3: Pursue land use changes that support Minturn’s tax base and economic
growth; plan future development on important catalyst sites, including Dowd Junction.

The approximately 15-acre Dowd Junction property is currently owned by the U.S. Forest
Service (USFS), which is interested in exchanging the property with a local government as they
want to consolidate administrative and maintenance facilities. The Town has been in discussions
with USFS on this possibility. The site’s location at the intersection of I-70 and Hwy 24
contributes to its high visibility, making it a good location for Transit-Oriented Development
(TOD), including anchor retail and lodging. The site is also a gateway to nearby recreational
attractions, such as the Meadow Mountain trails, which connect to other trails within the Eagle
River Valley. Future development could combine retail, hospitality, and recreation elements as
well as key transportation improvements to create a hub connecting Minturn and the broader
region. See Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation, & Connectivity for additional information
regarding transportation improvements at Dowd Junction.

The Union Pacific Railroad owns property surrounding its right-of-way off North Main Street. If
a strategic partnership or deal with U.P. can be reached in the future, this area represents a
significant redevelopment opportunity. The Town should continue to engage in discussions with
U.P. on these properties. It needs to be recognized that the Town has made continuous efforts to
work with U.P. on this topic. Railroads are often reluctant to give up property as they value the
potential for future use.

7

54



● Action 3.3.1 Continue to pursue ownership of the Dowd Junction property and planned
development of the area as Transit-Oriented Development.

● Action 3.3.2 Consider pursuing the development of a Sub-Area Master Plan to establish
the highest and best use of U.P. property for the Minturn community, particularly the area
adjacent to the Minturn North PUD and current municipal lot which is leased from U.P.
Seek out U.P.’s involvement in this process.

Objective 3.4: Implement strategies to establish organized economic development capacity,
address placemaking and infrastructure investment costs, and support grassroots economic
development.

The Town of Minturn has a critical role to play in ensuring the viability and sustainability of a
healthy economy. Some strategies, such as supportive zoning and land use regulations, are more
obvious and feasible for municipal responsibility. Other strategies are harder to accommodate
within the municipality’s constrained resources and staffing capacity. Acknowledging this
challenge and need, the Town can play an active role in establishing creative solutions to expand
capacity and funding for broader economic development initiatives and outcomes.

● Action 3.4.1 Support ongoing efforts to create a Downtown Development Authority
(DDA) to help fund public infrastructure and placemaking projects.

● Action 3.4.2 Consider establishing and supporting small business grant programs to help
with startup or maintenance costs; even small capital grants or low/ no interest loans for
items like signs, equipment or fixtures can be helpful. This could be an initiative of a new
DDA with the potential for supplemental support from the Town.

● Action 3.4.3 Build on the recommendations and conclusions of the Economic
Development Strategic Plan – including an update to the plan – to more thoroughly
address the role of various economic partners in the town and in Eagle River Valley, and
to establish specific and up-to-date business and organizational strategies. This could be a
joint effort of the Town and a new DDA.

Objective 3.5: Evaluate options to increase the Town’s financial resources and specifically
to provide stable, attainable housing for Minturn’s residents and workforce.

The Town’s ability to follow through on important initiatives and offer community services
depends on its fiscal health. Being able to keep up with infrastructure maintenance and to build
new projects or amenities that businesses and residents need and would like requires funding.
The Town has limited financial resources and it is difficult to keep up with these demands. In
addition, the availability of housing that is attainable to town residents and workers is critical to
support economic and community vitality. During the Open House conducted during this
planning process, participants noted that some Minturn residents have been relocating
down-valley because they cannot find housing they can afford in Minturn. This results in critical
loss to the social and economic fabric of the Minturn community. Bolstering the Town’s tax base
through a variety of mechanisms will ensure that all these important facets of the community can
adequately support one another. Additional strategy ideas for creative revenue streams can be
found in other chapters in this plan, such as impact fees, short term rental fees, parking fees,
local sustainability gift card programs, and others. See Chapter 4: Attainable Housing &
Historic Character for additional housing-specific strategies.

8

55



● Action 3.5.1 Review all user fees to ensure they are capturing the cost of the service
provided, including utility rates.

● Action 3.5.2 Consider targeted tax increases (property and/or sales tax) to be dedicated to
specific functions such as housing, economic development, sustainability, or
infrastructure.

Objective 3.6: Ensure that the Town’s zoning and development code supports and
encourages commercial development and redevelopment in key commercial districts while
preserving historic character.

The Town’s zoning code has been identified as an impediment to re-investment and development
in Minturn. There are also concerns that too much incentive for development will compromise
the small town and historic character – an asset of its own – that distinguishes Minturn from
other places. The Town should continue working on zoning and design options that balance
development incentives with community character.

The Town should also consider broadening zoning to allow commercial and mixed-use
development further south along Main Street, as described in the zoning chapter of this plan.
This could help create more space for attracting businesses and a larger critical mass of
business activity along Main Street over time.

● See Chapter 1: Smart Land Use & Practical Zoning for action items.

Objective 3.7: Continue investing in street design, streetscape, and safety projects that
contribute to the appeal of commercial areas in Minturn.

As discussed in the Central Concepts section above and in Chapter 2: A Thriving 100 Block,
streetscape improvements and novel ideas such as shared streets can improve an area’s overall
appeal, sense of place, and business activity. Increasing pedestrian activity and safety in the Old
Town area and throughout town – a desirable goal in and of itself – will help encourage foot
traffic and spending at local businesses. Planned multi-use path connections, wayfinding
signage, and additional bicycle infrastructure will help to reduce the perceived distances
between neighborhoods and businesses. The resulting system will foster economic and social
activity in downtown Minturn, benefiting businesses, residents, and visitors.

● See Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation, & Connectivity for action items.

Objective 3.8: Continue working to address the capacity of the Town’s water system and
need for critical maintenance.

As noted in Chapter 5: Water Infrastructure, Hazard Mitigation & Sustainability, the Town’s
water system needs more than $20 million in infrastructure investment to make repairs to the
system and increase capacity. The future of development in Minturn (both commercial and
residential) hinges on a sustainable supply of water to the town. At present, the Town has a
moratorium on most development due to these needs. Expansions to the water supply may
involve the execution of the 2019 Water Capital Improvement Plan combined with the acquisition
of new water rights. The Town needs to prioritize these critical investments and continuously
manage its water supply to support economic growth.

9

56



● See Chapter 5: Water Infrastructure, Hazard Mitigation & Sustainability for action items.

Chapter 4: Attainable Housing & Historic Character: Housing Barriers,
Trends & Policies

Objective 4.1: Continue implementing the recommendations of the 2019 Housing Action
Plan.

As indicated in the Existing Conditions & Issues Section above, the Town has already
accomplished two of the nine prioritized and recommended tools laid out in the 2019 Housing
Action Plan, one of which was identified as a “Tier One” action item. The 2019 Housing Action
Plan contains seven remaining priority recommendations that remain relevant today. They are
organized into tiers of priority:

● Action 4.1.1 Implement remaining Tier One recommendations in the 2019 Housing
Action Plan.

○ Tier One
■ Revisit and update current ADU regulations, including:

● Broaden areas where Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are
allowed

● Streamline the permitting/review process and consider waiving or
deferring fees when there will be a deed restriction

● Loosen parking requirements where applicable and consider
creative off-site or public transit alternatives

● Consider expanding or removing the size cap as applicable and
revisit dimensional requirements

● Consider waiving water tap fees with local deed restriction on
long-term rentals

● Develop and adopt policies for negotiating deed restricted housing
in annexation agreements. Although future annexation
opportunities may be limited, having standards in place if they do
occur will ensure that the Town can effectively use these instances
to meet community needs and housing goals.

● Action 4.1.2 Implement remaining Tier Two recommendations in the 2019 Housing
Action Plan

○ Tier Two
■ Collaborate with The Valley Home Store (TVHS), which currently offers

down-payment and mortgage assistance to Eagle County residents, to
ensure that Minturn residents are aware of this resource.

■ Consider establishing a supplementary Minturn local assistance fund.
■ Consider adopting a density or Floor Area Ratio (FAR) bonus for the

inclusion of deed restricted housing in new development.
■ Consider partnering with private developers to create new community

housing on available Town-owned land. An inventory of such parcels is
provided in the 2019 Housing Plan but further analysis and consideration
is necessary.

10

57



■ Partner with regional organizations such as NWCCOG and Energy
Outreach Colorado at Walking Mountains and/or establish a local program
to share resources and support local housing rehabilitation, weatherization,
and energy efficiency projects.

Objective 4.2: Update the 2019 Housing Action Plan goals regularly and in response to
county-led housing needs assessments and changes in AMI.

Economic conditions that affect housing can change quickly and unexpectedly. While Minturn
can rely on solid guidance from their 2019 Housing Action Plan and further guidance from this
plan, it is important for officials to adapt to circumstances as they change. This adaptable
approach will ensure that Minturn can adjust priorities and strategies to align with local and
regional housing needs.

● Action 4.2.1 Monitor Eagle County and Eagle County Housing & Development
Authority publications and other publicly available data from sources such as HUD to
stay up-to-date on regional housing needs. Use these indicators to inform changes in
circumstances that may require adjustments to Minturn’s housing strategy.

● Action 4.2.2 Update Minturn’s Housing Action Plan by 2025. The 2019 Plan is set to
guide housing for 3-5 years.

● Action 4.2.3 Conduct periodic development code reviews to promote innovative and
smaller homes, including ADUs.

● Action 4.2.4 Continuously support historic preservation to maintain the Town’s unique
housing stock.

Objective 4.3: Consider new housing strategies, such as buy-down programs.

In a buy-down program, the Town would purchase deed restrictions from current homeowners.
The Towns of Breckenridge and Vail are using this approach, and the market for a deed
restriction is about one third the market value price of the home. Some homeowners take
advantage of the program to get cash to pay off a mortgage, avoid foreclosure, do needed
repairs, or to age in-place in their home. The Town then holds a deed restriction on the home,
typically limited to full-time residents working, in this case, in Eagle County. This program may
be a good match for Minturn with its older housing stock and somewhat older population than
the County as a whole. With limited growth potential, a buy down program may be the most
effective way to preserve and create opportunities for full-time resident housing.

● Action 4.3.1 Investigate the viability of a buy-down program in Minturn including
identifying a funding source.

● Action 4.3.2 Broaden the application of a buy-down program to include historic
preservation renovations of homes, so long as they are deed restricted to full-time
residents.

Objective 4.4: Increase the amount of local funding available for full-time resident housing
through new fees and/or voter-approved taxes.

The most successful programs for maintaining or increasing the supply of resident housing have
a reliable dedicated funding source. Rather than relying on new development, a tax dedicated to

11

58



housing enables a community to proactively plan and fund projects or initiatives. The Town
should monitor political support for a modest mill levy or sales tax dedicated to housing. While
linkage fees received moderate to low support in the 2019 Housing Action Plan, they should be
re-considered periodically and especially before major surges in development occur if large
projects, sites, or PUDs are expected to come under review. A residential linkage fee may be
more appropriate for Minturn, rather than applying linkage fees to commercial development. A
regulatory fee on STRs should also be considered. This is an emerging tool that several Colorado
mountain towns are considering. The Town of Breckenridge adopted a regulatory fee on STRs in
2021. For planning consideration, a fee or $500 per bedroom per year would generate about
$50,000 per year on the Town’s maximum number of 50 short term rentals.

● Action 4.4.1 Gauge public appetite for community-funded housing.
● Action 4.4.2 Consider instituting linkage fees and/or a regulatory fee on STRs.

Objective 4.5: Continuously address water and other infrastructure barriers to housing
construction.

The town is nearly at full capacity for its water system, and water may continue to be a
constraint on growth for the town. It should therefore carefully consider how future taps are
allocated. The current moratorium on developments that require water taps greater than 3 SFEs
is currently a large barrier to housing creation in Minturn. This is particularly limiting given
that large-scale projects provide new units quickly and have greater potential to offer “missing
middle” and affordable/attainable options such as rental units, apartments, duplexes,
townhomes, etc. Multiple such projects are in the pipeline through PUDs but are significantly
constrained by these conditions.

In 2019 the Council approved for a growth scenario of up to 450 SFE’s. This included 120 SFE’s
for the Eagle County School District as the remainder of the designation from the 2011
Annexation Agreement, as well as 70 SFEs if the Council approves a Minturn North project.
These two projects (Minturn North is only in the case of an approval) account for 42% of the 450
SFEs planned for in 2019. While moratoriums are in place, the Town should incentivize
small-scale infill housing (re) development such as ADUs, duplexes and triplexes.

● Action 4.5.1 Prioritize Town funding to support the necessary improvements outlined in
Resolution 30 – Series 2020 to increase Minturn’s water system capacity.

● Action 4.5.2 Continue to monitor water capacity and consider expanding the intended
capacity improvements beyond what is currently planned.

● Action 4.5.3 Evaluate an allocation policy along with new rate structures when capacity
becomes available.

Objective 4.6: Prioritize housing for full-time residents; ensure that residents of all ages
and income levels are able to find housing.

As described above in the summary of public engagement and feedback related to housing,
Minturn residents are interested in preserving and promoting “resident-occupied” housing. A
healthy level of full-time residency is critical to maintaining the social and economic fabric of a
community. Likewise, it is of the utmost importance to ensure that low- and middle-income

12

59



residents of Minturn can afford to live in Minturn. The following regulatory tools aim to support
full-time residency and affordability in Minturn:

● Action 4.6.1 Amend the 200% AMI requirement for inclusionary housing in Minturn to
promote more equitable and inclusive access to housing. Further assessment may be
necessary to determine the most appropriate thresholds for the community, and many
communities require units at a variety of thresholds. A 120% AMI requirement should be
available for at least a portion of units.

● Action 4.6.2 Use deed restrictions to require full-time residency in the community in
homes created through housing regulations or preserved with public funding such as a
buy-down program.

● Action 4.6.3 Support a diversity of housing types in the Town Code and development
guidelines; ensure that updates to PUD guidelines encourage and incentivize affordable
housing.

Objective 4.7: Continue to collaborate with regional jurisdictions and entities in Eagle
County to stay abreast of housing issues, and policies and tools being used. Align best
practices and income qualification ranges for consistency.

Numerous communities and agencies in Eagle County are working on and administering housing
programs. The Town should keep in touch with these other groups and look for areas where
Minturn’s policies and regulations may need to be adjusted for consistency.

● Action 4.7.1 Convene with the housing departments of other jurisdictions and with
housing providers annually to review successes and local best practices.

● Action 4.7.2 Routinely revisit designated AMI ranges for affordable housing to ensure
that they correspond with Eagle County housing needs analyses and meaningfully
contribute to the generation of affordable housing.

● Action 4.7.3 Actively engage with regional partners to support the possibility of a new
Regional Housing Authority.

Objective 4.8: Ensure that PUD regulations and policies contain provisions that will create
full-time resident housing, particularly at Dowd Junction and Martin Creek.

Since Minturn’s primary development area is built out, PUDs represent a singular opportunity to
add substantial additional housing units. Should the potential PUDs in Minturn eventually
progress into development review and eventual construction, The Town should ensure that these
PUDs will provide an appropriate level of resident housing.

● Action 4.8.1 Encourage the inclusion of affordable housing in PUDs over and above the
current IH requirement; consider offering an expedited review process to incentivize this.

● Action 4.8.2 Consider implementing “Main Street” or PUD/Master Plan design
regulations for new developments that require active street frontage and rear/hidden
parking or other elements to increase the likelihood that development proposals will be
palatable to and supported by the community.

Objective 4.9: Support historic preservation within Minturn’s broader housing strategy.

13

60



Minturn has some of the oldest housing stock in Eagle County which gives the town its unique
character. Many residents are deeply invested in preserving the town’s historic homes. Minturn
residents are accustomed to smaller historic houses, creating an opportunity to promote
innovative designs of smaller and less costly homes. These could include duplexes, fourplexes,
eightplexes and ADUs. As an added benefit, these smaller units can help address the shortage of
rental housing, and/or provide less costly ownership opportunities.

● Action 4.9.1 Review and update Minturn’s development design guidelines to strengthen
and further specify how new residential development, redevelopment, and remodels can
contribute to the community’s valued architectural character and vibrancy.

● Action 4.9.2 To preserve existing buildings to the extent possible, consider instituting a
demolition delay ordinance or initiative to support adaptive redevelopment as opposed to
teardowns and new builds.

● Action 4.9.3 Foster discussion around materials and design in the early phases of
development review to ensure that developers understand the importance of celebrating
Minturn’s existing character.

Chapter 5: Water Infrastructure, Hazard Mitigation & Sustainability

Objective 5.1: Identify paths to secure and maintain sufficient water and wastewater
infrastructure to support current development and growth in Minturn.

From a development perspective, Minturn’s ability to respond to and accommodate growth is
currently limited by the Town’s existing water system capacity. The Town has already established
a preliminary plan for improving water infrastructure and capacity which it will need to
implement as quickly and effectively as possible in the coming years. The following action items
focus on this critical step of implementation as well as further steps the Town can take to ensure
that Minturn’s water and wastewater system will support the community long into the future.
While engaging in this work, it is vital that the Town address other potential threats to water
supply such as climate-related drought.

● Action 5.1.1 Prioritize Town funding and pursue all potential outside funding to support
the necessary improvements outlined in Resolution 30 – Series 2021 to increase
Minturn’s water system capacity, particularly to improve efficiencies and mitigate water
loss.

● Action 5.1.2 Work with the ERWSD at Bolts Lake and/or on other opportunities to
improve water supply resilience through Raw Water Storage and source redundancies.

● Action 5.1.3 Advocate for wastewater systems upgrades as needed in Minturn through
coordination with ERWSD, either through the ongoing Wastewater Collection System
Master Plan or a separate Inflow & Infiltration (I&I) Study specific to Minturn, including
a prioritized implementation plan.

Objective 5.2: Refine development regulations and standards and pursue other initiatives
to promote efficiency and sustainable practices in residential and commercial buildings.

As described in the Central Concepts above, the Town of Minturn can update development
regulations, adopt incentives, or establish other programs to promote and ensure sustainability is
incorporated into development, landscaping, and building operations. The action items below

14

61



will serve water and energy conservation and efficiency, support renewable energy production
and use, and incentivize other strategies within development and building design that are more
sustainable and reduce GHG emissions.

● Action 5.2.1 On an annual basis, monitor water and energy use in Minturn to inform
efficiency and conservation initiatives.

● Action 5.2.2 Establish a tiered water rate system to promote water conservation.
● Action 5.2.3 Continue to implement Energy Action Plan strategies to incentivize

commercial and residential participation in available energy efficiency and renewable
source programs. Conduct a baseline study to assess the Town’s progress on its energy
goals and establish whether current policies are working to increase energy efficiency.

● Action 5.2.4 Consider implementing a solar rebate or other incentive program to support
on-site solar for residential and/or commercial buildings; collaborate with the Walking
Mountains Climate Action Collaborative and/or Holy Cross to connect Minturn residents
with existing energy incentive programs.

● Action 5.2.5 Establish Low Impact Development (LID) standards that promote green
infrastructure and nature-based solutions to address stormwater.

● Action 5.2.6 Adopt waterwise/xeriscape regulations, incentives, and/or educational tools
to promote strategic, responsible and climate-appropriate landscaping practices that
reduce water use, improve soil health, and limit maintenance needs.

● Action 5.2.7 Consider implementing additional incentives for sustainable design and
development practices in PUD regulations.

● Action 5.2.8 Consider implementing a Smart Building Incentive Program that allows
developers and property owners to waive permit fees if their project conforms to a
predetermined set of sustainability standards.

● Action 5.2.9 Refine the Town’s Exterior Energy Offset Program to ensure that the
program provides an effective means of incentivizing solar energy in Minturn; provide
clear guidelines for the fair and productive use of funds collected through the program
fees.

Objective 5.3: Prioritize resilience by proactively preparing for and mitigating potential
impacts of natural hazard.

Wildfires and flooding are the two most critical natural hazard threats for the Minturn
community. As climate change contributes to a longer and more severe fire season as well as
more frequent storm events, it is important for the Town to proactively prepare for potential
hazardous circumstances. Through data monitoring, collaboration and coordination with
regional and federal entities, and strategic planning for emergency preparedness and impact
mitigation, the Town can bolster the community’s resilience.

● Action 5.3.1 Partner with FEMA to update floodplain maps and correct inaccuracies;
utilize this information to inform future infrastructure needs, landscaping, development
regulations, and other potential flooding preparedness measures.

● Action 5.3.2 Continue to reference and implement the Eagle County Hazard
Mitigation/Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan; support its update due in 2024/25 and ensure
that Minturn’s particular risks and needs are accounted for in the plan.

● Action 5.3.3 Adopt firewise guidelines in building and site planning regulations.

15

62



● Action 5.3.4 Work with the USFS to determine necessary steps to manage wildfire
impacts in Minturn, such as possible forest fuels reduction measures.

● Action 5.3.5 Retain the services of an emergency preparedness consultant to assess,
bolster, and test Minturn’s emergency response systems; also to establish a natural hazard
monitoring system to track local and regional events to accurately assess local risks and
changing trends over time.

● Action 5.3.6 Continue to support, proactively participate in, and implement Eagle
County’s imminent update to the Community Wildfire Protection Plan.

● Action 5.3.7 Coordinate with US Forest Service to initiate planning and implement
associated strategies for forest fuels health and fire mitigation on public lands
surrounding Minturn.

● Action 5.3.8 Continue to proactively coordinate with the Eagle River Fire Protection
District.

Objective 5.4: Support the viability of low-emissions and zero-emissions transportation
options such as walking, biking, public transit, and electric vehicles.

Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) travel is currently the status quo in Minturn – by and large
residents use individual vehicles to get around town and connect to the broader region. Many
areas of Minturn do not have safe sidewalks, crosswalks, bike paths, or other infrastructure that
makes walking or cycling safe, efficient, convenient, and attractive. While ECO Transit, the
regional transportation provider, does operate three bus routes that service Minturn, they run
relatively infrequently and/or require residents to drive from town to the Dowd Junction Forest
Service Park & Ride. These factors make SOV transportation the most convenient and attractive
option for Minturn residents. However, SOV travel significantly contributes to GHG emissions
and poor air quality, as well as a perceived parking issue in the Old Town core of Minturn. Mass
transit, walking, and cycling are more environmentally friendly forms of travel and offer
co-benefits of active lifestyle and health, opportunities for community interaction, fewer vehicles
taking up space throughout town, and greater affordability. While electric vehicles are still
considered SOV, they can be more environmentally friendly and require charging infrastructure
to support their use. As electric vehicles become more common, charging infrastructure will
become more critical. These action items promote investments in Minturn infrastructure and
partnerships with ECO Transit that will foster a culture of low-emission and active
transportation for Minturn residents and visitors.

● Action 5.4.1 Monitor the use of Minturn’s two EV charging stations and implement
additional stations as needed in strategic locations.

● Also see Actions under objectives 6.2 – 6.6 in Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation
& Connectivity. These action items address improved infrastructure and signage for
walking and cycling, the expansion of mass transit to connect Minturn with the region
and provide local transit options, and strategic integration of land use, mass transit, and
bike-ped infrastructure to make non-SOV transportation options more convenient, safe,
attractive, and viable.

Objective 5.5: Support public health by proactively managing air quality.

Public health and environmental health are closely intertwined. GHG emissions contribute to
and exacerbate natural air quality issues by releasing and trapping particulates and gasses that

16

63



can be harmful to human health and contribute to global warming. Through data monitoring,
collaboration and coordination with regional entities, and strategic regulations and initiatives,
the Town can work to monitor air quality and minimize emissions to protect the health of
Minturn residents and visitors.

● Action 5.5.1 Collaborate with the Eagle County Environmental Health department to
discuss the development of a local air monitoring program.

● Action 5.5.2 Consider adopting an Idle-Free resolution to prohibit idling motor vehicles
within town. For example, the Town of Crested Butte adopted an Idle-Free ordinance in
2011 that limits idling to no more than 3 minutes or 5 minutes to remove snow and ice
and prohibits any idling for unattended vehicles. Engines Off! Colorado is a collaborative
initiative for idling regulation in Colorado and offers additional information and
resources related to this issue.

● Action 5.5.3 Encourage a community culture of low or zero emissions transportation
habits through educational and promotional campaigns and events as well as supportive
infrastructure and wayfinding. This could include organized bike/walk-to-work days, gear
swaps, or programs with local businesses that incentivize employees or patrons to
carpool, walk, bike, or take transit. Also see Objective 5.4 to the left.

Objective 5.6: Prioritize environmental sustainability through strategic monitoring,
collaboration, communication, and creative funding streams.

Minturn and the broader regional community have established and achieved numerous goals and
initiatives related to environmental sustainability and many resources already exist to support
future efforts, both at individual and municipal or other collective levels. Tracking successes –
and challenges – as well as sharing information and fostering collaboration regarding
sustainability will allow the Town and Minturn community to maximize outcomes and improve
efficiency. Collaboration and information-sharing will ensure that efforts are not duplicated, that
the broadest benefits possible can be reached, and that residents have access to and are aware of
resources available to them. For example, the Town can more proactively advertise the valuable
resources available through the Walking Mountains Science Center regarding composting,
recycling, business and educational programs, and more. Additionally, the Eagle County Climate
Action Plan includes a pledge for individual residents to commit to actions that will support the
plan’s goal to reduce GHG emissions by 80% by 2050. The Town can play an active role in
promoting this pledge locally.

● Action 5.6.1 Implement an internal system to annually monitor Town goals and
achievements related to environmental sustainability.

● Action 5.6.2 Support sustainability initiatives and promote available resources of local
and regional groups, non-profits, and agencies as possible; promote partnerships and
collaboration to maximize capacity and share resources.

● Action 5.6.3 Consider establishing a specific fund for sustainability and resiliency
projects. This fund could be sourced from programs such as Sustainable Gift Cards with
partnering businesses, parking fees, impact fees, or other creative programs. Otherwise
promote available grants, programs, and resources for sustainability initiatives.

17

64



Chapter 6: Intuitive Mobility, Circulation & Connectivity

Objective 6.1: Develop shared parking and curbside management strategies in the 100
Block area based on parking management study.

● Action 6.1.1: In the near-term, consider updating curbside signage to clarify messaging of
parking regulations.

● Action 6.1.2: Increase the mix of land uses within close proximity of the 100 Block to
create a more walkable core and allow people to “park once” and explore on foot.

● Action 6.1.3: Ensure the existing parking and snow removal policy retains on-street
parking and ADAaccessible parking. Update this policy to plan for winter maintenance of
shared streets.

● Action 6.1.4: Formalize locations for passenger and truck loading downtown.
● Action 6.1.5: Expand the shared parking shed from 100 ft to 1,000 ft and consider

allowing uses with complementary demand to share parking rather than restricting based
on operating hours.

● Action 6.1.6: Consider changing parking requirements to require land uses to adhere to
parking maximums rather than minimums and instituting a fee-in-lieu policy.

● Action 6.1.7: Following an increase in commercial uses or parking occupancy on a block,
consider expanding the blocks with a 2-hour time restriction to increase parking turnover
in front of businesses.

● Action 6.1.8: Explore paid parking as a tool to manage demand, encourage the use of
alternate transportation modes, and generate revenue.

● Action 6.1.9: To increase the effectiveness of parking management strategies and
promote compliance, increase enforcement of parking restrictions by increasing fines for
violations.

● Action 6.1.10: Collect regular parking count data to determine how these near- and
long-term strategies affect parking occupancy over time and demonstrate success to the
community.

● Action 6.1.11: Work with Union Pacific Railroad to explore opportunities to purchase the
land containing the Municipal Parking Lot. If that is not feasible, consider extending the
current short-term lease or reconfiguring the Municipal Parking Lot.

● Action 6.1.12: If all of the previously suggested policies fail to reduce occupancy to the
goal of 85%, explore opportunities to increase the parking supply by constructing
additional parking.

Objective 6.2: Identify Minturn’s role in a regional transit authority and in facilitating
expansions to ECO Transit service and/or Town of Vail transit service; capitalize on the
growth of mass transit infrastructure and ridership to support infill and/or transit-oriented
development in Minturn.

● Action 6.2.1: Coordinate land use planning with the transportation system by locating
new development near bus stops.

● Action 6.2.2: Enhance first-and-last mile connections that enable people located outside
of walking distance from a bus stop to reach transit by installing features such as printed
wayfinding to key destinations, enhanced crossings of Hwy 24, complete sidewalks,
trails, bike racks, lighting, landscaping, and other amenities.

18

65



Objective 6.3: Envision an interconnected network of sidewalks and trails for walking and
biking that connects Minturn’s neighborhoods, commercial areas, and recreational
opportunities.

● Action 6.3.1: Complete near-term priority sidewalk projects that provide missing
connections to downtown so that Minturn residents can comfortably walk to key
destinations and those within close proximity of a bus stop.

● Action 6.3.2: Complete long-term priority projects that fill in the sidewalk network
downtown and gaps between neighborhoods.

● Action 6.3.3: Update the Municipal Code to require the completion or upgrade of
sidewalks with new development or redevelopment.

● Action 6.3.4: Install curb extensions at key intersections along Main Street to reduce
crossing distances, provide a comfortable place for people walking and shopping to linger
while waiting to cross the street, and slow traffic.

● Action 6.3.5: Complete crosswalks on the remaining legs of Harrison Avenue and Toledo
Avenue to draw attention to crossing pedestrians.

● Action 6.3.6: Construct the planned paved multi-use ECO Trail that will connect Dowd
Junction to the north end of Minturn at the intersection of Minturn Road and Taylor
Street.

● Action 6.3.7: Partner with CDOT and advocate for the effort to add sharrows on Main
Street through town to draw attention to people bicycling.

Objective 6.4: Address multi-modal connectivity needs at Dowd Junction and encourage
greater connectivity to the rest of Eagle County.

● Action 6.4.1: Expand the Forest Service Park and Ride into a new transit center and
mobility hub to connect more people in Minturn to the ECO Transit Highway 6 Route.

● Action 6.4.2: Explore the potential for the Meadow Mountain Parking Lot to serve as
overflow parking for visitors during high demand times, paired with digital signage and a
shuttle that transports visitors between Dowd Junction and downtown Minturn.

Objective 6.5: Add signage in key locations throughout Town to clarify parking,
destinations, and transportation options.

● Action 6.5.1: Develop gateway signage on the north and south end of the town core (and
eventually at Dowd Junction).

● Action 6.5.2: Place wayfinding signage throughout the town core between Williams
Street and Mann Street; specifically adjacent to bus stops, parking lots, the town hall/post
office, trailheads, and hotels. Design signs not immediately next to a bus stop to point
toward the nearest stop to remind residents and visitors of the local transit system and
promote ease of use.

● Action 6.5.3: Update parking signage with any changes to parking regulations.
● Action 6.5.4: Communicate safe places to choose active transportation and recreate by

placing Share the Road signage on the Hwy 24 corridor and other wayfinding at the
entrances to shared streets and pedestrian passages within the 100 Block.

19

66



Objective 6.6: Facilitate multi-modal trips by adding infrastructure, such as bike racks and
bus shelters.

● Action 6.6.1: Consider participating and partnering with neighboring communities in
Eagle County in a regional or neighboring bike share program, such as the ShiftBike
program in Vail, Eagle Vail, and Avon; promote service at Dowd Junction.

● Action 6.6.2: Collaborate with ECO Transit/the EVTA and commercial businesses to
install bike racks near bus stops, the Town Hall/post office, trailheads, and hotels. Place
at least one bike rack on each block in the Minturn core that hosts commercial land uses
and install a bike wash/repair station at a central, convenient location in the 100 Block.

● Action 6.6.3: Work with ECO Transit and the EVTA to formalize bus stops, making them
ADA accessible and installing seating and shelter.

Objective 6.7: Monitor impacts to Highway 24.

● Action 6.7.1: Partner with CDOT to monitor and collect information regarding traffic
levels, level of service, and traffic speeds on Hwy 24.

● Action 6.7.2: Require all new major development proposals to include traffic studies with
particular focus on potential impacts to Hwy 24 resulting from all phases of proposed
development.

● Action 6.7.3: Require all new major development proposals to fund off-site traffic
improvements, limit density, or both.

Chapter 7: Quality of Life, Recreation & An Inviting Public Realm: Parks,
Trails & Community Gathering Spaces

Objective 7.1: Encourage a vibrant public realm in Minturn that emphasizes arts,
stewardship, access to the Eagle River, and outdoor fun.

Minturn has a distinct character and strong outdoor recreational influence. As a community
surrounded by immense natural resources, Minturn should maintain and foster community
responsibility for protecting and preserving local resources. Through new events, infrastructure
upgrades, and strategic partnerships, Minturn can become even more colorful, sustainable,
beautiful, and community-oriented.

● Action 7.1.1 Sponsor additional cleanup days to maintain a healthy environment and
foster a culture of responsible stewardship. This/these events could capitalize on
partnerships locally and more broadly in Eagle County for organization and activities.
These events should include elements of fun as well, such as live music, food, art
activities, etc.

● Action 7.1.2 Support/partner with organizations and businesses like the Agora that foster
local arts and want to play a role in improving community infrastructure creatively.
Support and implement the conceptual pedestrian footpath adjacent to the Agora property
to allow access from Main Street to the Eagle River.

● Action 7.1.3 To preserve Minturn’s stargazing experiences and to support wildlife,
consider establishing Minturn as a Dark Sky Community per the International Dark Sky
Association standards and designation process. Confer with other Dark Sky communities
in Colorado, such as Westcliffe and Silver Cliff as needed.

20

67



● See Chapter 3: An Economically Vibrant Community for additional action items related
to placemaking.

Objective 7.2: Facilitate and sponsor additional programming and community events for
children.

While Minturn currently has fewer families than other communities in Eagle County, it is
important that the Town supports families with children who do live in the community. In
addition, it is important to create a welcoming and supportive environment for any future
families that move to the community or current residents who choose to have children down the
line. Young adults, youth, and children are the next generation to sustain the community.
Especially in small towns, it is important to ensure that young people will want to stay and/or
move in to sustain the local labor force, contribute to tax revenue and to the local economy, and
preserve social mass.

● Action 7.2.1 Work with Blue Starlite or other vendors to retain outdoor movie events at
Little Beach Park.

● Action 7.2.2 Support the expansion and improvement of childcare options in Minturn for
families with young children.

● Action 7.2.3 Ensure that popular community events and any new events are
family-friendly, considering timing, activities, etc.

● Action 7.2.4 Support the organization of cultural, recreational, and educational events
catered towards children within Minturn.

● Action 7.2.5 Promote the inclusion of recreational amenities in redevelopment at Maloit
Park, including multi-use fields, gathering areas, etc.

Objective 7.3: Promote active lifestyles in Minturn; complete bike/ped connections and
support the Minturn Fitness Center as a community hub.

Active lifestyles contribute to good mental and physical health. As a mountain community with
many existing recreational assets, Minturn draws residents and visitors who may already enjoy
active lifestyles. However, not every resident or visitor fits this bill, and there are a variety of
ways that people can or prefer to be physically active. Because Minturn is relatively small
geographically, ensuring that people feel comfortable walking or cycling throughout town
creates opportunities for people to use active transportation instead of vehicles, which also
reduces parking needs and headaches. Additionally, ensuring that people are aware of, have
access to, and feel comfortable utilizing the Minturn Fitness Center is essential for providing
indoor fitness opportunities.

● Action 7.3.1 Continue to support ongoing plans and implementation of the Minturn
extension to the regional paved ECO Trail; advocate for and support further extension to
Maloit Park.

● Action 7.3.2 Formalize/pave the social trail that runs along the east side of the Eagle
River. Consider adding additional bridge access points at the southern end of Minturn.
This effort should be incorporated into or in conjunction with the full ECO Trail
extension and would likely require coordination with property owners, including Vail
Resorts, U.P. Railroad, and the Forest Service.

21

68



● Action 7.3.3 Improve bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure to access to the Fitness
Center/ Maloit Park Road and work with ECO Transit to increase awareness of and
improve service to this area. Consider expanding the Center as a broader community
space to accommodate other activities and uses. For example, community members have
expressed interest in pickle ball, basketball, a pool, and winter ice rink. Increase
community awareness of the $10 drop in option and consider implementing other rewards
programs or incentives that encourage its use and increase its accessibility to all residents.

● Action 7.3.4 Improve bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure throughout town to improve
safety, connectivity, and overall mobility and access for active transportation. Collaborate
with neighboring municipalities on an electric bikeshare program. See Chapter 6:
Circulation & Mobility for further details about infrastructure improvements.

● Action 7.3.5 Ensure that winter plowing includes pedestrian infrastructure and
recreational pathways to allow for and encourage activity in winter months, as possible.
Additional information regarding diversified revenue sources to support town services,
such as plowing, can be found in other chapters, particularly Chapter 3: An Economically
Vibrant Community.

Objective 7.4: Promote access to quality, locally grown food in Minturn; encourage
community events related to local food.
The Minturn community currently doesn’t have a grocery store, meaning that residents must
travel to Avon, Vail or Eagle-Vail to get their groceries. Reasonable access to a variety of food
choices, including healthy options and fresh produce, is an essential part of quality of life and
overall health. This also means that it should not take extensive amounts of time and energy to
access ingredients for meals.

● Action 7.4.1 Support the addition of a grocery store locally in Minturn, likely as part of
the potential Dowd Junction PUD development. Ensure that any new grocery option
includes fresh produce.

● Action 7.4.2 Continue to support the Minturn Market. Consider marketing to additional
sources of fresh produce within the region.

● Action 7.4.3 Continue to support the Minturn Community Garden. Work with the
Minturn Community Fund or other local and regional partners to expand event offerings
at the garden, such as workshops, community dinners, etc. that bring people together to
showcase the garden and provide educational opportunities to learn about locally-grown
foods and food preparation. Assess demand for and consider other locations that could
support additional community garden space, particularly at PUD sites such as Dowd
Junction.

Objective 7.5: Encourage safe and responsible access to trails and recreation opportunities
on forest service land adjacent to Minturn.

Minturn’s access to public lands is unique and special. From trailheads in and around Minturn,
residents and visitors can access scenic and remote landscapes. Backcountry adventures can be
fun and memorable experiences, but they also come with risks. The Town should help inform
residents and visitors of the steps to take in an emergency and ways to minimize human impact
on the landscape.

22

69



● Action 7.5.1 Collaborate with the Forest Service, CPW, and Vail Valley Mountain Trails
Alliance on a 1- to- 2-page guide to safe and responsible recreation in Minturn; publicize
this guide on the Town website, social media channels, and at trailheads. Ensure that this
guide includes the number of the relevant parties to call in case of an emergency.

● Action 7.5.2 Encourage Leave No Trace principles at all parks, trails, and open spaces
within the Town of Minturn. Provide stewardship information on town maps, trailhead
kiosks, and web materials as appropriate.

● Action 7.5.3 Collaborate with regional partners such as the Eagle River Watershed
Council, Eagle Summit Wilderness Alliance, and Eagle Valley Land Trust, and Vail
Valley Mountain Trails Alliance on stewardship education and enforcement efforts to
protect and preserve natural resources and wildlife.

● Action 7.5.4 Prepare a Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan to assess and plan for access
and parking needs among other management practices, particularly in the face of
potential development such as Dowd Junction.

● Action 7.5.5 Require new developments to assess the need and practicality for access to
adjacent public lands, if applicable.

Objective 7.6: Support the growth of Little Beach Park and the surrounding area as a hub
for recreation and community events.

Little Beach Park is one of the Town’s most prized assets and popular venues for community
events. As laid out in the previous section, the Town is taking proactive steps to preserve,
improve, and expand the opportunities of this great asset and the surrounding area through the
Little Beach Park Recreation Area Plan.

● Action 7.6.1 Implement recommendations from the Little Beach Park Recreation Area
Plan.

● Action 7.6.2 Regularly assess needs, community desires, and new ideas for the Little
Beach Park Recreation Area to ensure that the 2022 plan and Town efforts are on-track.

● Action 7.6.3 Facilitate future trail connections between recreation assets in the Little
Beach Park area (e.g., Minturn Bike Park, Mini Mile) and other trailheads and
recreational areas within Minturn.

● Action 7.6.4 Support the Little Beach Park area as a hub for recreation, arts,
performances, and community events in Minturn; support the adaptive reuse of storage
yards and underutilized industrial portions of the area for recreation and public
enjoyment.

Objective 7.7: Continue working with the Eagle River Watershed Council and Eagle Valley
Land Trust to support stewardship and community education initiatives.

The Eagle River and its broader watershed is a valuable natural resource for the community and
surrounding region. The Town should involve the community in efforts to collectively manage
and protect this resource and support its longevity. Through signage and educational materials,
as well as partnerships and events, the Town can promote a healthy riparian corridor and
watershed.

● Action 7.7.1 Expand upon Town Cleanup Day and the Eagle River Watershed Council’s
County-wide clean up to maintain a healthy environment and spread a culture of

23

70



responsible stewardship. This or new events could specifically focus on the health and
monitoring of Eagle River and educate residents on regulations and research techniques
that inform protection of the river’s natural ecosystem, such as watershed mapping,
development setbacks, and erosion control measures. Event activities should also include
elements of fun, such as live music, food, art activities, etc.

● Action 7.7.2 Coordinate with the Eagle River Watershed Council to offer citizen science
training opportunities, especially for youth in the Minturn community and region.

● Action 7.7.3 Consider implementing signage and informational materials to educate
residents and visitors about stewardship and responsible human-nature interaction.

● Action 7.7.4 Coordinate with Eagle Valley Land Trust on the continued stewardship and
community enjoyment of the Boneyard Open Space area.

Objective 7.8: Continue working with the Vail Valley Mountain Trails Alliance to support
stewardship and initiatives of current and future trail and recreation opportunities.

● Action 7.8.1 Create and implement a Minturn Area Recreation and Conservation Plan
that identifies recreation opportunities, connections, trailheads, and prioritized wildlife
habitat and migration corridors.

● Action 7.8.2 Coordinate with the VVMTA to expand upon existing Adopt A Trail team to
engage the community on additional volunteer trail maintenance or trail building days
which increases stewardship of surrounding trails and public lands.

● Action 7.8.3 Continue to partner with the VVMTA to maintain the Minturn Bike Park,
host volunteer maintenance events, and community events.

Chapter 8: A Collaborative & Resilient Future: Implementation, Governance
& Continued Visioning

Objective 8.1: Implement the objectives of this community plan in a thoughtful and
collaborative manner.

This plan contains a variety of proposed actions – some of these are high priority actions meant
to be pursued in the short-term. Others are less time-sensitive and are meant to be pursued and
implemented over a longer period of time. The Implementation Matrix contained at the end of
this chapter is intended to help assist with the realization of high priority and short-term actions
in this plan.

● Action 8.1.1 Use the Implementation Matrix found at the end of this chapter to guide the
implementation phase of this community planning process.

● Action 8.1.2 As applicable, develop similar implementation matrices for the remaining
actions in this plan as they may grow in relevance during the life of this plan.

Objective 8.2: Inform & engage residents in community development.

The more involved, informed, and engaged that the Minturn community is, the more that
community development efforts will reflect their concerns, desires, and needs. Celebrating
community achievements, ensuring transparency, and providing frequent and varied
opportunities for feedback will reduce unexpected roadblocks and build trust.

24

71



● Action 8.2.1 Continue sharing information with the community via the Town Newsletter,
municipal website, and other mechanisms. Consider implementing quarterly mailers to
inform residents of key achievements, ongoing projects, engagement opportunities, etc.

● Action 8.2.2 Work closely with elected officials and Town boards and committees to
engage residents in an in-person and virtual capacity.

Objective 8.3: Prioritize partnerships, collaboration, and resource-sharing as applicable.

Many recommendations throughout this plan involve partnerships and collaboration. With every
initiative, the Town should consider any opportunities that exist to expand capacity and
maximize resources through partnerships.

● Action 8.3.1 Consider a collaborative effort to establish and maintain an inventory of key
partners and regular funding sources that can be easily referenced when strategizing for
local or regional needs and initiatives.

● Action 8.3.2 Highlight successful ongoing partnerships with community organizations,
other municipalities, Eagle County, and state agencies on the Town website and social
media platforms.

Objective 8.4: Organize and streamline internal processes to maximize efficiencies and
capacity, monitor progress, and compile data.

With limited resources, it is important that the Town regularly evaluates internal processes to
improve operations and efficiency.

● Action 8.4.1 Convene annually with all departments to review operations and strategize
improvements for the following year.

● Action 8.4.2 Establish and maintain an ongoing inventory of completed town projects,
initiatives and achievements.

● Action 8.4.3 Streamline data collection efforts across Town departments to avoid
duplication of efforts and promote shared knowledge.

Update
Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 1

● Action 1.1.1: will be big with our focus groups.
● Action 1.1.2: this has been accomplished.
● Action 1.1.3: this will happen when we get into the Chapter 16 update and will go hand

in hand with Action 1.2.4.
● Action 1.2.1: “assurance of proper planning”, Sage P. would like a comparison of

Minturn to Crested Butte, Jeff A. doesn’t know of anywhere in town that has 15 units,
● Action 1.2.2: due to snow parking requirements should not necessarily be reduced. If it is

implemented, it should be more towards commercial and not residential.
● Action 1.2.3: should be talked about more.
● Action 1.2.4: should keep in mind when discussing updates to Chapter 16
● Action 1.3.4: work with fire organization
● Action 1.3.5: need to think about when discussing updates to Chapter 16

25

72



Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 2

● Action 2.1.2: 100 Block Design Standards and Guidelines have been codified and live
online. When there are pre-application meetings, staff needs to direct prospective
applicants to that information

● Action 2.1.3: staff
● Action 2.1.4: Ongoing
● Action 2.1.5: Addressed in Chapter 16 within the use table for the 100 Block. We need a

balance of retail and lodging. If lodging pushes out retail then none of it works. Possibly
by lodging on the second floor and up, and still requiring retail on the first floor. Need
definition for commercial services. Tom P. would not like to restrict someone from doing
something with their lot. Sage P. thinks it’s important to have retail possibilities and the
first floor should be retail. Elliot H. thinks we should leave the code as is as it will be
dealt with in due process. Lynn T. agrees with Sage P. Michael B. likes commercial uses
on the first floor, but if they want lodging on the first floor it should be a conditional use.

○ Public Comment: Kelly Toon 531 Main St
Repetition of storefronts and the commercial is very important. Asked if there
could be a mandate that the front façade be commercial, but lodging in the back.

● Action 2.2.1: Currently working on this with HPC
● Action 2.2.2: No comment
● Action 2.2.3: We could also use any study on historic preservation to inform the Design

Standards such as key architectural elements and roof forms.
● Action 2.2.4: Every project that comes in within the 100 Block will most likely need to

address this. This could also come up if we address the non-conformities section.
● Action 2.3.1: No comment
● Action 2.3.2: This has to do with our sign code and any changes will need to come

through as an ordinance to the Planning Commission for review
● Action 2.3.3: Directory map
● Action 2.4.1: to be addressed in the future
● Action 2.4.2: Bike repair station could be behind buildings

○ Public Comment: Kelly Toon, 531 Main Street
Bike Washing stations are about the size of the podium and only take up about 5
feet of space

● Action 2.4.3: No comment.
● Action 2.4.4: This needs to be a much bigger discussion. Will jam up the entrance to

Minturn. If there are time limits then you need to be able to enforce it.
● Action 2.4.5: No comment
● Action 2.5.1: The code already allows this and prioritizes parking off of the street. Elliot

H. said that garages are a good place for small retail or micro-manufacturing. Scot H. said
that in mixed-use buildings there should be a requirement for storage.

● Action 2.5.2: This ties into our housing plan.
● Action 2.6.1: The Town has talked for a while about having passageways between

buildings from Williams St all the way to the river.
● Action 2.6.2: No comment.
● Action 2.6.3: Lynn T. asked that a conversation be started with USFS to increase the

parking at Grouse trailhead. Elliot H. pointed out that cycling from the 100 Block to the
trailhead is dangerous and encouraging it might not be the best.

○ Public Comment: Kelly Toon, 531 Main Street

26

73



It is way quicker to walk down County Rd rather than walking down Highway 24
and is safer. Also need to address skier visitors off the Minturn Mile as they don’t
know where to go. There needs to be better wayfinding signage.

● Lynn T. asked that we have a coordinated sign program so that we don’t have as much
sign pollution.

Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 3

● Action 3.1.3: No comment
● Action 3.1.4: No comment
● Action 3.2.2: Goes in hand with Action 3.3.2 in connecting different areas of Town
● Action 3.3.2: Tom P. says that we need to find the solutions out there to impress the

importance upon UP to allow us some form of pedestrian access as Hwy 24 is not a safe
corridor for pedestrians especially in the winter.

● Objective 3.6: Already discussed in Chapter 1
● Objective 3.7: Need to continue actively pursuing connection to South Town.

Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 4

● Action 4.1.1:

Jeff A - Expansion of ADU allowance across zone districts (making ADU’s uses by
right), as one recommendation, is a broad stroke action which could have some
advantages, but we need to be careful on how that happens (thinking about potential
impacts on neighboring property owners and ensuring good standards for ADU). Need to
consider individual location and surrounding uses/proximity. If an applicant can meet
standards, should be allowed. If ADUs were allowed in all zone districts, it would be up
to individual applications to meet standards.

Amanda M. – Stated her agreement with Jeff A. and the need to rely on standards.

Lynn T. - Believes that ADUs are already permitted in most districts now (with some
restrictions/process). Need to ensure that code addresses standards (setbacks, impacts,
and parking). Does not agree that fees should be waived to incentivize ADUs or deed
restricted units; everyone should be treated fairly in comparison to those who have
already built rental units.

Sage P. – Stated that she also does not agree with waiver of fees or incentives.

Jeff A. – We don’t currently have the water to serve ADUs; so, perhaps the objective
(recommendation) of the Community Plan is not relevant until such time that the Town
resolves its water issues?

Lynn T. – does an ADU require a full tap?

Scot H. – Believe that ADUs require ½ tap; also based on square footage.

Amanda M. – Can an ADU in a mixed-use district be converted to commercial use?

27

74



Scot H. – Theoretically, yes. Believe there could be building and/or fire code issues
involved in converting residential to commercial, but from a zoning perspective, such
conversion would likely be permitted so long as standards and potential impacts are
addressed.

Amanda M. – Regarding tap fees, is there a difference between residential, commercial
and ADUs?

Scot H. – Yes, tap fees for residential and commercial use are calculated differently.

● Action 4.1.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.2.1: No Comments.
● Action 4.2.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.2.3: No Comments.
● Action 4.2.4: No Comments.
● Action 4.3.1: No Comments.
● Action 4.3.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.4.1:

Amanda M. – to clarify, linkage fees can be used for different types of things that the
community needs, not just housing?

Jeff A. – not necessarily in favor of new taxes or fees aimed at new development may not
be the best approach

Michael B. not interested in any other taxes

● Action 4.4.2: Michael B. - heads in beds better than empty
● Action 4.5.1: No Comments.
● Amanda M. - asked that Lynn read M. Boyd’s comments regarding updating the

community plan to reflect recently changed water tap moratorium;

Scot H. - explained that the Plan is advisory and was just adopted; it will not be updated
to reflect new moratorium language at this time.

● Action 4.5.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.5.3: No Comments.
● Action 4.6.1: No Comments.
● Action 4.6.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.6.3:

Jeff A. - need to move forward in the near future and when we do revisit the AMI levels,
should consider a sliding or graduated scale.

Scot H. – staff will facilitate a discussion with County Housing staff to educate Planning
Commission on current AMI and other housing factors/trends.

Michael B. - Building costs are high, we should promote not incentivize.

● Action 4.7.1: No Comments.

28

75



● Action 4.7.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.7.3: No Comments.
● Action 4.8.1:

Amanda M. – asked staff to clarify what “IH” means?

Scot H. – clarified that IH is acronym for “Inclusionary Housing” as in the Town’s
Inclusionary Housing ordinance.

Michael B. - Again promote not incentivize. Lot coverage should not be increased and
parking and tap fees should not be decreased.

● Action 4.8.2: Michael B. - Minturn lofts is a great design with mix of commercial and
residential components and parking.

● Action 4.9.1: No Comments.
● Action 4.9.2: No Comments.
● Action 4.9.3: No Comments.

Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 5

● Action 5.1.1: Tom P. said that the math with the increased water rates would take 2
decades, so what is the objective of the money. Asked that it be put out to the public what
the money is going towards. Amanda M. said that it should be explained what it is going
towards to date. Lynn T. said that we can talk about incentives further down the line.

● Action 5.1.2: No comment
● Action 5.1.3: No comment
● Action 5.2.1: No comment
● Action 5.2.2: No comment
● Action 5.2.3-9: Tom P. asked what the incentives would be. Madison H. explained that a

lot of this is already implemented with the 2021 I-code adoptions where they have to do
certain things rather than incentivize them. Michael B. wants to promote, not incentivize.
Lynn T. said that people want to live here so they should have to pay. Tom P. said that
developments moving forward should acknowledge that our water system might move in
a direction that they don’t want as it is in flux. Contingencies need to be acknowledged.

● Action 5.3.1: Michael B. asked what was more restrictive FEMA maps and the current
30’ river setback. Scot H. said that it probably varies wildly. Amanda M. would like to
see those maps together. Also are we looking at Meadow Mountain and Haymeadow
when it comes to infrastructure and wildfire hazard mitigation even if portions of it aren’t
within the Town limits.

● Action 5.3.2: No comment.
● Action 5.3.3: This goes hand in hand with landscape regulations, defensible space, and

setbacks between buildings.
● Action 5.3.4: Currently working on this.
● Action 5.3.5: Lynn T. said that we need to look at enforcement on open fires in

backyards.
● Action 5.3.6: No comment
● Action 5.3.7: No comment
● Action 5.3.8: No comment

29

76



● Action 5.4.1: No comment
● Action 5.5.1: No comment
● Action 5.5.2: No comment
● Action 5.5.3: No comment
● Action 5.6.1: No comment
● Action 5.6.2: No comment
● Action 5.6.3: No comment

Planning Commission Comments on Chapter 6

● Action 6.1.1: No comment.
● Action 6.1.2: Michael B. thinks it is a good idea. Scot H. said that the current code starts

getting us to this with the changes to the use table, but with the next round of code
updates – we can look at that again.

● Action 6.1.3: Lynn T. had Madison H. clarify the temporary nature of the proposed build
outs.

● Action 6.1.4: Lynn T. said that we should have carts like Vail does to cart deliveries
around. Tom P. asked if we have any designated loading places now. Scot H. said that we
have one area outside of the Country Club, but Lynn T. clarified that it is not always used
for loading. Tom P. said that the next action items to 6.1.10 go down to formalizing, and
it comes down to transaction and enforcement.

● Action 6.1.5: Lynn T. asked what the shared parking shed meant. Scot H. said that if one
use operates at one time, and another use operates at a different time, you can sometimes
count the parking space towards both spaces.

● Action 6.1.6: Michael B. does not support this and wonders where the cash would go.
Amanda M. asked what uses this would apply to. Scot H. said that it would most likely be
for mixed use and commercial zone districts. Eliminating commercial parking
requirements in the 100 Block is a step towards accomplishing this action item.

● Action 6.1.7: Lynn T. said that this only works if we have enforcement.
● Action 6.1.8: Michael B. said that it will come to paid parking eventually. Lynn T. said

that we need to give great thought to where any meters end up.
● Action 6.1.9: No comment.
● Action 6.1.10: Tom P. said that this is already informally in process.
● Action 6.1.11: Michael B. and Lynn T. would like to emphasize this action item.
● Action 6.1.12: Michael B. said that this is a great idea, but where would the money come

from?
● Action 6.2.1: No comment.
● Action 6.2.2: Tom P. asked if there has been any plans to connect from the Minturn

Angler’s building up to the Meadow Mountain Business Park. Scot H. said that we
haven’t had many conversations about that.

● Action 6.3.1: No comment.
● Action 6.3.2: Lynn T. said this is already in the works.
● Action 6.3.3: Tom P. said that this should be a component of SIAs moving forward.
● Action 6.3.4: No comment.
● Action 6.3.5: No comment.
● Action 6.3.6: No comment.
● Action 6.3.7: No comment.

30

77



● Action 6.4.1: Tom P. said this is part of the RTA. Lynn T. asked how this would work if
the Town is trying to buy the land. Scot H. said that if we acquire the land, then we would
likely sell it to a developer on the basis of a sub area master plan that has all of the
Town’s priorities for that site. We can’t implement this action item until we acquire it
though.

● Action 6.4.2: No comment.
● Action 6.5.1: No comment.
● Action 6.5.2: No comment.
● Action 6.5.3: No comment.
● Action 6.5.4: No comment.
● Action 6.6.1: No comment.
● Action 6.6.2: No comment.
● Action 6.6.3: No comment.
● Action 6.7.1: No comment.
● Action 6.7.2: This is already required.
● Action 6.7.3: No comment.

31

78



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

106 107

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

C H A P T E R  7

Quality of Life, Recreation 
& An Inviting Public 
Realm: Parks, Trails & 
Community Gathering 
Spaces

This page is intentionally left blank .

79



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

108 109

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

Table 12: Recreational Assets - West Side of Valley

Name Uses & Activities Trail Connections & Access Points

Meadow Mountain 
& Everkrisp Trails 

Hiking, mountain biking, snowshoeing Meadow Mountain connects to the Grouse 
Creek Trail; Everkrisp connects to Whiskey 
Creek and Paulie’s Plunge/Stone Creek trails.

Grouse Creek/
Grouse Mountain 
and Grouse Lake 
Trails

Hiking, mountain biking, snowshoeing Connects to the Meadow Mountain Trail and 
Martin Creek Trail.

Martin Creek Trail Hiking Two are ADA accessible
Maloit Park/Vail 
Ski & Snowboard 
Academy

Nordic skiing, snowshoeing, walking, and 
open field for sports or picnicking. Includes 
an FIS Nordic ski course (only 1 of 2 in 
North America).

Connects to Minturn Bike Park and Mini 
Mile

Cross Creek, Fall 
Creek, Notch 
Mountain, and 
Mountain of 
the Holy Cross 
Trails; Half Moon 
Campground

Hiking, backcountry skiing, tent camping Notch Mountain Road is groomed in the 
winter and is closed to motor vehicles 
through the end of June. The lower Tigiwon 
Trailhead offers winter access.

The Bolts Lake area offers potential opportunity for 
future recreational development. An asset now owned 
by ERWSD with intentions to pursue its revival as an 
acting reservoir, this project could include recreational 
amenities such as hiking, boating, SUPing, and 
camping, similar to Homestake Reservoir near Leadville.

COMMUNITY EVENTS11 
The Town of Minturn hosts several community events 
that are valued and attended. These regular events 
include:

 · Minturn Summer Concert Series (free): every 
Thursday in July and August. Held at the Little Beach 
Park amphitheater.

 · Minturn Market: every Saturday July through 
Labor Day weekend. Held along Williams Street 
and adjacent to the Minturn Country Club building 
(downtown). 

 · Independence Day Celebration: July 2nd. Held at 
Little Beach Park.

 · Minturn Hometown Throwdown: collection of local 
music showcases at various locations around town. 
First Saturday in October.

 · Town Tree Lighting Celebration: Includes family-
friendly activities. Held in early December at the 
corner of Toledo Ave and Main Street.

 · Christmas Tree Bonfire: community bonfire to 
celebrate the end of the holiday season and dispose 
of community Christmas trees. Held in early January 
at the Little Beach Park upper parking lot.

 · Minturn Halloween: trick-or treating and other family-
friendly activities. Town-wide event held annually on 
October 30th. 

 · Blue Starlite Drive-In Movies: typically held regularly 
throughout the summer at the Little Beach Park 
upper parking lot. These events, hosted by an 
outside vendor, have been discontinued for the 2022 
season. 

 · Town Cleanup Day: opportunity for residents to 
properly dispose of/recycle large items and e-waste. 
Held each spring. Historically, resident groups 
have also sometimes taken this opportunity to 
participate in trash pick-up around town. Community 
dinners: typically organized monthly by the Minturn 
Community Fund. Held at Town Hall. 

 · Neighborhood Block Parties: sponsored by the 
Minturn Community Fund but spearheaded by local 
residents. These events take place as they arise 
based on resident interest.

11 Town of Minturn website

INTRODUCTION
A community with a good quality of life enables 
residents to live in ways that support their physical, 
mental, and social wellbeing. Within community 
planning, “quality of life” refers primarily to spaces and 
activities that foster public health and vibrancy. Assets 
that support quality of life, which can include walkable 
streets, scenic views, parks, and community events, 
help to build community character and identity. These 
spaces and events bring people together and provide 
opportunities for relaxation, rejuvenation, connection to 
nature, and physical activity. 

The purpose of this chapter is to recognize the great 
amenities, programs, and events that help make 
Minturn, “Minturn” and to lay out steps the Town can 
take to preserve and expand upon these opportunities. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS & 
ISSUES
Minturn already supports a high quality of life, with its 
myriad of outdoor recreation opportunities, breathtaking 
vistas, and lively community events. 

Table 11: Recreational Assets - East Side of Valley

Name Uses & Activities Trail Connections & Access Points

Minturn Mile 
(winter)/Game 
CreekTrail 
(summer)

Backcountry skiing, mountain biking, 
horseback riding, and hiking

Connects to Vail Mountain trails

Lionshead/Cougar 
Ridge Trail

Hiking, mountain biking Connects to additional Vail Mountain trails; 
accessed via the Game Creek Trail

Eagle River Access 
Points (3)

Fishing, scenic and wildlife viewing, 
picnicking

Two are ADA accessible

Little Beach Park Playground, picnic area, concerts at the 
amphitheater beside the Eagle River

Connects to Minturn Bike Park and Mini 
Mile

Minturn Bike Park Biking skills courses and the Minturn Mini 
Mile single-track trail (walking, biking)

Connects to Little Beach Park

Boneyard Open 
Space

Walking, river access

Two Elk Shooting 
Area

Shooting Accessed via Ed6 access road (only open to 
vehicles during the summer & early fall)

Two Elk Trail Hiking, mountain biking, and horseback 
riding

This trail connects to the Mill Creek and 
additional Vail Mountain Trails. Ed6 access 
road is only open to vehicles during the 
summer and early fall.

10 Town of Minturn website, USFS, COTrex, MTB Project

NATURAL AMENITIES AND RECREATION 
OPPORTUNITIES10 
Minturn lies within the striking Eagle River Valley, 
which is characterized by the steep slopes and 
impressive cliffs of the White River National Forest and 
Holy Cross Wilderness that surround the community. 
The Eagle River itself is a picturesque feature of town, 
winding past the 100 Block and providing opportunities 
for fishing, kayaking, rafting, and canoeing. The Town 
has provided benches, public bathrooms, and a small 
basketball hoop along the river. There is currently a 
social soft-surface trail suitable for walking or mountain 
biking that runs along the east side of the train tracks 
and river from Lions Lane south to Ballpark Road/Ed6. 
Another social soft-surface trail connects to this trail, 
creating a loop farther up the hillside. 

Other formal trails and recreation opportunities in the 
immediate Minturn area are listed in Tables 11 and 12 
below.

Of course, many other recreation opportunities are 
available for Minturn residents and visitors in the 
broader region, including close proximity to Vail and 
Beaver Creek ski areas. The Minturn Fitness Center, a 
membership-based gym, also offers opportunities for 
residents to build their fitness. In addition to an open 
gym environment, the fitness center offers personal 
training and classes. 

80



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

110 111

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

QUALITY OF LIFE POLICY CONTEXT
The 2016 Minturn Economic Development Plan 
includes three key areas of focus, one of which is 
placemaking – the act of creating spaces that draw 
people, encourage chance encounters, and provide 
opportunities for formal events. This can include 
infrastructure and service improvements such as 
bathrooms, concessions, trails, seating, play equipment, 
parking/bike racks, etc. as well as beautification tactics 
such as landscaping, art installations, etc. That plan and 
others, such as the 2015 Plan4Health Policy Scan and 
2009 Community Plan encourage new public spaces 
such as pocket parks and further planning regarding 
riverfront access and activation as well as trails and 
active transportation within Minturn. The Plan4Health 
Policy Scan also encourages more opportunities to 
bring local produce to the Minturn community. 

COMMUNITY INPUT
Residents of Minturn identified sense of community 
and recreational amenities/programs as two of the 
top five attributes of the Minturn community.12 When 
asked why they choose to live in Minturn, the top two 
answers by far were quality of life and recreational 
activities. The small town atmosphere, quality of life, 
scenery, and recreational amenities were also top 
things that residents reported enjoying about Minturn. 
Respondents also reported satisfaction with Town 
efforts regarding arts and culture amenities as well as 
programs and events, but that the quality, quantity, and 
signage for paved pathways could be improved. 

Residents strongly supported the idea of adding a bike 
path from Dowd Junction to Maloit Park, as well as 
expanding recreational amenities (parks and trails) more 
generally. Participants also supported expanding paved 
sidewalks, pathways, and bikeways throughout town and 
improvements to the restroom facilities at Little Beach 
Park and amphitheater. Other than improvements to 
water infrastructure, recreation-related projects were 
top priorities for survey respondents. Sixty-four percent 
of respondents reported that they have been to the 
Minturn Fitness Center, many of which (45%) indicated 
that it had been more than a year since they had been, 
though this lower rate may be a result of COVID-19. 
Twenty eight percent said that they went weekly or 
within the last few months. When asked what would 
encourage more use, many respondents noted that it 
is far from the core of the community, that the cost/
value is prohibitive, or that they prefer exercising 
outdoors. 

12 Town of Minturn Community Survey Report (2022)

The survey also asked about the positive impact of 
Town events on quality of life in Minturn. Respondents 
indicated that the Summer Concert Series, Minturn 
Market, and Minturn Halloween had the strongest 
positive impact on quality of life. Town Cleanup 
Day and neighborhood block parties also received 
significant support. 

Participants in the Open House held as part of this 
planning process expressed a desire for new walking 
paths and biking trails, including increased public 
access to the Eagle River, trails adjacent to the river 
and pedestrian bridges across the river. Respondents 
also indicated that existing multi-modal transportation 
infrastructure is inadequate within Minturn, which 
affects residents’ and visitors’ abilities to access 
recreational amenities and community gathering spaces 
safely and comfortably without the need for a car. 
Participants also noted a desire for expanded recreation 
areas, a formal community center space, and dispersed 
or organized camping. However, in the past there has 
been documented opposition to camping in Minturn. 
There were mixed feelings about the shooting area; 
some residents believe the shooting range presents 
safety issues and should be closed. The Keystone 
Policy Center is facilitating a process to provide 
recommendations on the shooting range to the Forest 
Service from a variety of stakeholders. The community 
garden was noted as an asset to preserve. 

The Community Plan Steering Committee also 
provided valuable feedback as part of this process.13  
During facilitated meetings they expressed gratitude 
for proximity and access to recreation opportunities, 
including the ability to walk from your front door to 
recreate. They noted the value of the Eagle River, the 
addition of the new Bike Park, Little Beach Park, and 
the summer concert series. The Committee expressed 
that working with the railroad is a challenge and 
limits what the Town can do with property owned by 
Union Pacific Railroad along Eagle River, including the 
municipal parking lot which is leased to the Town on 
an annual basis. They expressed pride in the Town’s 
accomplishments regarding new parks and recreation 
opportunities since the 2009 Community Plan. 

13 Information from Minturn Community Plan Steering 
Committe Meeting #1 Memorandum, SE Group (2021; 
Appendix C: Steering Committee Memos).

81



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

112 113

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

Much of Minturn’s recreation occurs on public lands 
(e.g. U.S. Forest Service).  Often times, public lands 
are bordered by private lands which can restrict access.  
In evaluating future developments, the Town should 
evaluate needs associated with access public lands as 
part of a development proposal.  Potential public land 
access opportunities should also be evaluated by the 
applicable public land agency.

PROMOTE ACCESS TO HEALTHY FOOD & 
ESSENTIAL SERVICES
Access to fresh food is in Minturn’s history – the 
Town was once a landmark producer of iceberg 
lettuce. At present, Minturn residents have to travel to 
nearby communities to complete their food shopping. 
The Steering Committee for this planning effort 
and participants in the Open House both expressed 
support for bringing a small grocery store to Minturn. 
In write-in comments, Open House participants 
emphasized that they did not support a chain grocery 
establishment. This type of small grocery store or 
natural foods store could be located in Minturn’s Old 
Town or could be specifically incorporated into the 
design of Dowd Junction. Dowd Junction’s location 
directly off I-70 would support the success of this type 
of business. Other essential services that are currently 
not present in Minturn include a bank and health clinic. 
Childcare options could also be expanded locally. The 
Town should ensure that zoning regulations support 
the establishment of such services and promote their 
development.

COMMUNITY EVENTS, ARTS, & CULTURE
Minturn’s downtown is already a point of pride for the 
community. As discussed in Chapter 2: A Thriving 
100 Block and Chapter 3: An Economically Vibrant 
Community, placemaking efforts will help to elevate 
the 100 Block and Old Town areas as well as the 
broader community. Amenities such as benches, 
public art, pedestrian paths, and landscaping can all 
contribute to the aesthetics and appeal of an area. As 
discussed in the Existing Conditions and Community 
Input sections above, Minturn residents value the 
Town’s program of community events.  Placemaking 
improvements will help the Town support more 
events in the downtown area. Additionally, the Town 
can actively support and build partnerships with local 
businesses that contribute to community culture by 
offering quality gathering spaces, hosting events, 
supporting the arts community, and more. Chapter 3 
acknowledges ongoing discussion and recommends 
continued efforts to establish a Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) – a quasi-governmental 
entity that could convene local businesses and provide 
funding for and coordinate placemaking efforts. 
Neighborhood Design that 

SUPPORTS QUALITY OF LIFE
Neighborhood design can play a critical role in a 
community’s quality of life. Thoughtful neighborhood 
design can support residents in leading healthy 
lifestyles. For example, in a neighborhood that is 
well-connected to public transit and multi-use paths, 
residents may find it easier to commute to work 
or school, socialize, maintain an active lifestyle, and 
access the outdoors. A neighborhood or district that is 
designed around transit opportunities is called “Transit-
Oriented Development” (TOD). Dowd Junction is a 
significant opportunity for the Town of Minturn to 
create new housing and commercial opportunities in 
coordination with multimodal and regional transportation 
infrastructure. Depending on future investments in 
bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure as well as public 
transport services, other areas with potential for TOD-
style development include Old Town and the Maloit 
Park area.

Residents gather at the Agora for food 
and live music .

The Role of Businesses in Building Community

The Agora is a great example of a business that 
actively contributes to building community in 
Minturn through creative gathering space, arts, 
events, and food . The community has expressed 
substantial appreciation and support for the 
Agora’s presence in Minturn and impacts on the 
community . In addition to serving as a restaurant 
and creative event space, the business’ owner 
has recently purchased the adjacent property 
and is working with the Town to provide a 
pedestrian pathway through the property from 
Main Street to Eagle River Street – providing 
essential visibility and access to the river .

CENTRAL CONCEPTS
Many amenities in Minturn already support a high 
quality of life for residents. This section describes 
key priorities for increasing quality of life in Minturn. 
As stated at the beginning of this chapter, increasing 
quality of life means supporting existing amenities (e.g., 
recreation areas and trails) and working to provide 
amenities that are lacking (e.g., a small grocery store). 

Tourism & Quality of Life in Minturn

The same amenities and attributes that support a 
high quality of life for residents can help create 
quality experiences for visitors . For example, a 
walkable downtown area and river access benefit 
both of these groups . 

It is important to note that some Minturn 
residents are concerned about potential negative 
impacts of increasing tourism activity . As 
described in Chapter 3: An Economically 
Vibrant Community, Minturn’s economy is 
partially dependent on visitors who supplement 
the market for local businesses . Without ample 
visitation, Minturn risks losing businesses 
that provide essential tax revenue as well as 
jobs and services for the community . The 
recommendations in this plan are intended to 
acknowledge these concerns and balance them 
with enhancements to Minturn as a place to live 
and visit .

SUPPORT RECREATION ACCESS
Recreation is central to life in Minturn. Visitation to 
Minturn is also associated with recreation at nearby 
mountain resorts and increasingly at local recreation 
sites like Maloit Park and the Minturn Bike Park. To 
maximize the quality of life benefits of recreation in 
Minturn, the Town should continue to expand the 
variety of recreation opportunities that are accessible to 
residents and visitors of all ages and abilities. The Town 
should also work to complete pedestrian connections 
from neighborhoods and Old Town to nearby 
recreational opportunities. 

One example of an ongoing project that will increase 
recreation opportunities as well as multimodal 
connections to the broader region is the ongoing effort 
to extend the regional paved ECO Trail from the I-70 
and Hwy 24 intersection to Minturn. Current plans will 
extend the path to the municipal parking lot just north 
of the 100 Block, with construction anticipated for 
2023. The Town intends to advocate for and support 
an additional extension to Maloit Park. The figure 
below illustrates the general trail alignment concept (red 
line) for planned development in 2023. 

The Town should also support the stewardship 
and ongoing maintenance of its existing recreation 
opportunities. Sharing and encouraging an ethic of 
responsible recreation in Minturn has the potential 
to benefit the Town’s trails, parks, and open spaces 
for generations. The Town is actively pursuing grants 
related to responsible recreation and stewardship.

Proposed new section of the Eagle Valley Trail connecting to Minturn .

82



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

114 115

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

While Minturn currently has fewer families than other 
communities in Eagle County, it is important that the 
Town supports families with children who do live in 
the community. In addition, it is important to create 
a welcoming and supportive environment for any 
future families that move to the community or current 
residents who choose to have children down the 
line. Young adults, youth, and children are the next 
generation to sustain the community. Especially in small 
towns, it is important to ensure that young people 
will want to stay and/or move in to sustain the local 
labor force, contribute to tax revenue and to the local 
economy, and preserve social mass.

 · Action 7.2.1 Work with Blue Starlite or other vendors 
to retain outdoor movie events at Little Beach Park. 

 · Action 7.2.2 Support the expansion and 
improvement of childcare options in Minturn for 
families with young children. 

 · Action 7.2.3 Ensure that popular community events 
and any new events are family-friendly, considering 
timing, activities, etc. 

 · Action 7.2.4 Support the organization of cultural, 
recreational, and educational events catered towards 
children within Minturn. 

 · Action 7.2.5 Promote the inclusion of recreational 
amenities in redevelopment at Maloit Park, including 
multi-use fields, gathering areas, etc.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Minturn has a distinct character and strong outdoor 
recreational influence. As a community surrounded by 
immense natural resources, Minturn should maintain 
and foster community responsibility for protecting 
and preserving local resources. Through new events, 
infrastructure upgrades, and strategic partnerships, 
Minturn can become even more colorful, sustainable, 
beautiful, and community-oriented.

 · Action 7.1.1 Sponsor additional cleanup days to 
maintain a healthy environment and foster a culture 
of responsible stewardship. This/these events could 
capitalize on partnerships locally and more broadly in 
Eagle County for organization and activities. These 
events should include elements of fun as well, such 
as live music, food, art activities, etc. 

 · Action 7.1.2 Support/partner with organizations 
and businesses like the Agora that foster local arts 
and want to play a role in improving community 
infrastructure creatively. Support and implement the 
conceptual pedestrian footpath adjacent to the Agora 
property to allow access from Main Street to the 
Eagle River.

 · Action 7.1.3 To preserve Minturn’s stargazing 
experiences and to support wildlife, consider 
establishing Minturn as a Dark Sky Community per 
the International Dark Sky Association standards and 
designation process. Confer with other Dark Sky 
communities in Colorado, such as Westcliffe and 
Silver Cliff as needed.

See Chapter 3: An Economically Vibrant Community 
for additional action items related to placemaking.

OBJECTIVE 7.1 ENCOURAGE A VIBRANT PUBLIC 
REALM IN MINTURN THAT EMPHASIZES ARTS, 
STEWARDSHIP, ACCESS TO THE EAGLE RIVER, 
AND OUTDOOR FUN.

OBJECTIVE 7.2 FACILITATE AND SPONSOR 
ADDITIONAL PROGRAMMING AND 
COMMUNITY EVENTS FOR CHILDREN. 

Children play on the plyground at Little 
Beach Parl .

The project also aims to create a sense of arrival 
at key destinations in the Little Beach Park area, 
particularly at the Minturn Bike Park. In addition, the 
project has identified community desires for new 
recreational uses that could be appropriate for the 
area, such as a temporary ice rink and a dog park. 
Connectivity is also a major theme of the project; the 
final plan identifies possible trail connections to Two 
Elk and Maloit Park to expand biking and walking 
opportunities in Minturn. The project, which will 
culminate in a conceptual design for the project area, 
will be adopted alongside this plan as of January, 
2023.

QUALITY OF LIFE AND AFFORDABILITY
Quality of life improvements make a place more 
desirable to live in. When a place becomes more 
desirable to live in, property values increase. While 
this is a positive outcome for municipal revenues, it 
can have the negative consequence by pricing out 
residents and businesses who can no longer afford 
rents or ownership costs in the community. When 
planning and implementing improvements to quality 
of life, the Town should simultaneously prioritize 
measures to provide affordable and attainable housing 
in Minturn to counteract the negative impacts of 
increasing demand and costs and protect and preserve 
the local community. Many residents have indicated 
concern about rising housing costs that are already 
causing locals to move down valley in search of more 
affordable options. Every involuntary departure of 
a resident can disrupt community and social fabric 
and weaken the local labor pool. (See Chapter 4: 
Attainable Housing and Historic Character for specific 
recommendations regarding affordability). At the same 
time, certain quality of life improvements can also 
make a place more affordable to live in; with enhanced 
walking, biking, and transit connections, Minturn 
residents would not have to depend on a personal 
vehicle to meet their everyday needs.

LITTLE BEACH PARK RECREATION AREA 
PLAN
The Town of Minturn has contracted with Zehren 
& Associates to develop a recreation-based plan for 
Little Beach Park and the surrounding area, including 
the Cemetery, Public Works site, Minturn Bike Park, 
and future trail connections to other recreation areas. 
This planning effort is happening concurrently and in 
coordination with this Community Plan. The purpose 
of the plan is to “establish a long-term vision for the 
area as the Town’s major recreation hub” and “unify 
existing facilities and identify appropriate improvements 
to support community recreation, trails, and open space 
uses.”

Little Beach Park project area (Zehren & 
Associates) .

Minturn’s new Bike Park skills course .

83



MINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

116 117

C H A P T E R  7  Quality of Life, Recreation & an Inviting Public Realm

OBJECTIVE 7.5 ENCOURAGE SAFE AND 
RESPONSIBLE ACCESS TO TRAILS AND 
RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES ON FOREST 
SERVICE LAND ADJACENT TO MINTURN.

Minturn’s access to public lands is unique and special. 
From trailheads in and around Minturn, residents and 
visitors can access scenic and remote landscapes. 
Backcountry adventures can be fun and memorable 
experiences, but they also come with risks. The Town 
should help inform residents and visitors of the steps 
to take in an emergency and ways to minimize human 
impact on the landscape.

 · Action 7.5.1 Collaborate with the Forest Service, 
CPW, and Vail Valley Mountain Trails Alliance on a 1- 
to- 2-page guide to safe and responsible recreation 
in Minturn; publicize this guide on the Town website, 
social media channels, and at trailheads. Ensure that 
this guide includes the number of the relevant parties 
to call in case of an emergency. 

 · Action 7.5.2 Encourage Leave No Trace principles 
at all parks, trails, and open spaces within the Town 
of Minturn. Provide stewardship information on 
town maps, trailhead kiosks, and web materials as 
appropriate.

 · Action 7.5.3 Collaborate with regional partners such 
as the Eagle River Watershed Council, Eagle Summit 
Wilderness Alliance, and Eagle Valley Land Trust, and 
Vail Valley Mountain Trails Alliance on stewardship 
education and enforcement efforts to protect and 
preserve natural resources and wildlife.

 · Action 7.5.4 Prepare a Parks, Recreation & Open 
Space Plan to assess and plan for access and 
parking needs among other management practices, 
particularly in the face of potential development such 
as Dowd Junction. 

 · Action 7.5.5 Require new developments to assess 
the need and practicality for access to adjacent public 
lands, if applicable.

OBJECTIVE 7.6 SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF 
LITTLE BEACH PARK AND THE SURROUNDING 
AREA AS A HUB FOR RECREATION AND 
COMMUNITY EVENTS.

Little Beach Park is one of the Town’s most prized 
assets and popular venues for community events. As 
laid out in the previous section, the Town is taking 
proactive steps to preserve, improve, and expand the 
opportunities of this great asset and the surrounding 
area through the Little Beach Park Recreation Area 
Plan.

 · Action 7.6.1 Implement recommendations from the 
Little Beach Park Recreation Area Plan.

 · Action 7.6.2 Regularly assess needs, community 
desires, and new ideas for the Little Beach Park 
Recreation Area to ensure that the 2022 plan and 
Town efforts are on-track. 

 · Action 7.6.3 Facilitate future trail connections 
between recreation assets in the Little Beach Park 
area (e.g., Minturn Bike Park, Mini Mile) and other 
trailheads and recreational areas within Minturn.

 · Action 7.6.4 Support the Little Beach Park area 
as a hub for recreation, arts, performances, and 
community events in Minturn; support the adaptive 
reuse of storage yards and underutilized industrial 
portions of the area for recreation and public 
enjoyment.

Residents and visitors enjoy a drive-in 
movie (Blue Starlite/Denver Post) .

 · Action 7.3.5 Ensure that winter plowing includes 
pedestrian infrastructure and recreational pathways to 
allow for and encourage activity in winter months, as 
possible. Additional information regarding diversified 
revenue sources to support town services, such as 
plowing, can be found in other chapters, particularly 
Chapter 3: An Economically Vibrant Community.

The Minturn community currently doesn’t have a 
grocery store, meaning that residents must travel 
to Avon, Vail or Eagle-Vail to get their groceries. 
Reasonable access to a variety of food choices, 
including healthy options and fresh produce, is an 
essential part of quality of life and overall health. This 
also means that it should not take extensive amounts 
of time and energy to access ingredients for meals. 

 · Action 7.4.1 Support the addition of a grocery store 
locally in Minturn, likely as part of the potential Dowd 
Junction PUD development. Ensure that any new 
grocery option includes fresh produce. 

 · Action 7.4.2 Continue to support the Minturn 
Market. Consider marketing to additional sources of 
fresh produce within the region. 

 · Action 7.4.3 Continue to support the Minturn 
Community Garden. Work with the Minturn 
Community Fund or other local and regional partners 
to expand event offerings at the garden, such as 
workshops, community dinners, etc. that bring 
people together to showcase the garden and provide 
educational opportunities to learn about locally-grown 
foods and food preparation. Assess demand for and 
consider other locations that could support additional 
community garden space, particularly at PUD sites 
such as Dowd Junction.

OBJECTIVE 7.3 PROMOTE ACTIVE LIFESTYLES 
IN MINTURN; COMPLETE BIKE/PED 
CONNECTIONS AND SUPPORT THE MINTURN 
FITNESS CENTER AS A COMMUNITY HUB. 

Active lifestyles contribute to good mental and 
physical health. As a mountain community with many 
existing recreational assets, Minturn draws residents 
and visitors who may already enjoy active lifestyles. 
However, not every resident or visitor fits this bill, 
and there are a variety of ways that people can or 
prefer to be physically active. Because Minturn is 
relatively small geographically, ensuring that people feel 
comfortable walking or cycling throughout town creates 
opportunities for people to use active transportation 
instead of vehicles, which also reduces parking needs 
and headaches. Additionally, ensuring that people are 
aware of, have access to, and feel comfortable utilizing 
the Minturn Fitness Center is essential for providing 
indoor fitness opportunities. 

 · Action 7.3.1 Continue to support ongoing plans and 
implementation of the Minturn extension to the 
regional paved ECO Trail; advocate for and support 
further extension to Maloit Park. 

 · Action 7.3.2 Formalize/pave the social trail that runs 
along the east side of the Eagle River. Consider 
adding additional bridge access points at the southern 
end of Minturn. This effort should be incorporated 
into or in conjunction with the full ECO Trail 
extension and would likely require coordination with 
property owners, including Vail Resorts, U.P. Railroad, 
and the Forest Service.

 · Action 7.3.3 Improve bicycle and pedestrian 
infrastructure to access to the Fitness Center/
Maloit Park Road and work with ECO Transit to 
increase awareness of and improve service to this 
area. Consider expanding the Center as a broader 
community space to accommodate other activities 
and uses. For example, community members have 
expressed interest in pickle ball, basketball, a pool, 
and winter ice rink. Increase community awareness 
of the $10 drop in option and consider implementing 
other rewards programs or incentives that encourage 
its use and increase its accessibility to all residents.

 · Action 7.3.4 Improve bicycle and pedestrian 
infrastructure throughout town to improve safety, 
connectivity, and overall mobility and access for 
active transportation. Collaborate with neighboring 
municipalities on an electric bikeshare program. See 
Chapter 6: Circulation & Mobility for further details 
about infrastructure improvements.

OBJECTIVE 7.4 PROMOTE ACCESS TO 
QUALITY, LOCALLY GROWN FOOD IN 
MINTURN; ENCOURAGE COMMUNITY EVENTS 
RELATED TO LOCAL FOOD.

84



119

CHAPTER 8 A Collaborative & Resilient FutureMINTURN COMMUNITY PLAN  I magine M inturn

118

C H A P T E R  8

A Collaborative & 
Resilient Future: 
Implementation, 
Governance & Continued 
Visioning

OBJECTIVE 7.7 CONTINUE WORKING WITH 
THE EAGLE RIVER WATERSHED COUNCIL AND 
EAGLE VALLEY LAND TRUST TO SUPPORT 
STEWARDSHIP AND COMMUNITY EDUCATION 
INITIATIVES.

The Eagle River and its broader watershed is a valuable 
natural resource for the community and surrounding 
region. The Town should involve the community 
in efforts to collectively manage and protect this 
resource and support its longevity. Through signage 
and educational materials, as well as partnerships 
and events, the Town can promote a healthy riparian 
corridor and watershed

 · Action 7.7.1 Expand upon Town Cleanup Day and 
the Eagle River Watershed Council’s County-wide 
clean up to maintain a healthy environment and 
spread a culture of responsible stewardship. This or 
new events could specifically focus on the health 
and monitoring of Eagle River and educate residents 
on regulations and research techniques that inform 
protection of the river’s natural ecosystem, such 
as watershed mapping, development setbacks, and 
erosion control measures. Event activities should also 
include elements of fun, such as live music, food, art 
activities, etc. 

 · Action 7.7.2 Coordinate with the Eagle River 
Watershed Council to offer citizen science training 
opportunities, especially for youth in the Minturn 
community and region.

 · Action 7.7.3 Consider implementing signage and 
informational materials to educate residents and 
visitors about stewardship and responsible human-
nature interaction.

 · Action 7.7.4 Coordinate with Eagle Valley Land 
Trust on the continued stewardship and community 
enjoyment of the Boneyard Open Space area.

OBJECTIVE 7.8 CONTINUE WORKING WITH 
THE VAIL VALLEY MOUNTAIN TRAILS ALLIANCE 
TO SUPPORT STEWARDSHIP AND INITIATIVES 
OF CURRENT AND FUTURE TRAIL AND 
RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES

 · Action 7.8.1 Create and implement a Minturn Area 
Recreation and Conservation Plan that identifies 
recreation opportunities, connections, trailheads, and 
prioritized wildlife habitat and migration corridors

 · Action 7.8.2 Coordinate with the VVMTA to expand 
upon existing Adopt A Trail team to engage the 
community on additional volunteer trail maintenance 
or trail building days which increases stewardship of 
surrounding trails and public lands

 · Action 7.8.3 Continue to partner with the VVMTA 
to maintain the Minturn Bike Park, host volunteer 
maintenance events, and community events.

VVMTA seasonal crews work on bike 
trails (VVMTA)

85


	PC Agenda 06-14-23
	Planning Commission Minutes 05-24-23
	20230609 Staff Memo re Ch 17 Ord
	20230609 Ordinance No. - Ch 17 Admin Replat
	20230609 Ch 17 Ord Ex A
	335 Pine
	335 Pine SF DRB Staff Report_060923.pdf
	335 Pine DRB Application.pdf
	2207_Magistro_letter-of-intent_05-25-2023.pdf
	2207_Magistro_DRB_05-25-2023.pdf
	. - COVER
	01 - AERIAL VIEWS
	02 - PERSPECTIVE VIEWS
	AS101 - SITE DEMO, SITE & LANDSCAPE PLANS
	A001 - SITE & BUILDING ANALYSIS
	A002 - WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULES
	A101 - FOUNDATION, MECHANICAL & ROOF PLANS
	A102 - LOWER & UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLANS
	A201 - EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS
	A202 - WEST & NORTH ELEVATIONS


	Community Plan Memo to PC 060923
	Minturn Community Plan_Ch 7



